
City Council Meeting 
Agenda 
 
OCTOBER 26, 2021 
6:00 p.m. 
City of Turlock Yosemite Room 
156 S. Broadway, Turlock, California 
 
 

Mayor 
Amy Bublak 

 Acting City Manager 
 Council Members Dan Madden 
Nicole Larson Rebecka Monez  Interim City Clerk 
Andrew Nosrati Pam Franco  Kellie E. Weaver 
     Vice Mayor  City Attorney 
 George A. Petrulakis 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0. A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. SALUTE TO THE FLAG 
 

C. ROLL CALL 
 

D. DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS 
 
E. DISCLOSURE OF EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS 
 

1. Public Hearing Item 8A is a quasi-judicial proceeding 
 

 
1. CLOSED SESSION: 
 

The Closed Session item(s) for this meeting have been agendized and will be heard toward the 
latter part of the meeting. 

 

 

SPEAKER CARDS:  To accommodate those wishing to address the Council and allow for staff follow-up, speaker cards are available 
for any agendized topic or any other topic delivered under Public Comment.  Please fill out and provide the Comment Card to the City 
Clerk or Police Officer.  
 
NOTICE REGARDING NON-ENGLISH SPEAKERS:  The Turlock City Council meetings are conducted in English and translation to 
other languages is not provided.  Please make arrangements for an interpreter if necessary. 
 
EQUAL ACCESS POLICY:  If you have a disability which affects your access to public facilities or services, please contact the City 
Clerk’s Office at (209) 668-5540.  The City is committed to taking all reasonable measures to provide access to its facilities and 
services.  Please allow sufficient time for the City to process and respond to your request. 
 
NOTICE:  Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.3, any member of the public may directly address the City Council 
on any item appearing on the agenda, including Consent Calendar and Public Hearing items, before or during the City Council’s 
consideration of the item.  Members of the public will be allowed five (5) minutes for comments. 
 
AGENDA PACKETS:  Prior to the City Council meeting, a complete Agenda Packet is available for review on the City’s website at 
www.cityofturlock.org and in the City Clerk’s Office at 156 S. Broadway, Suite 230, Turlock, during normal business hours.  Materials 
related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after distribution of the Agenda Packet are also available for public 
inspection in the City Clerk’s Office.  Such documents may be available on the City’s website subject to staff’s ability to post the 
documents before the meeting. 

http://www.cityofturlock.org/


Council Agenda 
10/26/21 

Page 2 
 

 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS POSTED OR AMENDED 
This is the time for the City Council to remove items from the agenda or to change the order of the agenda.  Matters 
may be taken up out of order of the established agenda by a four-fifths vote of the City Council. 

 
 

3. PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS, APPOINTMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS,  
PRESENTATIONS, AND BRIEFINGS: 

 
1. Proclamation: In Honor of Maintenance Worker Sr., Hans Visser, “50 Years of Service” 

  
2. Recognition: Employee of the Month, August 2021, Turlock Fire Department, Fire 

Captain Andrew Quimby 
 
 
4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.3(a), this is the time set aside for members of the public to 
directly address the City Council on any item of interest to the public that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
City Council and to address the Council on any item on tonight’s agenda, including Consent Calendar items. You will 
be allowed five (5) minutes for your comments.  If you wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda, you may be 
asked to defer your remarks until the Council addresses the matter. 

 
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.2(a)(3), no action or discussion may be undertaken on any 
item not appearing on the posted agenda, except that the City Council, or its staff, may briefly respond to comments 
or questions from members of the public, provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, or 
direct staff to place the issue on a future agenda. 

 
 
5. MOTION WAIVING READING OF ALL ORDINANCES ON THE AGENDA, EXCEPT BY TITLE 
 
 
6. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 Information concerning the consent items listed hereinbelow has been forwarded to each Councilmember prior to this 

meeting for study.  Unless the Mayor, a Councilmember or member of the audience has questions concerning the 
Consent Calendar, the items are approved at one time by the Council.  The action taken by the Council in approving 
the consent items is set forth in the explanation of the individual items. 

 
A. Resolution:  Accepting Weekly Demands of 10/7/21 in the amount of $951,168.15; 

Weekly Demands of 10/14/21 in the amount of $875,592.36; Monthly Demands of 
6/30/21 in the amount of $12,368,477.19 

B. Motion:  Accepting Minutes of the Special Meeting of September 28, 2021; Minutes of 
Regular Meeting of September 28, 2021  

C. Motion: Declaring the Intention to Order Annexation No. 32 for the properties located at 
1137, 1201, and 1233 Fifth Street (Stanislaus County Assessor’s Parcels 043-059-001, 
043-016-004, 043-016-005) to Existing Community Facilities District No. 2 (Services 
Mitigation) 

D. Motion:  Accepting the Development Fee Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 as 
required by State of California Government Code 66006(b) 

E. Motion: Authorizing the City of Turlock to join transit agencies in San Joaquin County 
and Stanislaus County to participate in the regional deployment of the Vamos Mobility 
app, a regional Mobility-as-a-Service (MaaS) platform, and related EZHub payment 
system, provided by Masabi, and authorizing the City Manager to execute all documents 
associated with implementing the proposed action 
 



Council Agenda 
10/26/21 

Page 3 
 

 

F. Motion:  Approving an Agreement with Lamar Transit, LLC, of Salt Lake City, Utah, to 
sell and maintain advertising on the exteriors of Turlock Transit buses and within bus 
shelters as defined in RFP No. 21-020, and remit a portion of the sales revenue as 
defined by Compensation Proposal B of the Consultant’s proposal, and authorizing the 
City Manager to execute all documents required to implement the proposed action 

G. Motion:  Approving an Agreement with Axon for the purchase of Axon Interview cloud-
based video and audio recording equipment with associated software, components, and 
a five (5) year service plan for interview rooms at the Public Safety Facility, in the one-
time amount of $122,000 
Resolution:  Appropriating $122,000 from the Small Equipment Replacement fund 240-
00-000-213 Unassigned Reserves to account number 240-00-000-213.51032 “Interview 
Room Recording” for Axon Interview cloud-based video and audio recording equipment 
with associated software, components, and five (5) year service plan for interview rooms 
at the Public Safety Facility 

H. Resolution:  The City Council of the City of Turlock approving application(s) for Per 
Capita Grant Funds 

 Resolution:  Accepting up to $177,952 available under the Per Capita Program, and up 
to $46,790 in the Urban Counties Subprogram, for a total of up to $224,742 to account 
number 269-60-614-369.34170 “Prop 68 Per Capita Grant” 

 Resolution:  Appropriating $80,000 to account number 301-61-620.51300 “Construction 
Repairs/Improvements” to be funded from Fund 110 “General Fund” Unassigned 
Reserves for the ineligible grant expenses related to the Senior Center Upgrade Project 

I. Motion:  Approving an agreement with West Coast Arborists, Inc. of Stockton, California, 
for Tree Trimming and Maintenance Services, for a period of thirty-six (36) months, in an 
amount not to exceed $345,000 

J. Resolution:  Accepting a donation from Firehouse Dispensary to be used for the City of 
Turlock Active Military Banner Program in the amount of $5,000, to be appropriated into 
revenue account number 269-60-614-414.37200_000 “Donations General” and 
expenditure account number 269-60-614-414.44001_000 “Supplies General” 

K. Motion:  Approving Amendment No. 1 to a Professional Services Agreement between 
the City of Turlock and Bob Murray & Associates, extending the term of the agreement 
through June 30, 2022 

 Resolution:  Re-appropriating $32,935 in unspent funds from Fiscal Year 2020-2021 to 
account number 110-10-109.43060_039 “Contract Services Executive Recruitments” 
from Fund 110 “General Fund” unassigned reserves for executive recruitment services 

L. Resolution:  Appropriating $190,000 to account number 110-10-109.43010 “Contract 
Attorney” from Fund 110 “General Fund” unassigned reserves for anticipated fees 
through June 30, 2022, related to services performed by Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, 
Ruud & Romo 

M. Resolution:  Approving the separation of the job functions assigned to the Development 
Services Director/City Engineer into two separate positions of Development Services 
Director and City Engineer, and modifications to the job descriptions, effective October 
26, 2021 

N. Resolution:  Adopting a Mobile Device Policy for City of Turlock end users 
O. Motion: Approving an Agreement between the City of Turlock and Governmentjobs.com, 

Inc. dba NEOGOV, for a subscription for Insight, Onboard, Custom Employee 
Integration, and Candidate Text Messaging to receive and process online employment 
applications and new hire processing for a one (1) year term with an option to extend the 
Agreement for three (3) additional one (1) year terms, for a cumulative total amount not 
to exceed One Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Seven Hundred Ninety-Five Dollars and 
Eighty-Seven Cents ($125,795.87) if all extensions are exercised, as delineated in the 
Order Form in Exhibit A 



Council Agenda 
10/26/21 

Page 4 
 

 

P. Resolution:  Reaffirming the Director of Emergency Services Proclamation of Existence 
of a Local Emergency in response to COVID-19 

 
 
7. FINAL READINGS:  None 
 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

A. Request to deny the appeal and affirm the Planning Commission decision Denying 
Variance 2021-01 (Perfect Union) at 2500 N. Golden State Boulevard.  (Quintero) 

 
Recommended Action: 

 Resolution:  Denying the appeal and affirming the Planning Commission decision 
Denying Variance 2021-01 (Perfect Union) at 2500 N. Golden State Boulevard 

 

B. Request for the City Clerk to confirm: a) Proof of Publication of Notice of Public Hearing; 
b) Signed Waiver and Consent; c) Completed and Signed Ballot and d) Signed 
Certificate of Clerk Regarding Receipt of Property Owner Waiver and Consent Form and 
Ballot Declaring Election Results (Project Planner to prompt and facilitate these steps) 
AND Mayor and City Council conduct public hearing confirming that no protests have 
been received – close hearing and adopt the two resolutions below AND Calling a 
Special, Mailed-Ballot Election respecting Proposed Annexation Number 31 to existing 
Community Facilities District Number 2 (Services Mitigation) AND Declaring the results 
of Mailed-Ballot Election respecting Proposed Annexation Number 31 to Community 
Facilities District Number 2 (Services Mitigation) and ordering annexation  (Quintero) 

 
Recommended Action: 
Confirmation:  City Clerk confirms: a) Proof of Publication of Notice of Public Hearing; b) 
Signed Waiver and Consent; c) Completed and Signed Ballot and d) Signed Certificate 
of Clerk Regarding Receipt of Property Owner Waiver and Consent Form and Ballot 
Declaring Election Results (Project Planner to prompt and facilitate these steps) 

 
Public Hearing:  Mayor and City Council conduct public hearing confirming that no 
protests have been received – close hearing and adopt the two resolutions below 

 
Resolution:  Calling a Special, Mailed-Ballot Election respecting Proposed Annexation 
Number 31 to existing Community Facilities District Number 2 (Services Mitigation) 

 
Resolution:  Declaring the results of Mailed-Ballot Election respecting Proposed 
Annexation Number 31 to Community Facilities District Number 2 (Services Mitigation) 
and ordering annexation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda 
10/26/21 

Page 5 
 

 

9. ACTION ITEMS: 
 

A. Request to provide direction to Staff regarding the allocation of American Rescue Plan 
Act funds in preparation for future Council Meeting.  (Moreno) 

 
Recommended Action: 

 Motion:  Providing direction to Staff regarding the allocation of American Rescue Plan 
Act funds in preparation for future Council Meeting 

 
B. Request to approve a Professional Services Agreement between the City of Turlock and 

Citygate Associates, LLC, a Fire and EMS consulting group for local government 
municipalities, to conduct a 6-month Fire Master Plan review/study in the amount of 
$79,235, with a not to exceed total of $100,000 AND appropriate $75,000 to account 
number 110-10-109.43060_000 “Contract Services General” Transfers In to Fund 110 
“Measure A Fire Feasibility Study” 110-00-000.38002_004 and Transfers Out from Fund 
118 Measure A unassigned reserves “Measure A Fire Feasibility Study” 118-10-
115.48002_004.  (Botto) 

 
Recommended Action: 

 Motion:  Approving a Professional Services Agreement between the City of Turlock and 
Citygate Associates, LLC, a Fire and EMS consulting group for local government 
municipalities, to conduct a 6-month Fire Master Plan review/study in the amount of 
$79,235, with a not to exceed total of $100,000 

 
 Resolution:  Appropriating $75,000 to account number 110-10-109.43060_000 “Contract 

Services General” Transfers In to Fund 110 “Measure A Fire Feasibility Study” 110-00-
000.38002_004 and Transfers Out from Fund 118 Measure A unassigned reserves 
“Measure A Fire Feasibility Study” 118-10-115.48002_004 

 
 
10. CITY MANAGER REPORTS/UPDATES 

City Manager reports/updates are provided for informational purposes only and no action or discussion may be 
undertaken.  The City Manager may direct department heads to provide reports/updates at the City Manager’s 
request. 

 
A. Fire Department 

1. Public Safety Briefing (Botto) 
 

B. Police Department 
1. Public Safety Briefing  (Hampton) 

 
C. Municipal Services 

1. Monthly Departmental Update (Madden) 
 
 
11. COUNCIL ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION 

Requests for Council items for future consideration will be scheduled in accordance with the City of Turlock Elected 
and Appointed Officials’ Handbook (Resolution No. 2019-094), unless otherwise specified by the Mayor or a majority 
of the Council. 

 
 
 
 



Council Agenda 
10/26/21 

Page 6 
 

 

12. COUNCILMEMBER QUESTIONS, COMMENTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Councilmembers may ask questions, provide comments, and make brief announcements on notable topics of 
interest.  The Brown Act does not allow discussion or action by the legislative body. 

 
 
13. CLOSED SESSION: 
 

A.  Conference with Labor Negotiators, Cal. Gov’t Code §54957.6(a) 
“Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a legislative body of a local agency may hold closed 
sessions with the local agency's designated representatives regarding the salaries, salary schedules, 
or compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits of its represented and unrepresented employees, 
and, for represented employees, any other matter within the statutorily provided scope of 
representation.” 

Agency Designated Representative:  Acting City Manager Dan Madden 
Employee Organization:  Turlock Associated Police Officers 
Employee Organization:  Turlock City Employees Association 
Employee Organization:  Turlock Firefighters Association-Local 2434 
Employee Organization:  Turlock Management Association-Public Safety 
Unrepresented Employees:  Accountant, Principal, Administrative Analyst, Administrative Services 
Director, Assistant to the City Manager for Economic Development/Community Housing, Chief 
Building Official, City Clerk, Community Housing Program Supervisor, Deputy Director Development 
Services/Planning, Development Services Director, Executive Administrative Assistant/Deputy City 
Clerk, Executive Administrative Assistant/Municipal Services, Executive Administrative 
Assistant/Public Safety, Finance Director, Fire Chief, Human Resources Analyst, Sr., Human 
Resources Manager, Human Resources Technician, Information Technology Manager, Municipal 
Services Deputy Director, Municipal Services Director, Office Assistant I, Parks, Recreation and 
Public Facilities Director, Parks, Recreation and Public Facilities Manager, Parks, Recreation and 
Public Facilities Superintendent, Payroll Coordinator, Police Business Unit Supervisor, Police Chief, 
Civil Engineer, Principal, Roads Program Manager, Transit Manager, Utilities Manager, and Water 
Quality Control Division Manager. 
 

B. Conference with Real Property Negotiators, Cal. Gov’t Code §54956.8 
“Notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter, a legislative body of a local agency may hold a 
closed session with its negotiator prior to the purchase, sale, exchange, or lease of real property by or 
for the local agency to grant authority to its negotiator regarding the price and terms of payment for 
the purchase, sale, exchange, or lease.” 

Property: 132 S Broadway Turlock, CA, 95380, Turlock, CA (APN No. 043-045-018-000) 
Agency Negotiator: Acting City Manager Dan Madden 
Negotiating Parties: Pierce, Timothy L & Donna K 
Under Negotiation: Price and terms of payment for purchase of real property.  

 
C. Conference with Real Property Negotiators, Cal. Gov’t Code §54956.8 

“Notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter, a legislative body of a local agency may hold a 
closed session with its negotiator prior to the purchase, sale, exchange, or lease of real property by or 
for the local agency to grant authority to its negotiator regarding the price and terms of payment for 
the purchase, sale, exchange, or lease.” 

Property: 4905 N. Golden State Boulevard., Turlock, CA, 95380, Turlock, CA (APN No. 045-
062-018-000) 
Agency Negotiator: Acting City Manager Dan Madden 
Negotiating Parties: Khatri Brothers 
Under Negotiation: Price and terms of payment for purchase of real property.  

 
 
 



Council Agenda 
10/26/21 

Page 7 
 

 

B. Conference with Real Property Negotiators, Cal. Gov’t Code §54956.8 
“Notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter, a legislative body of a local agency may hold a 
closed session with its negotiator prior to the purchase, sale, exchange, or lease of real property by or 
for the local agency to grant authority to its negotiator regarding the price and terms of payment for 
the purchase, sale, exchange, or lease.” 

Property: 5025 N. Golden State Boulevard, Turlock, CA, 95380, Turlock, CA (APN No. 045-
062-019-000) 
Agency Negotiator: Acting City Manager Dan Madden 
Negotiating Parties: Khatri Brothers 
Under Negotiation: Price and terms of payment for purchase of real property.  

 
B. Liability Claims, Cal. Gov’t Code §54956.95 

“For the purposes of [Section 54956.9], ‘existing facts and circumstances’ shall consist only of one of 
the following: The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Government Claims Act (Division 3.6 
(commencing with Section 810) of Title 1 of the Government Code) or some other written 
communication from a potential plaintiff threatening litigation, which claim or communication shall be 
available for public inspection pursuant to Section 54957.5.” 

Claimant:  Mary M. Caton 
Agency Claimed Against:  City of Turlock 

 
 
14. REPORTS FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 



IN HONOR OF 

HANS VISSER 

MAINTENANCE WORKER SR. 

“50 YEARS OF SERVICE” 

 
WHEREAS, on November 1, 1971, Hans Visser was hired by the City of Turlock under the 

Public Employment Program that helped Veterans obtain employment; and 
 

WHEREAS, Hans Visser began his career in the Parks Division, maintaining Donnelly Park and 
the then, newly developed Tegner Park; and 
 

WHEREAS, from there, Hans moved to Fleet Maintenance, where he was temporarily assigned 
to maintain police cruisers before transferring to the Water Division to perform utility service calls; and  
 

WHEREAS, Hans eventually made his way back to Parks, Recreation and Public Facilities with 
the Streets Division, performing the leaf pickup program and spraying city alleyways and streets; and  
 

WHEREAS, by the mid-1990s, spraying storm ponds became Hans’ primary job and all other 
locations soon followed; and  
 

WHEREAS, to this day, Hans manages the Department’s pesticide program, helping keep his 
fellow staff members safe and informed about the latest laws and regulations; and  
 

WHEREAS, Hans has had a tremendous impact on department culture and work performance 
standards given his career longevity; and  
 

WHEREAS, Hans’ friendly demeanor and can-do attitude have made him a treasured resource 
to the Organization; and 
 

WHEREAS, the countless and commendable contributions Hans Visser has made to the City of 
Turlock and community at large over the past fifty years is truly worthy of recognition. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, AMY BUBLAK, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of the 

City of Turlock and on behalf of the entire City Council, do hereby commend Maintenance Worker Sr., 
Hans Visser, for his “50 years of valuable service” and express our sincere thanks on behalf of the City of 
Turlock.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I, AMY 
BUBLAK, Mayor of Turlock, have hereunto set 
my hand and caused the Seal of the City of 
Turlock to be affixed this 26th day of October, 
2021.  
 
____________________________________ 
AMY BUBLAK, MAYOR 
City of Turlock, County of Stanislaus,  
State of California 

KWeaver
Text Box
3.1



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TURLOCK 
 
IN THE MATTER OF ACCEPTING } RESOLUTION NO. 2021- 
WEEKLY DEMANDS OF 10/7/21 IN THE } 
AMOUNT OF $951,168.15; WEEKLY } 
DEMANDS OF 10/14/21 IN THE AMOUNT } 
OF $875,592.36; MONTHLY DEMANDS OF } 
6/30/21 IN THE AMOUNT OF $12,368,477.19 } 
 } 
 

WHEREAS, the City has received demands for ratification and approval. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Turlock 
does hereby accept Demands as follows: 
 

Demands of: In the Amount of: 
10/7/21 $951,168.15 

10/14/21 $875,592.36 
6/30/21 $12,368,477.19 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Turlock this 26th day of October, 2021, by the following vote: 
 
 AYES:  
 NOES:  
NOT PARTICIPATING:  
 ABSENT:  
 
 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 
Kellie E. Weaver, Interim City Clerk, 
City of Turlock, County of Stanislaus, 
State of California 

KWeaver
Text Box
6A



Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

AP - Accounts Payable
Check
131547 10/01/2021 Voided DEPT 

REQUESTED
10/01/2021 Accounts Payable Petrulakis Law & Advocacy, APC $11,370.00

Invoice Date Description Amount
626 06/30/2021 2021-10742 General Municipal $11,370.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $11,370.00

131549 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable A-Z BUS SALES INC $2,290.19
Invoice Date Description Amount
01P709951 10/01/2021 TR15-1038PP $138.16
02P484940 10/01/2021 TRA15-1038PP $129.47
02P485061 10/01/2021 TRA15-1038PP $172.58
02P484939 10/01/2021 TRA15-1038PP $273.11
02P485407.02 10/01/2021 TRA15-1050PPP $1,576.87
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $2,290.19

131550 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable AMERICAN MESSAGING $24.12
Invoice Date Description Amount
R1061851VJ 10/06/2021 Acct #R1-061851 - Police Department $11.45
R1061876VJ 10/06/2021 Acct #R1-061876 - Fire Department $12.67
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $24.12

131551 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable AT&T MOBILITY $43.43
Invoice Date Description Amount
6865X09272021 10/06/2021 287307496865 / PD SIU Modem $43.43
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $43.43

131552 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable ATKINSON, ANDELSON, LOYA, 
RUUD & ROMO

$61,212.90

Invoice Date Description Amount
630260 09/21/2021 Labor Negotiations - July 2021 $61,212.90
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $55,309.91
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $3,802.87
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $2,100.12

131553 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable BACKFLOW DISTRIBUTORS, INC $679.45
Invoice Date Description Amount
60928 10/01/2021 BACKFLOW PARTS $679.45
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $679.45

131554 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable BADGER METER INC dba 
NATIONAL METER & AUTOMATION

$14,709.45

Invoice Date Description Amount
1446785 10/01/2021 POSITIVE DISPLACEMENT RESIDENTIAL AND 

TURBINE METERS
$14,709.45

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $14,709.45

Friday, October 8, 2021Pages: 1 of 17user: Jamie Gomes

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 10/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 10/7/2021

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221051','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221053','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221054','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221055','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221056','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221057','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221058','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

131555 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable BALSWICK'S TIRE SHOP INC $28.25
Invoice Date Description Amount
01-197082 09/21/2021 2017 CHEVY - FLAT REPAIR $28.25
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $28.25

131556 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable BARTKIEWICZ KRONICK & 
SHANAHAN

$6,107.75

Invoice Date Description Amount
8/31/2021 10/01/2021 SRWA - Legal Services for 2021-22 for August 2021 $6,107.75
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
950 - SRWA 950.11000 (Cash) $6,107.75

131557 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable BAY AREA CONSULTANTS INC $498.40
Invoice Date Description Amount
E07466 09/29/2021 SR01, 20-026 RWQCF Flotator No. 3 Recoating 

8/25/21 - 9/22/21
$498.40

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $498.40

131558 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable Beacon Integrated Professional 
Resources, Inc

$6,679.75

Invoice Date Description Amount
201187 09/29/2021 SR01, 14-27 Intersect Improve @ Taylor & Walnut Rd 

thru 8/31/21
$6,679.75

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
215 - Streets - Grant Funded Projects 215.11000 (Cash) $6,679.75

131559 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable BONANDER TRUCKS $145.14
Invoice Date Description Amount
864208 10/01/2021 ST91-711 $83.25
253309 10/01/2021 POL 1337,1344,1345,1346 $61.89
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $61.89
217 - Streets - Gas Tax 217.11000 (Cash) $83.25

131560 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable CALIFORNIA DEPT OF TAX AND 
FEE ADMIN

$338.53

Invoice Date Description Amount
09302021VALADEZ 09/29/2021 9-30-21 PAYROLL ATTACHMENT FOR ACCT#100-

036551
$338.53

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $338.53

131561 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable CAROLLO ENGINEERS $156,880.05
Invoice Date Description Amount
FB14906 09/30/2021 Key Activities Completed in August 2021 $30,092.30
FB15035 09/30/2021 Key Activities Completed in August 2021 $126,787.75
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $156,880.05

131562 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable CENTRAL VALLEY BUSINESS 
FORMS

$1,560.00

Invoice Date Description Amount
235822 09/27/2021 Take Pride in Turlock Flyer 2021 $1,560.00

Friday, October 8, 2021Pages: 2 of 17user: Jamie Gomes

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 10/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 10/7/2021

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221059','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221060','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221061','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221062','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221063','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221064','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221065','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221066','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
204 - AB 939 Integrated Waste Mgmt 204.11000 (Cash) $1,560.00

131563 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable CENTRAL VALLEY CONCRETE $900.46
Invoice Date Description Amount
176747 09/30/2021 WQC- AGGREGATE, ASPHALTIC CONCRETE, & 

RELATED MATERIALS
$900.46

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $900.46

131564 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable CHAMPION INDUSTRIAL $748.57
Invoice Date Description Amount
69128 10/06/2021 MUNI - REPAIR NOISY AC UNITS $748.57
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $748.57

131565 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS $269.97
Invoice Date Description Amount
0763228092521 10/06/2021 8203 13 001 0763228 / IT Internet $89.99
0071896092321 10/06/2021 8203 13 005 0071896 / IT Internet $80.00
0695883092621 10/06/2021 8203 13 001 0695883 / 901 S Walnut Rd (WQC) $99.98
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $49.99
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $49.99
501 - Information Technology 501.11000 (Cash) $169.99

131566 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable CINCINNATI LIFE INS INC $514.60
Invoice Date Description Amount
4007552618 09/29/2021 SEPTEMBER 2021 PREMIUMS $514.60
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $514.60

131567 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable COLE-PARMER INSTRUMENT 
COMPANY LLC

$33.57

Invoice Date Description Amount
2819617 09/30/2021 NIST Certification and Hi Temp $33.57
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $33.57

131568 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable COOPERATIVE PERSONNEL 
SERVICES dba CPS HR Consulti

$34,393.75

Invoice Date Description Amount
0004030 09/30/2021 HR Consultation - 8/1/21-8/28/21 $15,121.25
0003848 09/30/2021 HR Consultation - July 2021 $19,272.50
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $34,393.75

131569 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable CRAIG SAFETY GROUP $8,937.50
Invoice Date Description Amount
21864 09/30/2021 LOTO Development - August 2021 $8,625.00
21870 FY2122 09/30/2021 Consulting Services 9/10/21 $312.50
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $8,937.50

Friday, October 8, 2021Pages: 3 of 17user: Jamie Gomes

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 10/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 10/7/2021

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221067','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221068','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221069','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221070','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221071','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221072','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221073','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

131570 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable CRIMETEK SECURITY, INC. $1,569.78
Invoice Date Description Amount
64340 09/21/2021 City Hall Security 9/13-9/17/21 $840.78
64389 09/21/2021 City Hall Security 9/20-9/24/21 $729.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $1,569.78

131571 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable CSJVRMA $362,335.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
RMA-2022-0123 10/01/2021 Liab Program 2nd Quarter of FY 21/22 & Crime Shield 

FY 21/22
$362,335.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $2,890.00
512 - Casualty Insurance 512.11000 (Cash) $359,445.00

131572 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable CULLIGAN INC $150.12
Invoice Date Description Amount
TRANSIT-8/31/21 09/29/2021 Acct 867681- Water Softener Exchange Service 9/1/21

-9/30/21
$74.50

TRANSIT-9/30/21 09/29/2021 Acct 867681- Water Softener Exchange Service 
10/1/21-10/31/21

$75.62

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $150.12

131573 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable DOOLEY ENTERPRISES, INC. $12,733.90
Invoice Date Description Amount
61317 09/27/2021 45 AUTO 230GR FULL METAL $12,733.90
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $12,733.90

131574 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable FAST TRACK CAR WASH, 
MADRUGA BROS ENT INC

$602.00

Invoice Date Description Amount
27401 10/06/2021 CAR WASH SERVICES - AUG 2021 $602.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $469.00
255 - CDBG 255.11000 (Cash) $10.50
405 - Building 405.11000 (Cash) $10.50
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $77.00
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $3.50
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $7.00
501 - Information Technology 501.11000 (Cash) $3.50
502 - Engineering 502.11000 (Cash) $21.00

131575 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable FASTENAL COMPANY INC $622.74
Invoice Date Description Amount
CATUR175756 09/30/2021 WQC Parts $336.56
CATUR175873 09/30/2021 Drill Set and parts $222.95
CATUR175461 09/30/2021 Flotator Repair at WQC $63.23
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $622.74

Friday, October 8, 2021Pages: 4 of 17user: Jamie Gomes

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 10/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 10/7/2021

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221074','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221075','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221076','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221077','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221078','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221079','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

131576 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable FINANCIAL CREDIT NETWORK $985.04
Invoice Date Description Amount
FCN-TRMS12-JUL21 09/30/2021 FCN TRMS 12 JUL 2021 $696.91
FCN TRUT12-JUL21 09/30/2021 FCN TRUT12 JUL 2021 $288.13
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $381.36
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $113.26
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $490.42

131577 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable FISHER SCIENTIFIC PRO INC $648.48
Invoice Date Description Amount
2912737 09/30/2021 LAB SUPPLIES $76.41
3184124 09/30/2021 LAB SUPPLIES $491.94
2208506 09/30/2021 LAB SUPPLIES $80.13
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $491.94
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $156.54

131578 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable GARTON TRACTOR INC $741.91
Invoice Date Description Amount
CT98473 10/01/2021 AD13-4483 $741.91
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
246 - Landscape Assessment 246.11000 (Cash) $741.91

131579 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable GARY'S RENT A CAN INC $109.49
Invoice Date Description Amount
A-100205 09/24/2021 GARY'S - PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL ASST $109.49
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
246 - Landscape Assessment 246.11000 (Cash) $109.49

131580 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable GCR TIRES & SERVICE $2,414.82
Invoice Date Description Amount
858-46543 10/01/2021 BLD14-356 $500.03
858-46544 10/01/2021 ITEM NO#000702 $1,914.79
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $1,914.79
405 - Building 405.11000 (Cash) $500.03

131581 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable GDR ENGINEERING INC $175.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
27224 09/29/2021 SR01, 19-40 On Call Land Surveying Services July 

2021
$175.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
502 - Engineering 502.11000 (Cash) $175.00

131582 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable GEOANALYTICAL LAB INC $6,420.27
Invoice Date Description Amount
H1I2204 09/30/2021 DOWNTOWN PCE REMEDIATION $1,494.00
H1I2206 09/30/2021 QUARTERLY WASTEWATER SAMPLES $54.50
H1I2103 09/30/2021 QUARTERLY WASTEWATER SAMPLES $54.50
H1I2301 09/30/2021 QUARTERLY WASTEWATER SAMPLES $54.50
H1I1405 09/30/2021 MONTHLY LABORATORY DILUTION $38.15
H1I0803 09/30/2021 QUARTERLY WASTEWATER SAMPLES $54.50
H1G2714 09/30/2021 SLUDGE $138.90

Friday, October 8, 2021Pages: 5 of 17user: Jamie Gomes

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 10/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 10/7/2021

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221080','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221081','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221082','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221083','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221084','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221085','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221086','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

H1I1517 09/30/2021 SLUDGE $141.69
H1I0806 09/30/2021 WASTEWATER MONTHLY $677.64
H1H0406 09/30/2021 1,2,3 TCP WELL SAMPLING $653.94
H1H0405 09/30/2021 DRINKING WATER WELL ANALYSIS $30.95
H1I1304 09/30/2021 DRINKING WATER WELL ANALYSIS $30.95
H1I0104 09/30/2021 PRS STATION MONITORING-W37 (CONFLUENCE 

STUDY)
$718.79

H1G1314 09/30/2021 ANNUAL LAB WATERS $2,277.26
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $1,214.38
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $5,205.89

131583 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable GILLIG LLC $14.60
Invoice Date Description Amount
40847406 10/01/2021 TRA18-1060PP $8.22
40849359 10/01/2021 TRA18-1061PP $6.38
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $14.60

131584 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable GOMES & SONS INC, JOE M $26,824.48
Invoice Date Description Amount
46158 10/06/2021 Fuel for Fire #3 $2,142.09
46348 10/06/2021 CUST #24090 - Fuel Expense for 9/1/21 - 9/15/21 $24,682.39
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $14,968.00
205 - Sports Facilities 205.11000 (Cash) $345.98
217 - Streets - Gas Tax 217.11000 (Cash) $1,821.83
246 - Landscape Assessment 246.11000 (Cash) $1,114.09
255 - CDBG 255.11000 (Cash) $47.14
405 - Building 405.11000 (Cash) $91.14
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $2,975.78
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $1,930.97
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $3,200.67
501 - Information Technology 501.11000 (Cash) $65.17
502 - Engineering 502.11000 (Cash) $263.71

131585 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable GOMES PROPANE $513.62
Invoice Date Description Amount
11974 09/24/2021 GOMES - PROPANE FOR STREETS $58.85
11975 09/24/2021 GOMES - PROPANE FOR STREETS $65.36
11976 09/24/2021 GOMES - PROPANE FOR STREETS $33.20
11981 09/24/2021 GOMES - PROPANE FOR STREETS $74.26
11982 09/24/2021 GOMES - PROPANE FOR STREETS $66.04
11984 09/24/2021 GOMES - PROPANE FOR STREETS $108.81
11985 09/24/2021 GOMES - PROPANE FOR STREETS $63.99
11986 09/24/2021 GOMES - PROPANE FOR STREETS $43.11
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
219 - SB1 Road Maint & Rehab Account 219.11000 (Cash) $513.62

131586 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable GRAINGER INC, W W $632.98
Invoice Date Description Amount
9026097593 09/30/2021 Cam and Groove $632.98
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount

Friday, October 8, 2021Pages: 6 of 17user: Jamie Gomes

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 10/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 10/7/2021

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221087','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221088','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221089','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221090','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $632.98

131587 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable HCI SYSTEMS INC $1,630.99
Invoice Date Description Amount
195722 10/06/2021 FLEET MAINT - REPAIR SPRINKLER LINE - 

PUDDLE
$1,630.99

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
505 - Fleet 505.11000 (Cash) $1,630.99

131588 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable HD SUPPLY FACILITIES 
MAINTENANCE LTD

$5,363.82

Invoice Date Description Amount
724603 09/30/2021 Plastic Ampules $283.09
654670 09/30/2021 LAB SUPPLIES $2,448.65
657663 09/30/2021 LAB SUPPLIES $627.92
666800 09/30/2021 LAB SUPPLIES $288.65
685853 09/30/2021 LAB SUPPLIES $1,548.68
654624 09/30/2021 LAB SUPPLIES $166.83
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $4,285.98
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $1,077.84

131589 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable HILMAR LUMBER INC $107.74
Invoice Date Description Amount
504113 09/30/2021 APD Cleaning $107.74
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $107.74

131590 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable HORIZON WATER & ENVIR LLC $3,647.50
Invoice Date Description Amount
5480 10/01/2021 SRWA - Phase III Environmental Work for 2021-22 for 

August 2021
$3,647.50

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
950 - SRWA 950.11000 (Cash) $3,647.50

131591 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable JOAQUIN ROSE, INC, B & B FLUID 
POWER

$347.94

Invoice Date Description Amount
00274704 10/01/2021 ST92-711 $347.94
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
217 - Streets - Gas Tax 217.11000 (Cash) $347.94

131592 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable LEHIGH HANSON INC $468.10
Invoice Date Description Amount
2283680 09/24/2021 LEHIGH - ASPHALT FOR STREETS $79.22
2284161 09/24/2021 LEHIGH - ASPHALT FOR STREETS $79.88
2284637 09/24/2021 LEHIGH - ASPHALT FOR STREETS $154.50
2285563 09/24/2021 LEHIGH - ASPHALT FOR STREETS $77.25
2286533 09/24/2021 LEHIGH - ASPHALT FOR STREETS $77.25
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
219 - SB1 Road Maint & Rehab Account 219.11000 (Cash) $468.10

Friday, October 8, 2021Pages: 7 of 17user: Jamie Gomes

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 10/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 10/7/2021

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221091','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221092','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221093','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221094','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221095','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221096','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

131593 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable MIRACLE PLAYSYSTEMS INC $1,549.48
Invoice Date Description Amount
F2021-0626 09/24/2021 ADA SWING $1,549.48
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $1,549.48

131594 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable MME $1,955.83
Invoice Date Description Amount
0163791-IN 10/01/2021 ST13-7120 $1,955.83
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
217 - Streets - Gas Tax 217.11000 (Cash) $1,955.83

131595 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable MO-CAL OFFICE SOLUTIONS INC $2,099.75
Invoice Date Description Amount
AR357149 09/29/2021 36" x 500' Bond Paper for Engineering Plotter $215.08
AR355897 10/06/2021 HR 07/07/21 -08/06/21 (TASKALFA 5052CI) $228.95
AR355898 10/06/2021 PLANNING 07/08/21-08/07/21 (TASKALFA 5002I) $61.99
AR355899 10/06/2021 PD ADMIN 07/05/21-08/04/21 (TASKALFA 5002I) $46.58
AR355900 10/06/2021 PD DISPATCH - ANNUAL PAYMENT 8/1/21-7/31/22 $195.46
AR355938 10/06/2021 RECREATION 07/08/21 - 08/07/21 (TASKALFA 5002I) $37.16
AR356581 10/06/2021 WQC OFFICE - ANNUAL PAYMENT 9/7/21-9/6/22 

(TASKALFA 4002I)
$212.93

AR356583 10/06/2021 POLICE - ANNUAL PAYMENT 9/9/21-9/8/22 
(ECOSYS M3540IDN)

$205.25

AR356797 10/06/2021 FINANCE AP 07/21/21-08/20/21 (TASKALFA 3551CI) $304.25
AR356798A 10/06/2021 WQC ADMIN QTRLY 08/17/21 - 11/16/21 (TASKALFA 

3253CI)
$105.45

AR356798B 10/06/2021 WQC ADMIN QTRLY 05/17/21 - 08/16/21 (TASKALFA 
3253CI)

$96.91

AR356799 10/06/2021 ENGINEERING 07/21/21 - 08/20/21 (TASKALFA 
3552CI)

$101.82

AR356800 10/06/2021 PD RECORDS 07/22/21- 08/21/21 (TASKALFA 6002I) $34.40
AR356801 10/06/2021 ADMIN SERVICES 07/21/21 - 08/20/21 (TASKALFA 

6002I)
$61.71

AR357515 10/06/2021 PD ADMIN 08/05/21-09/04/21 (TASKALFA 5002I) $46.89
AR357539 10/06/2021 MS ADMIN/VARIOUS - 08/01/21 - 08/31/21 

(TASKALFA 3051CI)
$144.92

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $1,030.33
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $583.91
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $168.61
502 - Engineering 502.11000 (Cash) $316.90

131596 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable NAPA AUTO PARTS $68.37
Invoice Date Description Amount
771396 10/01/2021 PART NUMBER 091843 $68.37
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $68.37

131597 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable NEXT LEVEL PARTS INC $1,033.01
Invoice Date Description Amount
8577-362989 10/01/2021 US 0813020. XP $4.93
8577-362870 10/01/2021 RVB 2010- A-P $80.39

Friday, October 8, 2021Pages: 8 of 17user: Jamie Gomes

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 10/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 10/7/2021

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221097','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221098','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221099','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221100','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221101','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

8577-363047 10/01/2021 TRA15-1038PPP $5.48
8577-363372 10/01/2021 NOTE 1130 $15.97
8577-363214 10/01/2021 NOTE 0419 $66.70
8577-363039 10/01/2021 Credit for inv #362725 ($16.73)
8577-362725 10/01/2021 DAY E71989 $16.73
8577-363162 10/01/2021 PDP PMD1069H $589.01
8577-363264 10/01/2021 ST13-7120 $202.20
8577-362772 10/01/2021 CFI 88935 $68.33
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $164.69
217 - Streets - Gas Tax 217.11000 (Cash) $202.20
246 - Landscape Assessment 246.11000 (Cash) $655.71
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $10.41

131598 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable OLIVER THOMAS AND PIERCE 
INVESTIGATIONS, INC

$1,953.00

Invoice Date Description Amount
21967 09/21/2021 Legal Investigations - August 2021 $930.00
21979 09/21/2021 Legal Investigations - August 2021 $1,023.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $1,953.00

131599 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable OREILLY AUTO PARTS $302.33
Invoice Date Description Amount
2800-141279 10/01/2021 POL08-1282 $220.88
2800-140988 10/01/2021 PK01-4101 $6.21
2800-140925 10/01/2021 ITEM NO JCAS025.XPA $20.75
2800-140622 10/01/2021 AD06-0419 $54.49
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $247.84
246 - Landscape Assessment 246.11000 (Cash) $54.49

131600 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable P G & E $8.38
Invoice Date Description Amount
REC 9/26/21 10/06/2021 2749172768-4 / 144 S Broadway $8.38
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $8.38

131601 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable PACE SUPPLY CORPORATION $638.98
Invoice Date Description Amount
057123946 10/01/2021 Pipe and Pipe Fittings $46.93
057164970 10/01/2021 BAND REPAIR CLAMP $592.05
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $46.93
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $592.05

131602 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable Police Bike Store $10,289.63
Invoice Date Description Amount
114438 09/27/2021 Fuji Bicycles -Special-27. 5-MAX-COMBO AND SIREN $10,289.63
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
202 - Bicycle Safety 202.11000 (Cash) $10,289.63

Friday, October 8, 2021Pages: 9 of 17user: Jamie Gomes

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 10/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 10/7/2021

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221102','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221103','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221104','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221105','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221106','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

131603 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable PROVOST AND PRITCHARD 
ENGINEERING GROUP

$4,589.80

Invoice Date Description Amount
86707 09/29/2021 SR01, 20-027 Drinking Water Chlorination July 2021 $1,513.00
87258 09/29/2021 SR01, 20-027 Drinking Water Chlorination August 

2021
$3,076.80

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $4,589.80

131604 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable R & S ERECTION INC $467.05
Invoice Date Description Amount
109389 09/21/2021 ST#2 - REPLACE COIL CORD $467.05
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $467.05

131605 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable RAMONT'S TOW SERVICE $400.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
237283 10/01/2021 TRA18-1060OO $400.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $400.00

131606 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable RANDIK PAPER CO $797.20
Invoice Date Description Amount
189796-01 10/06/2021 JANITORIAL PAPER & CLEANING SUPPLIES $24.16
189796-02 10/06/2021 JANITORIAL PAPER & CLEANING SUPPLIES $20.46
191008 10/06/2021 JANITORIAL PAPER & CLEANING SUPPLIES $250.72
191286 10/06/2021 JANITORIAL PAPER & CLEANING SUPPLIES $213.61
191671 10/06/2021 JANITORIAL PAPER & CLEANING SUPPLIES $288.25
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $797.20

131607 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable RAY MORGAN COMPANY $3,244.07
Invoice Date Description Amount
3453783 10/07/2021 Printer Usage & Maintenance for 08/12/12 - 09/11/21 $3,244.07
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $2,683.94
255 - CDBG 255.11000 (Cash) $0.82
405 - Building 405.11000 (Cash) $40.19
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $95.25
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $129.33
501 - Information Technology 501.11000 (Cash) $3.94
502 - Engineering 502.11000 (Cash) $290.60

131608 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable REED INC, GEORGE $253.65
Invoice Date Description Amount
100247816 09/24/2021 GEORGE REED - ASPHALT $83.19
100247937 09/24/2021 GEORGE REED - ASPHALT $170.46
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
219 - SB1 Road Maint & Rehab Account 219.11000 (Cash) $253.65

131609 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable ROLAND PHD,JOCELYN E $1,000.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
19541 09/27/2021 POLICE OCTOBER 2021 $1,000.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount

Friday, October 8, 2021Pages: 10 of 17user: Jamie Gomes

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 10/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 10/7/2021

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221107','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221108','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221109','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221110','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221111','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221112','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221113','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $1,000.00

131610 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable ROMEO MEDICAL CLINIC $4,372.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
8/9/2021 PD 09/21/2021 Romeo Medical Services PD $50.00
8/9/2021 09/28/2021 Medical Services $4,322.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $4,127.00
205 - Sports Facilities 205.11000 (Cash) $47.00
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $99.00
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $99.00

131611 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF 
CALIFORNIA, INC.

$2,578.08

Invoice Date Description Amount
3023280326 10/01/2021 Credit for inv #3023244239 ($47.52)
3022600831 10/01/2021 Credit for inv #3022593742 ($20.23)
3021970733 10/01/2021 Credit for inv #3021944040 ($158.58)
3025044666 10/01/2021 POL18-1327 $364.25
3025059920 10/01/2021 POL13-1130 $4.93
3025027405 10/01/2021 POL13-1130 $18.96
3025039834 10/01/2021 POL18-1323 $209.30
3024479867 10/01/2021 Credit Memo ($543.13)
3024005704 10/01/2021 Credit for inv #3023944241 ($61.07)
3024991301 10/01/2021 POL14-1126 $530.09
3024960096 10/01/2021 FB5Z6068D $196.39
3024890676 10/01/2021 OP18-624 $162.72
3024915934 10/01/2021 HG21-364 $1,328.08
3024895556 10/01/2021 DB5Z606EA $100.91
3024615536 10/01/2021 FB5Z6038B $271.57
3024928562 10/01/2021 OP18-624 $329.79
3024937036 10/01/2021 Credit Memo ($108.38)
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $1,105.75
255 - CDBG 255.11000 (Cash) $1,219.70
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $272.86
502 - Engineering 502.11000 (Cash) ($20.23)

131612 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY $1,154.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
N147150 10/01/2021 21/22 ANNUAL PERMITS TO OPERATE - FACILITY 

ID N7952 - 512 KILROY
$577.00

N147149 10/01/2021 21/22 ANNUAL PERMITS TO OPERATE - FACILITY 
ID N7951 - 401 THIRD

$577.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $1,154.00

131613 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable SEEGERS PRINTING INC $1,006.95
Invoice Date Description Amount
0137394-IN 09/29/2021 123-TCP October Insert $1,006.95
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $1,006.95

Friday, October 8, 2021Pages: 11 of 17user: Jamie Gomes

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 10/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 10/7/2021

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221114','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221115','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221116','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221117','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

131614 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable STERICYCLE INC $147.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
3005725591 09/21/2021 ST#3 STERI-SAFE MONTHLY TREATMENT $36.75
3005725589 09/21/2021 ADMIN STERI-SAFE MONTHLY TREATMENT $36.75
3005650652 09/21/2021 ST#2 STERI-SAFE MONTHLY TREATMENT $36.75
3005612206 09/21/2021 ST#2 STERI-SAFE MONTHLY TREATMENT $36.75
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $147.00

131615 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARING $439.13
Invoice Date Description Amount
09302021BECCHETT 09/29/2021 9-30-21 PAYROLL ATTACHMENT $439.13
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $439.13

131616 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable T I D $60.38
Invoice Date Description Amount
9-21-2021 10/01/2021 Acct #6241700000  service 8/21 - 9/21/2021 $60.38
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
950 - SRWA 950.11000 (Cash) $60.38

131617 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable TBA AUTO PARTS $2,159.12
Invoice Date Description Amount
AUG 2021 10/01/2021 AUG 2021 $2,159.12
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $2,136.01
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $23.11

131618 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable THATCHER COMPANY OF 
CALIFORNIA INC

$9,632.81

Invoice Date Description Amount
287612 09/30/2021 Liquid Chlorine - EMPTIES ($8,000.00)
287611 09/30/2021 Liquid Chlorine $17,632.81
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $9,632.81

131619 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable THORSEN'S-NORQUIST, INC. $602.68
Invoice Date Description Amount
1111741 09/27/2021 TPD INSTALLED CRACKED HOUSING CARTRIDGE 

& INSTALL VALVE ASSEMBL 
$602.68

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $602.68

131620 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable TOWNSEND PUBLIC AFFAIRS INC $10,000.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
17437 09/28/2021 Consulting services for July 2021 $5,000.00
17440 09/28/2021 Consulting services for August 2021 $5,000.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $5,000.00
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $5,000.00

131621 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable Trillium Solutions, Inc. $255.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
4398 09/29/2021 Manual GTFS Maintenance - September 2021 $255.00

Friday, October 8, 2021Pages: 12 of 17user: Jamie Gomes

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 10/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 10/7/2021

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221118','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221119','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221120','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221121','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221122','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221123','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221124','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221125','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $255.00

131622 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable TURF STAR $65.74
Invoice Date Description Amount
7193482-00 10/01/2021 SL19-961 $65.74
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
205 - Sports Facilities 205.11000 (Cash) $65.74

131623 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable TURLOCK CITY TOW INC $395.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
119528 10/06/2021 TOWING SERVICE FOR PD 8/14/21 - POL19-1342  

UNIT #505
$35.00

119894 10/06/2021 TOWING SERVICE FOR PD EVIDENCE TOW 8/19/21 $30.00
119893 10/06/2021 TOWING SERVICE FOR PD EVIDENCE TOW 8/19/21 $30.00
119892 10/06/2021 TOWING SERVICE FOR PD EVIDENCE TOW 8/19/21 $30.00
119891 10/06/2021 TOWING SERVICE FOR PD EVIDENCE TOW 8/19/21 $30.00
125413 10/06/2021 TOWING SERVICE FOR PD ON 8/25/21  POL15-1140 

UNIT#516
$35.00

125505 10/06/2021 TOWING SERVICE FOR PD ON 8/31/21 POL15-1136 
UNIT#509

$35.00

125422 10/06/2021 TOWING SERVICE FOR PD ON 9/2/21 POL17-1321 $30.00
117548 10/06/2021 TOWING SERVICE FOR PD ON 9/4/21  POL18-1332 

UNIT#526
$35.00

117547 10/06/2021 TOWING SERVICE FOR PD ON 9/4/21  POL19-1351  
UNIT#524

$35.00

126705 10/06/2021 TOWING SERVICE FOR PD ON 9/9/21  POL15-1136 $35.00
78670 10/06/2021 TOWING SERVICE FOR PD ON 9/11/21  POL18-1328 

UNIT#520
$35.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $395.00

131624 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable TURLOCK GOSPEL MISSION $11,871.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
21-003T 10/07/2021 July Rental/Security at FairGrounds $11,871.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $11,871.00

131625 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable TURLOCK JOURNAL $700.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
294155 09/28/2021 Turlock Journal Ad $350.00
294156 09/28/2021 Turlock Journal Ad $350.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $175.00
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $525.00

131626 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable TURLOCK SCAVENGER/SWEEPING $39,863.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
073121 09/24/2021 TURLOCK SCAVENGER - STREET SWEEPING $19,931.50
083121 09/24/2021 TURLOCK SCAVENGER - STREET SWEEPING $19,931.50
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
246 - Landscape Assessment 246.11000 (Cash) $15,945.20
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $23,917.80

Friday, October 8, 2021Pages: 13 of 17user: Jamie Gomes

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 10/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 10/7/2021

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221126','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221127','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221128','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221129','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221130','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

131627 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable US BANK OFFICE EQUIPMENT $928.61
Invoice Date Description Amount
453912578 10/06/2021 Lease agreement for 9 copiers 09/20/21 - 10/19/21 $928.61
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $755.64
405 - Building 405.11000 (Cash) $37.54
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $48.94
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $48.95
505 - Fleet 505.11000 (Cash) $37.54

131628 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable VERIZON WIRELESS $405.76
Invoice Date Description Amount
9887682051 09/21/2021 FIRE - AUG 04 - SEP 03, 2021 $405.76
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $225.21
240 - Small Equipment Replacement 240.11000 (Cash) $180.55

131629 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable Viking Shred, LLC $252.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
51108611 10/06/2021 CITY WIDE SHREDDING - SEP 2021 $252.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $230.00
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $22.00

131630 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable WEST YOST ASSOCIATES $82,861.23
Invoice Date Description Amount
2046439 10/01/2021 SRWA - Program Mgmt Services for 2021-22 for 

August 2021
$82,861.23

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
950 - SRWA 950.11000 (Cash) $82,861.23

131631 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable WOOD RODGERS INC $431.25
Invoice Date Description Amount
149473 09/27/2021 Services Rendered through 8/31/21 $431.25
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $431.25

131632 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable ZEE MEDICAL SERVICE CO $216.33
Invoice Date Description Amount
66275168 10/06/2021 MEDICAL SUPPLIES FOR OPERATIONS $77.40
66275177 10/06/2021 MEDICAL SUPPLIES FOR TRANSIT CENTER $44.70
66275167 10/06/2021 MEDICAL SUPPLIES FOR WATER $94.23
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $77.40
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $94.23
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $44.70

131633 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable AGUILAR, JESSE $30.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
10493851 09/24/2021 CHECK REFUND FOR SOFTBALL $30.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
205 - Sports Facilities 205.11000 (Cash) $30.00

Friday, October 8, 2021Pages: 14 of 17user: Jamie Gomes

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 10/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 10/7/2021

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221131','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221132','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221133','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221134','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221135','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221136','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221137','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

131634 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable Clark, Jessica $350.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
TR 4619 Per Diem 09/29/2021 Basic School Resource Officer - 10/18 to 10/22 - 

Corona
$350.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $350.00

131635 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable Corbin & Associates, Inc. $385.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
TR 4619 Tuition 09/29/2021 Basic School Resource Officer Course - 10/18 to 10/22 

- J. Clark
$385.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $385.00

131636 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable GONZALES, RAYMOND $128.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
TR 4624 Per Diem 10/01/2021 TR 4624 - Distribution Certification Review - 10/12-

10/14/21
$128.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $128.00

131637 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable Green , Rich $130.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
TR4621 Per Diem 09/29/2021 CalAct Autumn Conference -10/26/21-10/29/21 

Monterey 
$130.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $130.00

131638 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable KIDDER, HUNTER $128.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
TR 4624 Per Diem 10/01/2021 TR 4624 - Distribution Certification Review - 10/12-

10/14/21
$128.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
420 - WATER 420.11000 (Cash) $128.00

131639 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable MARCHY, JENNIFER $1,500.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
2022-00000262 09/24/2021 REFUND FOR SUMMER BREAK CAMP $1,500.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $1,500.00

131640 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable Nicastro , Carrie $151.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
8/16/21 09/21/2021 Covid Test Reimbursement $151.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $151.00

131641 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable PIKE, LARRY $227.93
Invoice Date Description Amount
BP 21-1035 09/17/2021 PARTIAL REFUND ON BP#21-1035 $227.93
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $127.93
405 - Building 405.11000 (Cash) $100.00

Friday, October 8, 2021Pages: 15 of 17user: Jamie Gomes

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 10/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 10/7/2021

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221138','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221139','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221140','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221141','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221142','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221143','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221144','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221145','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

131642 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable Silveira, James $128.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
TR 4620 Per Diem 09/24/2021 CW Fleet - Ontario - 10/18 to 10/20 $128.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $128.00

131643 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable Stanislaus County, Social Services , 
Attention: Pam

$7,440.00

Invoice Date Description Amount
2021-00001736 06/30/2021 Refund for Canceled Passes due to New Fare 

Structure 
$7,440.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $7,440.00

131644 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable Toste, Jessica $130.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
TR4621 Per Diem 09/29/2021 CalAct Autumn Conference -10/26/21-10/29/21 

Monterey 
$130.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $130.00

131645 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable WOOTTEN, KIM $1,856.47
Invoice Date Description Amount
10497711 09/24/2021 REFUND FOR DISTANCE LEARNING CAMP $1,856.47
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $1,856.47

131646 10/07/2021 Open Accounts Payable York, Wayne $110.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
TR4621 Per Diem 09/29/2021 CalAct Autumn Conference -10/26/21-10/29/21 

Monterey 
$110.00

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $110.00

Type Check Totals: 99 Transactions $951,168.15
AP - Accounts Payable Totals

Checks Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount
Open 98 $939,798.15 $0.00
Reconciled 0 $0.00 $0.00
Voided 1 $11,370.00 $0.00
Stopped 0 $0.00 $0.00
Total 99 $951,168.15 $0.00

All Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount
Open 98 $939,798.15 $0.00
Reconciled 0 $0.00 $0.00
Voided 1 $11,370.00 $0.00
Stopped 0 $0.00 $0.00

Friday, October 8, 2021Pages: 16 of 17user: Jamie Gomes

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 10/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 10/7/2021

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221146','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221147','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221148','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221149','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221150','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

Total 99 $951,168.15 $0.00
Grand Totals:

Checks Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount
Open 98 $939,798.15 $0.00
Reconciled 0 $0.00 $0.00
Voided 1 $11,370.00 $0.00
Stopped 0 $0.00 $0.00
Total 99 $951,168.15 $0.00

All Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount
Open 98 $939,798.15 $0.00
Reconciled 0 $0.00 $0.00
Voided 1 $11,370.00 $0.00
Stopped 0 $0.00 $0.00
Total 99 $951,168.15 $0.00

Friday, October 8, 2021Pages: 17 of 17user: Jamie Gomes

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 10/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 10/7/2021



Bank Account: AP - Accounts Payable
Check 10/14/2021 131669 Accounts Payable A-Z BUS SALES INC 780.12

Invoice Date Description Amount.
02P484532 10/08/2021 TRA15-1038PPP 780.12

Check 10/14/2021 131670 Accounts Payable AECOM TECHNICAL SERVICES INC 4,544.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
2000540725 10/07/2021 August 7 - September 3, 2021 4,544.00

Check 10/14/2021 131671 Accounts Payable AIRGAS NCN 1,139.80

Invoice Date Description Amount.
9983253412 10/06/2021 CYLINDER RENTAL INVOICE 40.70
9983252993 10/06/2021 CYLINDER RENTAL INVOICE 1,099.10

Check 10/14/2021 131672 Accounts Payable AT&T MOBILITY 185.92

Invoice Date Description Amount.
7897X09272021 10/11/2021 WIRELESS CHARGES FOR FIRE IPADS - SEPTEMBER 2021 185.92

Check 10/14/2021 131673 Accounts Payable AT&T/SBC 69.79

Invoice Date Description Amount.
Fire-10/1/21 10/11/2021 Acct# 233 841-5391 333 1/ Fire Dept 65.26
RelayTDD-10/1/21 10/11/2021 Acct# 248 134-2929 655 9/ California Relay Srvc TDD 4.53

Check 10/14/2021 131674 Accounts Payable BARNES WELDING SUPPLY 3,321.69

Invoice Date Description Amount.
62846880 10/05/2021 Scotchman 24" Brake - Electrical Mechanical 3,321.69

Check 10/14/2021 131675 Accounts Payable BURTON'S FIRE, INC 21,250.01

Invoice Date Description Amount.
W 79800 10/11/2021 ENGINE #33 - STARTER DRAGGING AND REPAIR 20,625.26
W 80002 10/11/2021 ENGINE #31 - CODE 3 WARNING LIGHTS 624.75

Check 10/14/2021 131676 Accounts Payable CAPTUREPOINT 13,941.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
SI-67790 09/29/2021 ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION 2021 13,941.00

Check 10/14/2021 131677 Accounts Payable CAROLLO ENGINEERS 141,808.09

City of Turlock

Payment Batch Register
Bank Account: AP - Accounts Payable

Batch Date: 10/14/2021

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account
Transaction

Amount

User: Jamie Gomes Pages: 1 of 15 10/14/2021 12:36:43 PM



Invoice Date Description Amount.
FB14699 10/07/2021 15-39D SEC. CLAR. #5 & DENITRIFIC CONST MGMNT SVCS thru Aug 2021 16,678.47
FB14940 10/07/2021 18-69 Surface Water Dist System Improve Phase 1 thru 8/31/21 42,158.31
FB14824 10/07/2021 18-69 Surface Water Dist System Improve Phase 1 thru 8/31/21 82,971.31

Check 10/14/2021 131678 Accounts Payable CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS 170.29

Invoice Date Description Amount.
0780628100121 10/11/2021 8203 13 001 0780628 / 244 N Broadway (PSF TV) 170.29

Check 10/14/2021 131679 Accounts Payable CONDOR EARTH TECH INC 17,777.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
85694 10/07/2021 8/24/21-9/23/21 17,777.00

Check 10/14/2021 131680 Accounts Payable CRAIG SAFETY GROUP 4,125.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
21878 10/07/2021 LOTO Development 9/14 - 9/22/21 4,125.00

Check 10/14/2021 131681 Accounts Payable CULLIGAN INC 39.90

Invoice Date Description Amount.
9/30/2021 10/07/2021 Acct # 180900 De-Ionized Water for WQC/Lab - October 2021 39.90

Check 10/14/2021 131682 Accounts Payable DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT 1,273.42

Invoice Date Description Amount.
7/1/21-9/30/21 10/13/2021 3rd Qtr 2021 Disability Access Fee 1,273.42

Check 10/14/2021 131683 Accounts Payable EDGES ELECTRICAL GROUP LLC 24,618.20

Invoice Date Description Amount.
S5319705.001 10/05/2021 Leotek cobra head streetlights 23,490.16
S5362343.001 10/05/2021 Safety supplies 51.39
S5365208.001 10/05/2021 Rapid tap bits 21.60
S5367714.001 10/05/2021 Tools for truck #625 36.42
S5367714.002 10/05/2021 Tools for truck #625 366.75
S5367734.001 10/05/2021 Batteries for truck #625 326.40
S5373670.001 10/05/2021 WQC supplies for Lab roof exhaust fan. 64.31
S5373670.002 10/05/2021 Oxide Inhibitor 33.63
S5373670.003 10/05/2021 Materials for the Lab roof exhaust fan. 59.41

City of Turlock

Payment Batch Register
Bank Account: AP - Accounts Payable

Batch Date: 10/14/2021

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account
Transaction

Amount

User: Jamie Gomes Pages: 2 of 15 10/14/2021 12:36:43 PM



S5373670.004 10/05/2021 Materials for exhaust fan on the Lab roof. 118.80
S5372181.001 10/05/2021 Deep Alum Box 49.33

Check 10/14/2021 131684 Accounts Payable ENTERPRISE HOLDINGS LLC 464.15

Invoice Date Description Amount.
28013004 10/11/2021 STRIKE TEAM RENTAL - QUIMBY 464.15

Check 10/14/2021 131685 Accounts Payable EQUIFAX 10.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
6533101 10/08/2021 EQUIFAX-CREDIT CHECK SERVICES 10.00

Check 10/14/2021 131686 Accounts Payable EXPRESS PRESS 779.90

Invoice Date Description Amount.
45642 09/29/2021 EXPRESS PRESS - T SHIRTS 779.90

Check 10/14/2021 131687 Accounts Payable Faro Technologies, Inc. 54,562.14

Invoice Date Description Amount.
91329776 10/06/2021 3D Scanner/Power Block/Tripod/Complete Care Yr 4 43,878.97
91321335 10/06/2021 SCENE/HARD LOCK/SCENE 3Y/DIGITAL DOWNLOAD 10,683.17

Check 10/14/2021 131688 Accounts Payable FASTENAL COMPANY INC 536.47

Invoice Date Description Amount.
CATUR174240 10/05/2021 Screws, washers 156.76
CATUR175981 10/06/2021 Parts 106.92
CATUR174165 10/08/2021 DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 182.36
CATUR175777 10/08/2021 Wire connectors for end points repairs 90.43

Check 10/14/2021 131689 Accounts Payable FISHER SCIENTIFIC PRO INC 611.07

Invoice Date Description Amount.
5969554 10/06/2021 LAB SUPPLIES 44.73
3494466 10/06/2021 LAB SUPPLIES 566.34

Check 10/14/2021 131690 Accounts Payable GDR ENGINEERING INC 26,375.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
27321 10/07/2021 SR01, 19-40 On Call Land Surveying Services August 2021 700.00
27320 10/07/2021 SR01, 20-027 Drinking Water Chlorination August 2021 2,975.00
27319 10/07/2021 SR04, 20-001 Southeast Quadrant Road Rehabilitation August 2021 22,700.00

City of Turlock

Payment Batch Register
Bank Account: AP - Accounts Payable

Batch Date: 10/14/2021

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account
Transaction

Amount

User: Jamie Gomes Pages: 3 of 15 10/14/2021 12:36:43 PM



Check 10/14/2021 131691 Accounts Payable GEOANALYTICAL LAB INC 1,554.37

Invoice Date Description Amount.
H1I0903 10/06/2021 MONTHLY WASTEWATER SAMPLES 141.69
H1G1313 10/06/2021 SEMI-ANNUAL WATER SUPPLY 1,412.68

Check 10/14/2021 131692 Accounts Payable GILLIG LLC 619.54

Invoice Date Description Amount.
40850647 10/08/2021 TRA18-1060PP 43.87
40851548 10/08/2021 TRA18-1058PP 575.67

Check 10/14/2021 131693 Accounts Payable GOMES & SONS INC, JOE M 27,875.67

Invoice Date Description Amount.
46592 10/11/2021 Fuel for Fire #3 1,307.47
46742 10/11/2021 CUST #24090 - Fuel Expense for 9/16-9/30/21 26,568.20

Check 10/14/2021 131694 Accounts Payable GRAINGER INC, W W 1,116.13

Invoice Date Description Amount.
9056576680 10/08/2021 Parts 731.05
9076350330 10/08/2021 AD16-4507 385.08

Check 10/14/2021 131695 Accounts Payable Granberg & Associates 20,375.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
41 10/08/2021 SRWA Contract General Manager for 2021-22 for Sept 2021 20,375.00

Check 10/14/2021 131696 Accounts Payable GREEN HORIZON INC 240.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
32306 10/11/2021 901 HIGH ST - OCT 2021 120.00
32307 10/11/2021 1205 LAMBERT WAY - OCT 2021 120.00

Check 10/14/2021 131697 Accounts Payable GROENIGER & COMPANY 2,380.71

Invoice Date Description Amount.
1662296 10/08/2021 Parts 2,169.37
1650115 10/08/2021 Parts 211.34

Check 10/14/2021 131698 Accounts Payable HACH COMPANY 6,293.01

Invoice Date Description Amount.

City of Turlock

Payment Batch Register
Bank Account: AP - Accounts Payable

Batch Date: 10/14/2021

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account
Transaction

Amount

User: Jamie Gomes Pages: 4 of 15 10/14/2021 12:36:43 PM



12625613 10/07/2021 Claros Summit Registration - David Huff 300.00
12655765 10/07/2021 Data Management System 9/27/21-9/26/22 2,326.04
12649806 10/07/2021 Digital pH Sensor 2,321.78
12591304 10/11/2021 Test Kits 1,345.19

Check 10/14/2021 131699 Accounts Payable HD SUPPLY FACILITIES MAINTENANCE
LTD

4,782.33

Invoice Date Description Amount.
736799 10/06/2021 LAB SUPPLIES 630.55
736939 10/06/2021 LAB SUPPLIES 2,084.95
735191 10/06/2021 LAB SUPPLIES 1,656.23
736815 10/06/2021 LAB SUPPLIES 410.60

Check 10/14/2021 131700 Accounts Payable HERC RENTALS, INC. 786.88

Invoice Date Description Amount.
32348289-001 10/07/2021 1 TON PORT AIR CONDITIONER W/ HEAT 120 RENTAL 786.88

Check 10/14/2021 131701 Accounts Payable HILMAR LUMBER INC 1,190.66

Invoice Date Description Amount.
504569 10/05/2021 Parts for repair of acid phase heat exchanger 465.19
504728 10/06/2021 Supplies 196.01
504733 10/06/2021 Supplies 35.53
503200 10/06/2021 Supplies 371.12
505225 10/08/2021 Parts 122.81

Check 10/14/2021 131702 Accounts Payable HILMAR READY MIX 201.46

Invoice Date Description Amount.
11114 10/08/2021 1345 FOREST 111.92
11106 10/08/2021 STARBUCKS / GOLDEN ST 89.54

Check 10/14/2021 131703 Accounts Payable HORRILLO , KENNETH CRAIG 650.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
46-21 10/08/2021 LEAD BASED PAINT SAMPLING SURVEY COSTS FOR 2701 DOW ST. 650.00

Check 10/14/2021 131704 Accounts Payable ITRON INC 78,775.65

Invoice Date Description Amount.
598574 10/08/2021 HOSTING SERVICES 9/1-9/30/21 2,755.61

City of Turlock

Payment Batch Register
Bank Account: AP - Accounts Payable

Batch Date: 10/14/2021

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account
Transaction

Amount

User: Jamie Gomes Pages: 5 of 15 10/14/2021 12:36:43 PM



600308 10/08/2021 ANTENNA 6,176.84
600010 10/08/2021 PULSER ENDPOINTS 45,220.87
600011 10/08/2021 PULSER ENDPOINTS 24,622.33

Check 10/14/2021 131705 Accounts Payable J A MOMANEY SERVICES INC 3,910.51

Invoice Date Description Amount.
149861 10/05/2021 PPB Adjustable Frame for signals 293.29
150052 10/05/2021 PPB Base Model, Back mounting plate, PB adapter plate 467.09
150439 10/05/2021 Globes for light fixtures 2,498.38
150469 10/05/2021 Traffic Signal Parts 651.75

Check 10/14/2021 131706 Accounts Payable JESTER AUTO WORKS 4,759.80

Invoice Date Description Amount.
6177 10/11/2021 POL16-13030 FRONT END DAMAGE 4,759.80

Check 10/14/2021 131707 Accounts Payable KLEINFELDER INC 3,386.50

Invoice Date Description Amount.
001344903 10/07/2021 SR07, 20-043 Equipment Bays at TRWQCF 8/16/21-9/12/21 3,386.50

Check 10/14/2021 131708 Accounts Payable KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS
SOLUTIONS USA INC

7,087.50

Invoice Date Description Amount.
50301140 10/11/2021 ON BASE UPGRADE PROJECT 52.50
50230425 06/30/2021 ON BASE UPGRADE PROJECT 6,352.50
50192344 06/30/2021 ON BASE UPGRADE PROJECT 682.50

Check 10/14/2021 131709 Accounts Payable LANCASTER PAINTING 3,928.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
13-11811 10/11/2021 CONCRETE FLOORING FOR FLEET OFFICE 3,928.00

Check 10/14/2021 131710 Accounts Payable LEHIGH HANSON INC 708.41

Invoice Date Description Amount.
2282239 09/29/2021 LEHIGH - ASPHALT FOR STREETS 79.88
2285122 09/29/2021 LEHIGH - ASPHALT FOR STREETS 75.93
2286081 09/29/2021 LEHIGH - ASPHALT FOR STREETS 80.54
2287976 09/29/2021 LEHIGH - ASPHALT FOR STREETS 160.42
2288512 09/29/2021 LEHIGH - ASPHALT FOR STREETS 80.54

City of Turlock

Payment Batch Register
Bank Account: AP - Accounts Payable

Batch Date: 10/14/2021

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account
Transaction

Amount

User: Jamie Gomes Pages: 6 of 15 10/14/2021 12:36:43 PM



2288995 09/29/2021 LEHIGH - ASPHALT FOR STREETS 77.25
2289483 09/29/2021 LEHIGH - ASPHALT FOR STREETS 75.28
2290467 09/29/2021 LEHIGH - ASPHALT FOR STREETS 78.57

Check 10/14/2021 131711 Accounts Payable LINCOLN EQUIPMENT INC 1,870.41

Invoice Date Description Amount.
49731749 09/29/2021 LINCOLN - PULSAR PLUS BRIQUETTES 1,870.41

Check 10/14/2021 131712 Accounts Payable MICROBIZ SECURITY COMPANY 19,164.85

Invoice Date Description Amount.
64382 10/11/2021 Limited Maintenance Agreement 7/1/21-6/30/22 11,990.00
64754 10/11/2021 HONEYWELL PROWATCH SOFTWARE SERVICE AGREEMENT 7/1/21-6/30/22 7,174.85

Check 10/14/2021 131713 Accounts Payable MO-CAL OFFICE SOLUTIONS INC 3,226.87

Invoice Date Description Amount.
AR357786 10/14/2021 HR 8/7/21-9/6/21 (TASKALFA 5052CI) 481.03
AR357787 10/14/2021 PLANNING 8/8/21-9/7/21 (TASKALFA 5002I) 60.87
AR357788 10/14/2021 RECREATION 8/8/21-9/7/21 (TASKALFA 5002I) 35.93
AR359924 10/14/2021 PD REPORT WRITING - ANNUAL PMT 9/2/21-9/1/22 (ECOSYS M3655IDN) 195.46
AR358001 10/14/2021 PD EOC - ANNUAL PAYMENT 9/22/21-9/21/22 (M6535CIDN) 194.99
AR359923 10/14/2021 ANIMAL CONTROL - ANNUAL PAYMENT 9/22/21-9/21/22 (TASKALFA 3501I) 195.46
AR358081 10/14/2021 PD OPS - ANNUAL PAYMENT 9/22/21-9/21/22 (TASKALFA 4501I) 300.98
AR358446 10/14/2021 PFM - ANNUAL PAYMENT 10/14/21-10/13/22 (KM-1820) 205.25
AR358556 10/14/2021 FINANCE AP 8/21/21-9/20/21 (TASKALFA 3551CI) 276.69
AR358557A 10/14/2021 HOUSING - QTRLY PAYMENT 9/20/21-12/19/21 (TASKALFA 3552CI) 175.27
AR358557B 10/14/2021 HOUSING - QTRLY OVERAGE 6/20/21-9/19/21 (TASKALFA 3552CI) 141.79
AR358558 10/14/2021 ENGINEERING 8/2/21-9/20/21 (TASKALFA 3552CI) 93.30
AR358559 10/14/2021 PD RECORDS 8/22/21-9/21/21 (TASKALFA 6002I) 19.40
AR358560 10/14/2021 ADMIN SERVICES 8/21/21-9/20/21 (TASKALFA 6002I) 38.86
AR358561 10/14/2021 MS ADMIN (SPLIT 3) 6/21/21-9/20/21 (TASKALFA 3501I) 43.54
AR359085 10/14/2021 MS ADMIN/VARIOUS - SEPTEMBER 2021 (TASKALFA 3051CI) 72.52
AR359489 10/14/2021 HR 9/7/21-10/6/21 (TASKALFA 5052CI) 569.30
AR359490 10/14/2021 PLANNING 9/8/21-10/7/21 (TASKALFA 5002I) 41.59
AR359491 10/14/2021 PD ADMIN 9/5/21-10/4/21 (TASKALFA 5002I) 48.13
AR359492 10/14/2021 RECREATION 9/8/21-10/7/21 (TASKALFA 5002I) 36.51

Check 10/14/2021 131714 Accounts Payable Myers & Sons Hi-Way Safety Inc 3,488.23

City of Turlock

Payment Batch Register
Bank Account: AP - Accounts Payable

Batch Date: 10/14/2021

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account
Transaction

Amount

User: Jamie Gomes Pages: 7 of 15 10/14/2021 12:36:43 PM



Invoice Date Description Amount.
121008 10/08/2021 SAFETY ITEMS FOR UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 3,488.23

Check 10/14/2021 131715 Accounts Payable N & S TRACTOR INC 643.80

Invoice Date Description Amount.
IT18002 10/08/2021 ST12-4385A 643.80

Check 10/14/2021 131716 Accounts Payable NAPA AUTO PARTS 64.91

Invoice Date Description Amount.
771618 10/08/2021 TRA15-1051PPP 70.10
771619 10/08/2021 Credit for inv #771618 (5.19)

Check 10/14/2021 131717 Accounts Payable NEXT LEVEL PARTS INC 1,083.17

Invoice Date Description Amount.
8577-363483 10/08/2021 NOTE 1038PP 14.55
8577-363432 10/08/2021 POL08-1282 166.81
8577-363445 10/08/2021 THRD SEALANT HI TEMP 63.92
8577-363557 10/08/2021 Bus Auto Parts 63.80
8577-363537 10/08/2021 Auto Parts for Streets 7.48
8577-363555 10/08/2021 Auto Parts for PD 137.47
8577-363529 10/08/2021 TRA15-1038PP 391.04
8577-363628 10/08/2021 1049PP 63.80
8577-363767 10/08/2021 IT08-341 142.31
8577-363875 10/08/2021 ST99-4818 155.81
8577-363179 10/08/2021 Credit for inv #363162 (8.32)
8577-363470 10/08/2021 Credit for inv #s 363162, 363655, 312206, 333766 (218.05)
8577-363520 10/08/2021 TRA15-1051PPP 102.55

Check 10/14/2021 131718 Accounts Payable OREILLY AUTO PARTS 427.39

Invoice Date Description Amount.
2800-143033 10/08/2021 POL12-1121 155.12
2800-141776 10/08/2021 TRA15-1038PP 272.27

Check 10/14/2021 131719 Accounts Payable P G & E 81.63

Invoice Date Description Amount.
Columbia-10/3/21 10/11/2021 6180280303-3 / 600 Columbia St 8.11

City of Turlock

Payment Batch Register
Bank Account: AP - Accounts Payable

Batch Date: 10/14/2021

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account
Transaction

Amount

User: Jamie Gomes Pages: 8 of 15 10/14/2021 12:36:43 PM



High-10/3/21 10/11/2021 0221941093-9 / 595 High St 8.11
RBoesch-10/3/21 10/11/2021 4388605407-1 / 275 N Orange 20.83
Fire#3-10/6/21 10/11/2021 2087893140-9 / 501 E Monte Vista Ave 44.58

Check 10/14/2021 131720 Accounts Payable PAXIN PACIFIC EXCAVATION INC, TIM 14,668.76

Invoice Date Description Amount.
PP1/CP18-54 10/07/2021 18-54 Inter. Improvements at Tully & Tuolumne 7/1/21-7/7/21 14,668.76

Check 10/14/2021 131721 Accounts Payable Platt Electric Supply 46.06

Invoice Date Description Amount.
2A22243 10/05/2021 Status indicators 22.29
2B01009 10/05/2021 Fuses for Instruments 23.77

Check 10/14/2021 131722 Accounts Payable PROTECH SECURITY/ELEC INC 588.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
13022 10/11/2021 CITY HALL MONTHLY MONITORING - OCT 2021 98.00
13023 10/11/2021 PSF MONTHLY MONITORING - OCT 2021 490.00

Check 10/14/2021 131723 Accounts Payable QUICKSCORES LLC 385.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
211928 09/29/2021 QUICKSCORES - FALL SOFTBALL SEASON 385.00

Check 10/14/2021 131724 Accounts Payable R3 Consulting Group, Inc. 2,526.25

Invoice Date Description Amount.
10660 10/07/2021 Solid Waste Rate Study-September 2021 2,526.25

Check 10/14/2021 131725 Accounts Payable REED INC, GEORGE 256.10

Invoice Date Description Amount.
100248891 09/29/2021 GEORGE REED - ASPHALT 84.00
100249014 09/29/2021 GEORGE REED - ASPHALT 84.82
100249661 09/29/2021 GEORGE REED - ASPHALT 87.28

Check 10/14/2021 131726 Accounts Payable RICHARDS WATSON & GERSHON 3,412.50

Invoice Date Description Amount.
233591 10/08/2021 Profession legal services for Successor LMI - August 2021 3,412.50

Check 10/14/2021 131727 Accounts Payable ROLAND PHD,JOCELYN E 1,000.00

City of Turlock

Payment Batch Register
Bank Account: AP - Accounts Payable

Batch Date: 10/14/2021

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account
Transaction

Amount

User: Jamie Gomes Pages: 9 of 15 10/14/2021 12:36:43 PM



Invoice Date Description Amount.
19540 10/11/2021 FIRE - OCTOBER 2021 CONTRACT 1,000.00

Check 10/14/2021 131728 Accounts Payable RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF
CALIFORNIA, INC.

1,495.84

Invoice Date Description Amount.
3025137373 10/08/2021 FR08-286 727.95
3024470908 10/08/2021 TRA15-1051PPP 391.05
3025077923 10/08/2021 V #1130 12.95
3025059792 10/08/2021 MOTOR AND FAN ASY 363.89

Check 10/14/2021 131729 Accounts Payable SAFE-T-LITE CO INC 1,814.81

Invoice Date Description Amount.
378081 09/29/2021 SAFE-T-LITE - PORTUGUESE FESTIVAL 436.04
378080 09/29/2021 SAFE T LITE - TAQUERIA GRAND OPENING 259.10
378309 09/29/2021 SAFE-T-LITE - PITMAN PREVIEW OF CHAMPIONS 584.78
378308 09/29/2021 SAFE-T-LITE - LAC 439.84
378049 10/08/2021 NO PARKING SIGNS 95.05

Check 10/14/2021 131730 Accounts Payable SEMITORR GROUP, INC. 2,403.90

Invoice Date Description Amount.
5427012 10/07/2021 VAREC-BIOGAS 2,403.90

Check 10/14/2021 131731 Accounts Payable SHARPENING SHOP 537.63

Invoice Date Description Amount.
361490 10/08/2021 CL13-848 173.79
361586 10/08/2021 NARROW V BELT 363.84

Check 10/14/2021 131732 Accounts Payable SMITH CHEVROLET CO INC dba SMITH
COLLISON

2,176.86

Invoice Date Description Amount.
253601 10/11/2021 POL16-1301 FRONT END DAMAGE 2,176.86

Check 10/14/2021 131733 Accounts Payable STATE WATER RESOURCE CTNL 80.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
RUCKER 10/08/2021 D2 DISTRIBUTION CERTIFICATION REQUEST 80.00

Check 10/14/2021 131734 Accounts Payable STOMMEL INC DBA LEHR AUTO 105.08

City of Turlock

Payment Batch Register
Bank Account: AP - Accounts Payable

Batch Date: 10/14/2021

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account
Transaction

Amount

User: Jamie Gomes Pages: 10 of 15 10/14/2021 12:36:43 PM



ELECTRIC

Invoice Date Description Amount.
SI65758 10/08/2021 ITEM 5601B 105.08

Check 10/14/2021 131735 Accounts Payable TANK TOWN MEDIA LLC 292.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
78239 10/07/2021 Accounting Technician 142.00
78240 10/07/2021 fleet maintenance 150.00

Check 10/14/2021 131736 Accounts Payable TBA AUTO PARTS 1,732.33

Invoice Date Description Amount.
SEPT 2021 10/08/2021 9/1-9/30/21 1,732.33

Check 10/14/2021 131737 Accounts Payable THE MCCLATCHY COMPANY LLC 1,372.08

Invoice Date Description Amount.
56856 10/07/2021 Water Conservation Advertisement 1,372.08

Check 10/14/2021 131738 Accounts Payable THERMO KING MODESTO INC 617.86

Invoice Date Description Amount.
MI67272 10/08/2021 TRA15-1040PPP 617.86

Check 10/14/2021 131739 Accounts Payable TID 1,201.56

Invoice Date Description Amount.
044010040 2nd 10/05/2021 2nd installment for 2021 136.00
044010039 2nd 10/05/2021 2nd installment for 2021 680.00
044015008 2nd 10/05/2021 2nd installment for 2021 385.56

Check 10/14/2021 131740 Accounts Payable TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc. 269,192.52

Invoice Date Description Amount.
PP2/CP19-50 10/07/2021 19-50 Sanitary Sewer Lift Stations 9, 42, & 55 Upgrade July 2021 177,680.40
PP3/CP19-50 10/07/2021 19-50 Sanitary Sewer Lift Stations 9, 42, & 55 Upgrades Aug 2021 91,512.12

Check 10/14/2021 131741 Accounts Payable TOWNSEND PUBLIC AFFAIRS INC 5,000.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
17547 10/05/2021 Consulting services for Sep 2021 5,000.00

Check 10/14/2021 131742 Accounts Payable TRIMAX MOWING SYSTEMS 557.42

City of Turlock

Payment Batch Register
Bank Account: AP - Accounts Payable

Batch Date: 10/14/2021

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account
Transaction

Amount

User: Jamie Gomes Pages: 11 of 15 10/14/2021 12:36:43 PM



Invoice Date Description Amount.
INV2006650 10/08/2021 AD20-4779 557.42

Check 10/14/2021 131743 Accounts Payable TURLOCK JOURNAL 100.16

Invoice Date Description Amount.
294124 10/07/2021 Police officer Trainee Advertising 100.16

Check 10/14/2021 131744 Accounts Payable TURLOCK UMPIRE GROUP 8,690.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
2021-04 09/29/2021 TURLOCK UMPIRE GROUP SOFTBALL GAMES 4,482.00
2021-03 09/29/2021 TURLOCK UMPIRE GROUP SOFTBALL GAMES 4,208.00

Check 10/14/2021 131745 Accounts Payable UNITED RENTAL INC 206.63

Invoice Date Description Amount.
195090368-001 10/08/2021 WORK TO REPAIR AIR TOOL 206.63

Check 10/14/2021 131746 Accounts Payable UNITED SAMARITANS FDT INC 9,101.36

Invoice Date Description Amount.
FY 21/22 DRAW 1 10/11/2021 UNITED SAMARITANS FOUNDATION PUBLIC SERVICE-FOODBOX FY 21-2022 9,101.36

Check 10/14/2021 131747 Accounts Payable UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC 6,550.95

Invoice Date Description Amount.
49507288 10/07/2021 Sodium Bisulfite 6,550.95

Check 10/14/2021 131748 Accounts Payable US BANK 2,200.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
6269716 10/08/2021 3rd Party Trustee Services 2012 Sewer Revenue Bond 2,200.00

Check 10/14/2021 131749 Accounts Payable USALCO MODESTO PLANT LLC 10,024.03

Invoice Date Description Amount.
20191691 06/30/2021 Aluminum Chlorohydrate 10,024.03

Check 10/14/2021 131750 Accounts Payable UTILITY TELECOMP GROUP LLC 1,738.77

Invoice Date Description Amount.
10/01/21 10/11/2021 Acct #131803 - Transit Center telephone 504.50
10/01/2021 10/11/2021 Acct #128444 - Public Safety internet service 681.78
10/1/21 10/11/2021 Acct #127022 - City-wide internet service 552.49

City of Turlock

Payment Batch Register
Bank Account: AP - Accounts Payable

Batch Date: 10/14/2021

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account
Transaction

Amount

User: Jamie Gomes Pages: 12 of 15 10/14/2021 12:36:43 PM



Check 10/14/2021 131751 Accounts Payable WINTON-IRELAND STROM AND GREEN
INSURANCE

122.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
782632 10/11/2021 Add: 2021 Ford F250 ST21-4817 VIN #06709 122.00

Check 10/14/2021 131752 Accounts Payable ZEE MEDICAL SERVICE CO 152.29

Invoice Date Description Amount.
66275166 10/11/2021 MEDICAL SUPPLIES FOR PARKS 152.29

Check 10/14/2021 131753 Accounts Payable Allison , Gavin 640.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
TR 4615 PER DIEM 10/11/2021 Basic SWAT - Elk Grove - 10/18 to 10/29 640.00

Check 10/14/2021 131754 Accounts Payable Arroyo , Elias 640.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
TR 4615 PER DIEM 10/11/2021 Basic SWAT - Elk Grove - 10/18 to 10/29 640.00

Check 10/14/2021 131755 Accounts Payable Beech , John Paul 640.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
TR 4615 PER DIEM 10/11/2021 Basic SWAT - Elk Grove - 10/18 to 10/29 640.00

Check 10/14/2021 131756 Accounts Payable BENDER , CAROLYN 10.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
ONLINE 9-17-21 10/12/2021 A/C REFUND 10.00

Check 10/14/2021 131757 Accounts Payable CHRISTENSEN , JUDY 105.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
R21-003658 10/12/2021 A/C REFUND 105.00

Check 10/14/2021 131758 Accounts Payable CITY OF STOCKTON C/O VERONICA
SEGURA

150.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
R21-003558 10/12/2021 A/C REFUND 150.00

Check 10/14/2021 131759 Accounts Payable DALMAN , SARAH 40.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
ONLINE 9-26-21 10/12/2021 A/C REFUND 40.00

City of Turlock

Payment Batch Register
Bank Account: AP - Accounts Payable

Batch Date: 10/14/2021

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account
Transaction

Amount

User: Jamie Gomes Pages: 13 of 15 10/14/2021 12:36:43 PM



Check 10/14/2021 131760 Accounts Payable Fortado , Richard 500.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
TR 4622 Per Diem 10/08/2021 Advanced Collision Inv. - Pleasant Hill - 10/18 to 10/29 500.00

Check 10/14/2021 131761 Accounts Payable JIMENEZ , ANA 10.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
ONLINE 8-19-21 10/12/2021 A/C REFUND 10.00

Check 10/14/2021 131762 Accounts Payable RAMOS , ALICE 137.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
R21-003533 10/12/2021 A/C REFUND 137.00

Check 10/14/2021 131763 Accounts Payable Shaw , Dave 222.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
TR 4566 Per Diem 10/07/2021 SLI Session #6 - 10/10 to 10/13 - LA 222.00

Check 10/14/2021 131764 Accounts Payable Souza , Yolanda 57.26

Invoice Date Description Amount.
724 N Broadway 10/11/2021 Reimbursement of overage payment from FTHB loan payoff 57.26

Check 10/14/2021 131765 Accounts Payable SSDTTF 972.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
TR 4615 Tuition 10/11/2021 Basic SWAT - Elk Grove - 10/18 to 10/19 - G. Allison 972.00

Check 10/14/2021 131766 Accounts Payable SSDTTF 972.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
TR 4615 Tuition 10/11/2021 Basic SWAT - Elk Grove - 10/18 to 10/29 - E. Arroyo 972.00

Check 10/14/2021 131767 Accounts Payable SSDTTF 972.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
TR 4615 Tuition 10/11/2021 Basic SWAT - Elk Grove - 10/18 to 10/29 - J. Beech 972.00

Check 10/14/2021 131768 Accounts Payable VALENCIA SR , JOSE LUIS 100.00

Invoice Date Description Amount.
ONLINE 8-18-21 10/12/2021 A/C REFUND 100.00

Check 10/14/2021 131769 Accounts Payable WIGGS , MIKE 20.00

City of Turlock

Payment Batch Register
Bank Account: AP - Accounts Payable

Batch Date: 10/14/2021

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account
Transaction

Amount

User: Jamie Gomes Pages: 14 of 15 10/14/2021 12:36:43 PM



Invoice Date Description Amount.
R21-003499 10/12/2021 A/C REFUND 20.00

AP Accounts Payable Totals: Transactions: 101 $875,592.36

Checks: 101 $875,592.36

City of Turlock

Payment Batch Register
Bank Account: AP - Accounts Payable

Batch Date: 10/14/2021

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account
Transaction

Amount

User: Jamie Gomes Pages: 15 of 15 10/14/2021 12:36:43 PM



Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

AP - Accounts Payable
EFT
4001 07/28/2021 Open Accounts Payable CH2M Hill Engineers, Inc $2,441,642.31

Invoice Date Description Amount
011 R1 06/30/2021 SRWA - Design Build Contract 2020-2021 for June 

2021
$2,441,642.31

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
950 - SRWA 950.11000 (Cash) $2,441,642.31

4063 07/30/2021 Open Accounts Payable US BANK $1,240,232.87
Invoice Date Description Amount
1808793 07/30/2021 TUR. REDEVELOPMENT TAX ALLOCATION 

REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016
$1,240,232.87

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
621 - Successor Agency - Non LMI 621.11000 (Cash) $1,240,232.87

4072 07/02/2021 Open Accounts Payable CalPERS $7,342,693.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
FY21/22-ACCR LIA 07/02/2021 FY 21/22 UNFUNDED ACCRUED LIABILITY $7,342,693.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $7,342,693.00

4073 07/02/2021 Open Accounts Payable GOLDEN ONE CREDIT UNION $6,745.63
Invoice Date Description Amount
6/30/21PR 07/02/2021 6/31/21PR-GOLDEN 1 CU $6,745.63
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $6,745.63

4074 07/02/2021 Open Accounts Payable T A P O $4,463.93
Invoice Date Description Amount
6/30/21PR 07/02/2021 6/30/21PR-TAPO DUES $4,463.93
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $4,463.93

4075 07/02/2021 Open Accounts Payable T C E A $2,814.75
Invoice Date Description Amount
6/30/21PR 07/02/2021 6/30/21PR-TCEA DUES $2,814.75
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $2,814.75

4076 07/02/2021 Open Accounts Payable TFRA $150.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
6/30/21PR 07/02/2021 6/30/21PR-TFRA DUES $150.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $150.00

4077 07/02/2021 Open Accounts Payable TMAPS $200.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
6/30/21PR 07/02/2021 6/30/21PR-TMAPS DUES $200.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $200.00

4078 07/02/2021 Open Accounts Payable CA SDU $1,698.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
6/30/21PR 07/02/2021 6/30/21PR-CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENT $1,698.00

Tuesday, October 19, 2021Pages: 1 of 7user: Danette Peterson

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 7/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 7/31/2021

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=218354','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=219085','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221151','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221152','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221153','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221154','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221155','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221156','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221157','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $1,698.00

4079 07/02/2021 Open Accounts Payable CA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNI $162.50
Invoice Date Description Amount
6/30/21PR 07/02/2021 6/30/21PR-CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENT $162.50
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $162.50

4080 07/06/2021 Open Accounts Payable ICMA-RC $78,728.71
Invoice Date Description Amount
6/30/21PR 07/06/2021 6/30/21PR-ICMA $78,728.71
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $78,728.71

4081 07/08/2021 Open Accounts Payable T A P O $12,769.49
Invoice Date Description Amount
6/30/21PR-RHS 07/08/2021 6/30/21PR-TAPO RHS DUES $12,769.49
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $12,769.49

4082 07/02/2021 Open Accounts Payable T C E A $69.50
Invoice Date Description Amount
6/30/21PR-BENEVO 07/02/2021 6/30/21PR-TCEA BENEVOLENCE DUES $69.50
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $69.50

4083 07/08/2021 Open Accounts Payable TFRA $8,277.51
Invoice Date Description Amount
6/30/21PR-RHS 07/08/2021 6/30/21PR-TFRA RHS DUES $8,277.51
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $8,277.51

4084 07/08/2021 Open Accounts Payable CalPERS $245,366.98
Invoice Date Description Amount
6/30/21PR 07/08/2021 6/30/21PR-CALPERS $245,366.98
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $245,366.98

4085 07/08/2021 Open Accounts Payable DELTA DENTAL OF CALIFORNIA $7,923.32
Invoice Date Description Amount
BE004523065 07/08/2021 DELTA DENTAL CLAIMS FOR 6/25/2021-7/1/2021 $7,923.32
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $7,923.32

4086 07/08/2021 Open Accounts Payable UMR $25,995.85
Invoice Date Description Amount
6/29-7/6-FY2021 06/30/2021 UMR CLAIMS FOR 6/29/21-7/6/21-FY 20/21 $25,995.85
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $25,995.85

4087 07/14/2021 Open Accounts Payable DELTA DENTAL OF CALIFORNIA $7,697.34
Invoice Date Description Amount
BE004525883 07/14/2021 DELTA DENTAL CLAIMS FOR 7/2/21-7/8/21 $7,697.34
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount

Tuesday, October 19, 2021Pages: 2 of 7user: Danette Peterson

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 7/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 7/31/2021

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221158','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221159','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221160','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221161','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221162','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221163','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221164','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221165','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221166','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $7,697.34

4088 07/14/2021 Open Accounts Payable UMR $33,965.38
Invoice Date Description Amount
7/7-7/12-FY21/22 07/14/2021 UMR CLAIMS FOR 7/7/21-7/12/21-FY 21/22 $33,965.38
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $33,965.38

4089 07/20/2021 Open Accounts Payable CA SDU $1,698.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
7/15/21PR 07/20/2021 7/15/21PR-CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENT $1,698.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $1,698.00

4090 07/20/2021 Open Accounts Payable CA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNI $162.50
Invoice Date Description Amount
7/15/21PR 07/20/2021 7/15/21PR-CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENT $162.50
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $162.50

4091 07/21/2021 Open Accounts Payable ICMA-RC $78,403.02
Invoice Date Description Amount
7/15/21PR 07/21/2021 7/15/21PR-ICMA $78,403.02
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $78,403.02

4092 07/20/2021 Open Accounts Payable INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE $183,011.19
Invoice Date Description Amount
7/15/21PR 07/20/2021 7/15/21PR-FEDERAL TAXES $183,011.19
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $183,011.19

4093 07/21/2021 Open Accounts Payable STATE OF CALIFORNIA - PR TAXES $54,653.44
Invoice Date Description Amount
7/15/21PR 07/21/2021 7/15/21PR-STATE TAXES $54,653.44
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $54,653.44

4094 07/20/2021 Open Accounts Payable T A P O $4,393.93
Invoice Date Description Amount
7/15/21PR 07/20/2021 7/15/21PR-TAPO DUES $4,393.93
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $4,393.93

4095 07/20/2021 Open Accounts Payable T C E A $2,814.75
Invoice Date Description Amount
7/15/21PR 07/20/2021 7/15/21PR-TCEA DUES $2,814.75
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $2,814.75

4096 07/20/2021 Open Accounts Payable TFRA $4,990.05
Invoice Date Description Amount
7/15/21PR 07/20/2021 7/15/21PR-TFRA DUES $4,990.05
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $4,990.05

Tuesday, October 19, 2021Pages: 3 of 7user: Danette Peterson

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 7/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 7/31/2021

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221167','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221168','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221169','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221170','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221171','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221172','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221173','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221174','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221175','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

4097 07/20/2021 Open Accounts Payable TURLOCK CITY FIRE INC $405.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
7/15/21PR 07/20/2021 7/15/21PR-FIRE INC DUES $405.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $405.00

4098 07/20/2021 Open Accounts Payable TURLOCK HEALTH & FITNESS 
CENTER, INC, DBA BRENDA 
ATHLETIC

$184.95

Invoice Date Description Amount
7/15/21PR 07/20/2021 7/15/21PR-TURLOCK HEALTH CLUB $184.95
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $184.95

4099 07/20/2021 Open Accounts Payable GOLDEN ONE CREDIT UNION $6,745.63
Invoice Date Description Amount
7/15/21PR 07/20/2021 7/15/21PR-GOLDEN 1 CU $6,745.63
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $6,745.63

4100 07/27/2021 Open Accounts Payable T A P O $12,836.13
Invoice Date Description Amount
7/15/21PR-RHS 07/27/2021 7/15/21PR-TAPO RHS DUES $12,836.13
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $12,836.13

4101 07/20/2021 Open Accounts Payable T C E A $69.50
Invoice Date Description Amount
7/15/21PR-BENEVO 07/20/2021 7/15/21PR-TCEA BENEVOLENCE DUES $69.50
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $69.50

4102 07/27/2021 Open Accounts Payable TFRA $8,297.73
Invoice Date Description Amount
7/15/21PR-RHS 07/27/2021 7/15/21PR-TFRA RHS DUES $8,297.73
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $8,297.73

4103 07/15/2021 Open Accounts Payable UMR ($1,022.00)
Invoice Date Description Amount
JUN 21 COBRA REF 06/30/2021 UMR-JUNE 2021 COBRA REFUND-HOWSER ($1,022.00)
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) ($1,022.00)

4104 07/15/2021 Open Accounts Payable UMR ($28,176.00)
Invoice Date Description Amount
JUNE 21 RET REF 06/30/2021 UMR-JUNE 2021 RETIREE REFUND ($28,176.00)
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) ($28,176.00)

4105 07/21/2021 Open Accounts Payable DELTA DENTAL OF CALIFORNIA $7,256.99
Invoice Date Description Amount
BE004530310 07/21/2021 DELTA DENTAL CLAIMS FOR 7/9/21-7/15/21 $7,256.99
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $7,256.99

Tuesday, October 19, 2021Pages: 4 of 7user: Danette Peterson

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 7/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 7/31/2021

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221176','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221177','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221178','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221179','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221180','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221181','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221182','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221183','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221184','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

4106 07/21/2021 Open Accounts Payable ICMA-RC $16,192.21
Invoice Date Description Amount
7/15/21PR-MGMT 07/21/2021 7/15/21PR-ICMA MGMT VACATION CONVERSION $16,192.21
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
110 - General Fund 110.11000 (Cash) $10,557.62
205 - Sports Facilities 205.11000 (Cash) $356.12
217 - Streets - Gas Tax 217.11000 (Cash) $178.06
246 - Landscape Assessment 246.11000 (Cash) $178.06
255 - CDBG 255.11000 (Cash) $528.96
405 - Building 405.11000 (Cash) $851.07
410 - WATER QUALITY CONTROL (WQC) 410.11000 (Cash) $761.25
426 - Transit 426.11000 (Cash) $690.48
501 - Information Technology 501.11000 (Cash) $621.55
502 - Engineering 502.11000 (Cash) $1,469.04

4107 07/21/2021 Open Accounts Payable UMR $93,762.62
Invoice Date Description Amount
AUG21 PREMIUM 07/21/2021 UMR AUGUST 2021 PREMIUMS $93,762.62
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $93,762.62

4108 07/21/2021 Open Accounts Payable UMR $4,039.46
Invoice Date Description Amount
7/13-7/19-FY2122 07/21/2021 UMR CLAIMS FOR 7/13/21-7/19/21-FY 21/22 $4,039.46
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $4,039.46

4109 07/21/2021 Open Accounts Payable UMR $355.30
Invoice Date Description Amount
AUG21 CUSTODIAL 07/21/2021 UMR AUGUST 2021 CUSTODIAL AND BANKING 

FEE
$355.30

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $355.30

4110 07/23/2021 Open Accounts Payable CalPERS $238,013.31
Invoice Date Description Amount
7/15/21PR 07/23/2021 7/15/21PR-CALPERS $238,013.31
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $238,013.31

4111 07/23/2021 Open Accounts Payable CalPERS ($1,884.43)
Invoice Date Description Amount
7/15/21PR-UNDER 07/23/2021 7/15/21PR-CALPERS UNDERPAYMENT-NET W/ 7/31 

& 8/15
($1,884.43)

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) ($1,884.43)

4112 07/23/2021 Open Accounts Payable EMPLOYMENT DEVELOP DEPT $4,861.35
Invoice Date Description Amount
L1109249040 06/30/2021 UNEMPLOYMENT CHARGES FOR 4/1/21-6/30/21 $4,861.35
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
512 - Casualty Insurance 512.11000 (Cash) $4,861.35

Tuesday, October 19, 2021Pages: 5 of 7user: Danette Peterson

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 7/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 7/31/2021

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221185','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221186','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221187','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221188','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221189','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221190','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221191','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

4113 07/26/2021 Open Accounts Payable UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 
OF AMERICA

$17,285.02

Invoice Date Description Amount
AUGUST 2021 07/26/2021 UNUM LTD AND LIFE INSURANCE FOR AUGUST 

2021
$17,285.02

Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
104 - Payroll Clearing Fund 104.11000 (Cash) $17,285.02

4114 07/28/2021 Open Accounts Payable DELTA DENTAL OF CALIFORNIA $10,130.61
Invoice Date Description Amount
BE004558514 07/28/2021 DELTA DENTAL CLAIMS FOR 7/16/21-7/22/21 $10,130.61
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $10,130.61

4115 07/28/2021 Open Accounts Payable UMR $59,177.29
Invoice Date Description Amount
7/20-7/26-FY2122 07/28/2021 UMR CLAIMS FOR 7/20/21-7/26/21-FY 21/22 $59,177.29
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $59,177.29

4116 07/14/2021 Open Accounts Payable UMR $27,594.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
7/7-7/12-FY2021 06/30/2021 UMR CLAIMS FOR 7/7/21-7/12/21-FY 20/21 $27,594.00
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $27,594.00

4117 07/21/2021 Open Accounts Payable UMR $26,200.62
Invoice Date Description Amount
7/13-7/19-FY2021 06/30/2021 UMR CLAIMS FOR 7/13/21-7/19/21-FY 20/21 $26,200.62
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $26,200.62

4118 07/28/2021 Open Accounts Payable UMR $52,185.23
Invoice Date Description Amount
7/20-7/26-FY2021 06/30/2021 UMR CLAIMS FOR 7/20/21-7/26/21-FY 20/21 $52,185.23
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $52,185.23

4119 07/31/2021 Open Accounts Payable Optum Bank, Inc. $22,242.72
Invoice Date Description Amount
6/30/21PR 07/06/2021 6/30/21PR-HSA EE & ER $9,554.86
7/15/21PR 07/22/2021 7/15/21PR-HSA EE & ER $12,329.53
7/15/21PR-CORR 07/29/2021 7/15/21PR-HSA EE & ER CORR TO 7/22/21 EFT $358.33
Paying Fund Cash Account Amount
511 - Health Care 511.11000 (Cash) $22,242.72

Type EFT Totals: 50 Transactions $12,368,477.19
AP - Accounts Payable Totals

EFTs Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount
Open 50 $12,368,477.19 $0.00
Reconciled 0 $0.00 $0.00
Voided 0 $0.00 $0.00
Total 50 $12,368,477.19 $0.00

Tuesday, October 19, 2021Pages: 6 of 7user: Danette Peterson

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 7/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 7/31/2021

javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221192','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221193','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221194','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221195','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221196','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221197','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));
javascript:void(window.open('https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/LogosSuite/CommonPages/ModalDialogContainer.aspx?Page=https://newworld.turlockca.gov/nwerp/FM/Inquiries/InquiryCheck.aspx&ID=221198','',%20'dialogHeight:900px;%20dialogwidth:1010px;%20scroll:yes;%20status:no;%20unadorned:on;%20help:%20off'));


Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date Source Payee Name

Transaction 
Amount

Reconciled 
Amount Difference

All Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount
Open 50 $12,368,477.19 $0.00
Reconciled 0 $0.00 $0.00
Voided 0 $0.00 $0.00
Stopped 0 $0.00 $0.00
Total 50 $12,368,477.19 $0.00

Grand Totals:
EFTs Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount

Open 50 $12,368,477.19 $0.00
Reconciled 0 $0.00 $0.00
Voided 0 $0.00 $0.00
Total 50 $12,368,477.19 $0.00

All Status Count Transaction Amount Reconciled Amount
Open 50 $12,368,477.19 $0.00
Reconciled 0 $0.00 $0.00
Voided 0 $0.00 $0.00
Stopped 0 $0.00 $0.00
Total 50 $12,368,477.19 $0.00

Tuesday, October 19, 2021Pages: 7 of 7user: Danette Peterson

Payment Register
City of Turlock

From Payment Date: 7/1/2021 - To Payment Date: 7/31/2021



 

 

OCTOBER 12, 2021 DRAFT MINUTES 

6:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
City of Turlock Yosemite Room Turlock City Council 
156 S. Broadway, Turlock, California 
 
 

0. A. CALL TO ORDER – Vice Mayor Franco called the meeting to order at 6:06 p.m. 
 
B. SALUTE TO THE FLAG 

 
Vice Mayor Franco announced the City Council meeting is open to the public with limited seating capacity 
and that compliance with health and safety guidelines including COVID-19 screening, temperature 
checks, face coverings, and physical distancing measures are required for in-person attendance. 
 
Vice Mayor Franco also announced the meeting is being conducted via the Zoom system and streamed 
on the City’s website, YouTube, & Spectrum Channel 2. 
 
Lastly, Vice Mayor Franco announced that members of the public will be given the opportunity to address 
the Council during public participation as well during the presentation of public hearing/discussion items 
and noted the City Clerk will provide additional details once we near the public participation section of 
the meeting. 
   

C. ROLL CALL: 
 

Councilmember 
Larson 

Councilmember 
Nosrati 

Vice Mayor 
Franco 

Councilmember 
Monez 

Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Absent Yes Absent Yes 

 
PRESENT: Councilmembers Nicole Larson, Vice Mayor Pam Franco, and Mayor Amy 

Bublak via telephone 
ABSENT:  Councilmembers Monez and Nosrati 

 
D. DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS:  None 

 
1. CLOSED SESSION: 
 

The Closed Session item(s) for this meeting have been agendized and will be heard toward the 
latter part of the meeting. 

  
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS POSTED OR AMENDED 

This is the time for the City Council to remove items from the agenda or to change the order of the agenda.  Matters 
may be taken up out of order of the established agenda by a four-fifths vote of the City Council. 

 
 Vice Mayor Franco advised that staff has requested Closed Session Item 13A be removed from 

the agenda. 
 

Action: Motion by Councilmember Larson, seconded by Mayor Bublak, approving 
the agenda as amended.  Motion carried 3/0 by the following vote: 

 
Councilmember 

Larson 
Councilmember 

Nosrati 
Vice Mayor 

Franco 
Councilmember 

Monez 
Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Absent Yes Absent Yes 

 

KWeaver
Text Box
6B



 DRAFT MINUTES 

 City Council Meeting 
 October 12, 2021 
 Page 2 

 

 

 
 
 

3. PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS, APPOINTMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS,  
PRESENTATIONS, AND BRIEFINGS: 

 
A. Presentation: Turlock Airport Presentation by Todd Smith, President, 

Turlock Regional Aviation Association  
 
Todd Smith provided an update regarding the Turlock Airport including 
financial responsibility, corporate presence at the airport, and airport 
programs. 
 
 

Vice Mayor Franco recessed the meeting at 6:19 p.m. due to audio/visual broadcasting difficulties. 
 
Vice Mayor Franco reconvened the meeting at 6:23 p.m. 
 

 
B. Recognition: Introduction of Isaac Moreno, New City of Turlock Finance 

Director 
 
Isaac Moreno made a self-introduction.   

 
C. Appointment: City/County Disaster Council, Alternate Member 

 
Mayor Bublak recommended that Interim Fire Chief Michael Botto be 
appointed as the Alternate Member to the City/County Disaster Council.   

 
Action: Motion by Councilmember Larson, seconded by Councilmember Bublak, 

appointing Interim Fire Chief Michael Botto as the Alternate Member to the 
City/County Disaster Council.  Motion carried 5/0 by the following vote: 

 
Councilmember 

Larson 
Councilmember 

Nosrati 
Vice Mayor 

Franco 
Councilmember 

Monez 
Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Absent Yes Absent Yes 

   
Interim City Clerk Kellie Weaver announced, “members of the public will be given the opportunity to 
address Council concerning any item that has been described in the notice for this meeting.  For members 
of the public participating in-person and who are interested in addressing the Council, please raise your 
hand once the Vice Mayor opens public comment and before she closes public comment.  For members 
of the public participating remotely, please press the “raise hand” feature on your screen or press *9 from 
your telephone keypad once the Mayor opens public comment and before she closes public comment. 
 
Members of the public participating in-person will be called upon first and then we will move to those 
participating remotely.  For those participating remotely, they will hear an automated prompt indicating 
their line has been unmuted – and that is when their comment period will begin. 
 
Lastly, we request members who choose to address the Council to please state their first and last name 



 DRAFT MINUTES 

 City Council Meeting 
 October 12, 2021 
 Page 3 

 

 

in the event any follow up is needed; however, this is not mandatory.” 

 
 
4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 

The following members of the public spoke: 
 
 Miguel Reynoso 

Ruben  
Maria Ibarra 
Richard and Venita 
Leanna Cox 
Ronald Bridegroom 
 
  

Vice Mayor Franco recessed the meeting at 6:40 p.m. due to audio/visual broadcasting difficulties. 
 

 
Note: Section 6 - Consent Calendar, Section 7 - Final Readings, Section 8 - Public Hearings, 

Section 9 – Action Items, Section 10 – City Manager Reports/Updates, Section 11 – Council 
Items for Future Consideration, Section 12 – Councilmember Questions, Comments, and 
Announcements, Section 13 – Closed Session, and Section 14 – Reports from Closed 
Session were not heard as the meeting was adjourned due to unresolved audio/visual 
broadcasting difficulties. 

 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Vice Mayor Franco adjourned the regular meeting at 6:55 p.m.   
 
 
 RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Kellie E. Weaver, Interim City Clerk  



OCTOBER 18, 2021  DRAFT  MINUTES 
6:00 p.m. Special Meeting 
City of Turlock Yosemite Room Turlock City Council 
156 S. Broadway, Turlock, California 
 
 

0. A. CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Bublak called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
B. SALUTE TO THE FLAG 

 
C. ROLL CALL: 

 
Councilmember 

Larson 
Councilmember 

Nosrati 
Councilmember 

Franco 
Councilmember 

Monez 
Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 
PRESENT: Councilmembers Nicole Larson, Andrew Nosrati, Pam Franco, Rebecka 

Monez and Mayor Amy Bublak  
ABSENT:  None 

 
D. DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS:  None 

 
1. CLOSED SESSION: 
 

The Closed Session item(s) for this meeting have been agendized and will be heard toward the 
latter part of the meeting. 

  
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS POSTED OR AMENDED 

This is the time for the City Council to remove items from the agenda or to change the order of the agenda.  Matters 
may be taken up out of order of the established agenda by a four-fifths vote of the City Council. 

 
Action: Motion by Councilmember Monez, seconded by Councilmember Franco, 

approving the agenda as amended.  Motion carried 5/0 by the following 
vote: 

 
Councilmember 

Larson 
Councilmember 

Nosrati 
Councilmember 

Franco 
Councilmember 

Monez 
Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 
 

3. PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS, APPOINTMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS,  
PRESENTATIONS, AND BRIEFINGS:  None 

 
4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 

The following members of the public spoke: 
 
Terri Shaver 
Ronald Bridegroom 
Milt Trieweiler 
Noel Dickey 
 

5. MOTION WAIVING READING OF ALL ORDINANCES ON THE AGENDA, EXCEPT BY TITLE:   
 
None 



 DRAFT MINUTES 

  Special City Council Meeting 
 October 18, 2021 
 Page 2 

 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 
Mayor Bublak announced that Consent Calendar Item(s) 6H and 6M would be removed for separate 
consideration.   
 

Action: Motion by Councilmember Franco, seconded by Councilmember Monez, 
adopting the amended consent calendar.  Motion carried 5/0 by the 
following vote: 

 
Councilmember 

Larson 
Councilmember 

Nosrati 
Councilmember 

Franco 
Councilmember 

Monez 
Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 
A. Resolution No. 2021-193:  Accepting Weekly Demands of 9/23/21 in the amount of 

$1,483,248.37; Weekly Demands of 9/30/21 in the amount of $1,968,496.43 
B. Motion:  Accepting Minutes of the Special Meeting of September 28, 2021; Minutes of 

Regular Meeting of September 28, 2021  
C. Motion: Approving the Final Map and Subdivision Improvement Agreement with JKB 

Living, conditioned upon construction of improvements for the Legends North No. 3 
subdivision (Development Project No. 7045), developed by JKB Living 

D. Motion: Approving a Five-Year Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Stanislaus 
Business Alliance (Opportunity Stanislaus) Economic Development and Workforce 
Strategies and authorizing the City Manager to execute the MOU 
Resolution No. 2021-194:  Appropriating $20,000 to account number 110-10-112.47243 
“Stanislaus Alliance” from Fund 110 “General Fund” Unassigned Reserves to increase the 
total contribution to Opportunity Stanislaus to $50,000 

E. Resolution No. 2021-195: Authorizing the acceptance of an allocation of funds, execution 
of a grant agreement, and the commitments necessary to administer the Selective Traffic 
Enforcement Program Grant through the California Office of Traffic Safety in an amount 
not to exceed $60,000, appropriating said funds into Fund 266 “Police Grants” Program 
352 “OTS Step Grant” revenue account number 266-20-255-352.35720 and expenditure 
accounts 266-20-255-352.41100_013 “Overtime OTS Step Grant” with associated benefit 
accounts for overtime in the amount of $54,275, 266-20-255-352.47095_014 “Training 
Step Grant #PT22092” in the amount of $2,062, and 266-20-255-352.51109_002 
“Equipment – STEP Grant #PT22092” in the amount of $3,663, for FY 2021-2022, and 
authorizing the City Manager to sign all documents required to apply for and accept this 
grant on behalf of the City of Turlock 

F. Resolution No. 2021-196:  Authorizing the retirement of Turlock Police Department 
Canine “Keyser” and selling the retired canine to his current handler, Officer Queray 
McMihelk, in the amount of one dollar ($1.00) 

G. Resolution No. 2021-197:  Authorizing the acceptance of $20,000 in grant funds from the 
San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District’s Public Benefit Grant, and appropriating 
grant funds into revenue account number 506-00-000-221.37235 “Vehicle/Equipment 
Replacement” for the Parks, Recreation and Public Facilities department, and approving 
the purchase of one (1) eTuatara all-electric vehicle from the sole source provider, 
Zeronox, in the amount of $20,400, from expense account number 506-00-000-221.51020 
“Equipment Replacement” for the Parks, Recreation and Public Facilities department from 
unassigned reserve in Fund 506  

H. Removed for separate consideration   



 DRAFT MINUTES 

  Special City Council Meeting 
 October 18, 2021 
 Page 3 

 

I. Resolution No. 2021-198: Approving the submission of a grant application for the 
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funding, accepting the ARPA Airport Grant in the 
amount of $32,000, appropriating the grant funds to account number 401-10-125.34308 
(Airport Administration, Airport - FAA ARPA Airport Grant Revenue), and authorizing the 
City Manager to sign and execute all documents related to the grant 

J. Motion:  Awarding RFB No. 21-026 and approving an Agreement between the City of 
Turlock and ABS Direct, Inc. for Laser Printing and Mailing Services of Utility Billing, 
Business License Renewals, and Delinquent Notices for the Municipal Services 
Department, Finance Division, for a period of twenty-four (24) months, with an option to 
extend agreement for three (3) additional one-year terms, for a total not-to-exceed amount 
of $280,000 over the 2-year term of the agreement 

K. Resolution No. 2021-199:  Appropriating $1,875 to account number 240-00-000-
203.51005_001 “Communications Equipment Funded by PEG Fees” from Fund 240 
“Small Equipment Replacement-Cable Franchise PEG Fee” unassigned reserves for 
computer equipment for the Yosemite Room Council Chambers 

L. Resolution No. 2021-200:  Approving modifications to pay ranges of part-time 
classifications, establishing $15.00 per hour as the minimum hourly rate of pay, in 
accordance with California Department of Industrial Relations minimum wage increase 
that will go into effect on January 1, 2022 

M. Removed for separate consideration 
 

 
The following items were removed from the Consent Calendar for separate consideration: 

 
6H. Resolution Accepting the Turlock Downtown Property Owners Association 2020-2021 

Annual Report to be filed with the City Clerk in accordance with California Streets and 
Highways Code Section 36650. 

 
 Mayor Bublak opened public comment.  No one spoke.  Mayor Bublak closed public 

comment. 
 

Action: Resolution No. 2021-201 was introduced by Councilmember Monez, 
seconded by Councilmember Franco, and carried 5/0 by the following vote: 

 
Councilmember 

Larson 
Councilmember 

Nosrati 
Councilmember 

Franco 
Councilmember 

Monez 
Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 
M. Resolution Reaffirming the Proclamation of a Local Emergency by Interim City Manager 

Sarah Tamey Eddy (Director of Emergency Services) in Response to a continuing 
Unsheltered Homeless Crisis (UHC) within the City of Turlock and Confirming Rules and 
Regulations No. 1 Made and Issued by Interim City Manager Sarah Tamey Eddy (Director 
of Emergency Services).   

 
 Council and staff discussion included a request for an update from the ad hoc committee 

regarding general timelines and expectations.  
 
 Mayor Bublak opened public comment.  No one spoke.  Mayor Bublak closed public 

comment. 



 DRAFT MINUTES 

  Special City Council Meeting 
 October 18, 2021 
 Page 4 

 

 
 Councilmember Nosrati spoke regarding his reluctance to vote in the affirmative on this 

matter without having more information from the ad hoc committee.  City Attorney 
Petrulakis noted further discussion relative to the ad hoc committee would not be 
appropriate due it not being posted on the agenda.   

 
Action: Resolution No. 2021-202:  Reaffirming the Proclamation of a Local 

Emergency by Interim City Manager Sarah Tamey Eddy (Director of 
Emergency Services) in Response to a continuing Unsheltered Homeless 
Crisis (UHC) within the City of Turlock and Confirming Rules and 
Regulations No. 1 Made and Issued by Interim City Manager Sarah Tamey 
Eddy (Director of Emergency Services)was introduced by Councilmember 
Monez, seconded by Councilmember Franco, and carried 4/1 by the 
following vote: 

 
Councilmember 

Larson 
Councilmember 

Nosrati 
Councilmember 

Franco 
Councilmember 

Monez 
Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes No Yes Yes Yes 

 
 

7. FINAL READINGS: None 
 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None 
 
 
9. ACTION ITEMS: 
 

A. Interim Finance Director Julie Burke presented the staff report on the request to adopt 
amendments to the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget as a result of the first quarter budget 
review on 9/28/21.   

 
Mayor Bublak opened public comment.  No one spoke.  Mayor Bublak closed public 
comment.   

 
Council voted for each augmentation and provided a yes or no vote, and indicated their  
funding choice.   
 
The votes for amendments to the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget as a result of the first 
quarter budget review on 9/28/21 are as follows: 
 

GENERAL FUND REQUESTS 
 

 Councilmember 
Larson 

Councilmember 
Nosrati 

Councilmember 
Franco 

Councilmember 
Monez 

 

Mayor Bublak 

REVENUE 
 

 

1 Sales Tax Current 
 
 

Y Y Y Y Y 

2 Sales Tax – Measure A Y Y Y Y Y 



 DRAFT MINUTES 

  Special City Council Meeting 
 October 18, 2021 
 Page 5 

 

 
 

EXPENSES 
 

 

City Council 
 

 

3 Conferences – Mayor 
 
 

Y / GF N Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF 

4 Conferences – Council District 1 
 
 

Y / GF N Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF 

5 Conferences – Council District – 2 
 
 

Y / GF N Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF 

6 Conferences – Council District 3 
 
 

Y / GF N Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF 

7 Conferences – Council District 4 
 
 

Y / GF N Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF 

8 Dues Miscellaneous 
 
 

Y / GF N Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF 

Finance 
 

 

9 F-T Salaries – Accountant III  
(Salary & Benefits) 
 

Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF 

Human Resources 
 

 

10 F-T Salaries – Staff Services Assistant 
(Salaries & Benefits) 
 

Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF 

11 F-T Salaries – HR Technician (Salary 
& Benefits) 
 

Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF 

General Government 
 

 

12 F-T Salaries: Reinstate Maint Worker I 
(Salary & Benefits) 
 

Y / GF Y / GF Y / ARPA Y / ARPA Y / ARPA 

13 Transfers Out to Fund General Plan 
Implementation & Growth 
 

Y / Measure A Y / Measure A Y / Measure A Y / Measure A Y / Measure A 

Police Services 
 

 

14 F-T Salaries – Unfreeze one Records 
Technician (Salaries & Benefits 
 

Y / GF Y / GF Y / ARPA Y / ARPA Y / ARPA 

15 F-T Salaries – Unfreeze two 
Emergency Services Disp. (Salaries & 
Benefits) 
 

Y / GF Y / GF Y / ARPA Y / ARPA Y / ARPA 

Fire Services 
 

 

16 Overtime Standard (Salary & Benefits) 
 
 

Y / ARPA Y / COVID Y / COVID Y / COVID Y / COVID 

17 F-T Salaries – Fire Prevention 
Inspector (Salary & Benefits) 
 

Y / Measure A Y / Measure A Y / Measure A N  Y / Measure A 



 DRAFT MINUTES 

  Special City Council Meeting 
 October 18, 2021 
 Page 6 

 

18 F-T Salaries – Unfreeze one Engineer 
and two Firefighters (Salary & 
Benefits) 
 

Y / Measure A Y / Measure A Y / Measure A Y / ARPA Y / ARPA 

19 F-T Salaries – Unfreeze Training Chief 
(Salary & Benefits) 
 

Y / GF Y / Measure A Y / Measure A Y / ARPA Y / Measure A 

20 Start Up Costs for Fire Prevention 
Inspector 
 

Y / Measure A Y / Measure A Y / Measure A N Y / Measure A 

21 Outside Contractor Labor: Aging 
equipment requires additional 
maintenance 
 

Y / GF Y / Measure A Y / Measure A Y / Measure A Y / GF 

22 Broadband Infrastructure: 
Modernization of broadband 
connection technology 
 

Y / ARPA Y / ARPA Y / ARPA Y / ARPA Y / ARPA 

Public Facilities 
 

 

23 F-T Salaries – Unfreeze one 
Maintenance Worker (Salary & 
Benefits) 
 

Y / GF Y / GF Y / ARPA Y / ARPA Y / ARPA 

24 F-T Salaries – Unfreeze one 
Maintenance Worker I (Salaries & 
Benefits) 
 

Y / GF Y / GF Y / Measure A Y / GF Y / GF 

25 Tree Trimming: Mitigate risk 
 
 

Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF 

Park Maintenance 
 

 

26 F-T Salaries – Unfreeze two 
Maintenance  Worker I (Salaries & 
Benefits) 
 

Motion by Councilmember Monez, seconded by Councilmember Franco, to unfreeze two 
Maintenance Worker I positions to ARPA and add one Maintenance Worker I position to 
Measure A.  Motion carried 3/2 with Councilmembers Franco and Monez and Mayor 
Bublak voting yes, and Councilmembers Larson and Nosrati voting no. 
 

27 Tree Trimming: Mitigate risk 
 
 

Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF 

Sports Facilities 
 

 

28 Tree Trimming: Mitigate risk 
 
 

Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF 

29 Tree Trimming: Mitigate risk 
 
 

Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF Y / GF 

Planning 
 

 

30 F-T Salaries – Unfreeze Assistant 
Planner (Salry & Benefits) 
 

Y / GF Y / GF Y / ARPA Y / ARPA Y / GF 

NON-GENERAL FUND REQUESTS 
 

Fund 120 – Tourism 
 

 

31 Holiday Lights Tour: Supplies for 2nd 
Annual Holiday Event 
 

Y Y Y Y Y 

Fund 501 – Information Technology 
 

 

32 F-T Salaries – Reclass IT Analyst I to  Y Y Y Y Y 



 DRAFT MINUTES 

  Special City Council Meeting 
 October 18, 2021 
 Page 7 

 

II 
 

33 F-T Salaries – Unfreeze Office 
Assistant I (Salary & Benefits) 
 

Y N Y / ARPA Y / ARPA Y / ARPA 

Fund 502 – Engineering 
 

 

REVENUE 
 

 

34 Capital Projects – Engineering 
Services 
 

Y Y Y Y Y 

EXPENSES 
 

 

35 F-T Salaries – Unfreeze Engineering, 
Assistant (Salary & Benefits) 
 

Y Y Y Y N 

36 F-T Salaries – Unfreeze Traffic 
Technician (Salary & Benefits) 
 

Y Y N N N 

Fund 502 – Engineering 
 

 

37 F-T Salaries – Unfreeze Land 
Surveyor (Salary & Benefits) 
 

Y Y N N N 

38 F-T Salaries – Reclassify Engineering, 
Assistant to Associate Civil Engineer 
 

Y Y Y Y Y 

Fund 410 – Water Quality Control 
 

 

39 Maintenance MMS Subscription: To 
cover the cost of an increase for 
subscription fee 
   

Y Y Y Y Y 

Fund 420 – Water Enterprise 
 

 

40 Special Services/Projects: Additional 
surface water integration work and 
backup for training 
 

Y Y Y Y Y 

41 PCE Monitoring & Remediation: 
Reallocation missed during budget 
process 
 

Y Y Y Y Y 

42 Piping Supplies 
 
 

Y Y Y Y Y 

43 Maintenance MMS Subscription 
 
 

Y Y Y Y Y 

44 Well Pump and Motor 
Repair/Replacement 
 

Y Y Y Y Y 

 
B. Deputy Director of Development Services/Planning Manager Katie Quintero presented the 

staff report on the request to approve Contract Change Order No. 2 in the amount of 
$280,697 (Fund 218) with Granite Construction, of Fresno, California, for City Project No. 
17-53 “Golden State Rehabilitation 20th Century Boulevard to Main Street" bringing the 
contract total to $2,073,458.01, AND approve a Cost Sharing Agreement with Turlock Inn 
to defray expenses associated with the road section improvements on 20th Century 
Boulevard as part of City Project No. 17-53 “Golden State Boulevard Rehabilitation,” AND 



 DRAFT MINUTES 

  Special City Council Meeting 
 October 18, 2021 
 Page 8 

 

$260,697 to account number 215-40-420.51210 “Federal Streets Projects” to be funded 
from Fund 118 “Measure A” unallocated reserves to provide the necessary funding for the 
increased scope on City Project No. 17-53 “Golden State Rehabilitation 20th Century 
Boulevard to Main Street.”   

 
Council and staff discussed this item, including a request to look into the cost to 
complete the remaining portion of 20th Century Boulevard to Geer Road, Measure A 
signage, and looking for more opportunities for private and public partnerships in the 
future. 
 

Councilmember Franco stepped down from the dais at 7:34 p.m. 
 

Mayor Bublak opened public comment.  No one spoke.  Mayor Bublak closed public 
comment.   

 
Council and staff discussion included looking for like opportunities for the creation of 
assessment districts. 

 
Action: Motion by Councilmember Larson, seconded by Councilmember Nosrati,  

approving Contract Change Order No. 2 in the amount of $280,697 (Fund 
218) with Granite Construction, of Fresno, California, for City Project No. 
17-53 “Golden State Rehabilitation 20th Century Boulevard to Main Street" 
bringing the contract total to $2,073,458.01.  Motion carried 4/0 by the 
following vote: 

 
Councilmember 

Larson 
Councilmember 

Nosrati 
Councilmember 

Franco 
Councilmember 

Monez 
Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Yes Absent Yes Yes 

 
Motion by Councilmember Larson, seconded by Councilmember Nosrati, 
approving a Cost Sharing Agreement with Turlock Inn to defray expenses 
associated with the road section improvements on 20th Century Boulevard 
as part of City Project No. 17-53 “Golden State Boulevard Rehabilitation.”  
Motion carried 4/0 by the following vote: 

 
Councilmember 

Larson 
Councilmember 

Nosrati 
Councilmember 

Franco 
Councilmember 

Monez 
Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Yes Absent Yes Yes 

 
Resolution No. 2021-203:  Appropriating $260,697 to account number 
215-40-420.51210 “Federal Streets Projects” to be funded from Fund 118 
“Measure A” unallocated reserves to provide the necessary funding for the 
increased scope on City Project No. 17-53 “Golden State Rehabilitation 
20th Century Boulevard to Main Street” was introduced by Councilmember 
Larson, seconded by Councilmember Nosrati, and carried 4/0 by the 
following vote: 

 
Councilmember 

Larson 
Councilmember 

Nosrati 
Councilmember 

Franco 
Councilmember 

Monez 
Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Yes Absent Yes Yes 



 DRAFT MINUTES 

  Special City Council Meeting 
 October 18, 2021 
 Page 9 

 

 
Councilmember Franco returned to the dais at 7:36 p.m. 

 
 

C. Deputy Director of Development Services/Planning Manager Katie Quintero presented the 
staff report on the request to authorize use of staff time and City resources to research 
and prepare an Ordinance to allow Pedicabs to operate in the City of Turlock.   

 
Noel Dickey presented information regarding her request to operate a pedicab in the City 
of Turlock.   
 
Council and staff discussion included the use of alcohol, safety concerns, costs to prepare 
the ordinance, supporting new businesses, and related laws.   

 
Mayor Bublak opened public comment. 

 
The following members of the public spoke: 
 
Yelena Tsymbal 
 
Mayor Bublak closed public comment.   

 
Additional Council and staff discussion included liability and laws governing the use of 
pedicabs. 

 
Action: Motion by Councilmember Larson, seconded by Councilmember Nosrati, 

authorizing use of staff time and City resources to research and prepare an 
Ordinance to allow Pedicabs to operate in the City of Turlock.  Motion 
carried 3/2 by the following vote: 

 
Councilmember 

Larson 
Councilmember 

Nosrati 
Councilmember 

Franco 
Councilmember 

Monez 
Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Yes No No Yes 

 
D. Councilmember Franco presented the staff report on request to reconsider concurrence 

by City Council on September 14, 2021, to develop an ad hoc committee consisting of two 
Councilmembers and City staff to research and prepare a staff report on establishing 
guidelines in support of existing Youth Drug Abuse Awareness and Prevention Program(s) 
funded by cannabis derived revenues AND authorize the establishment of an ad hoc 
committee consisting of Councilmembers Larson and Nosrati, to identify ideas and/or 
proposals for the use of cannabis derived revenue identified in Resolution No. 2020-003 
(Attachment 1), for Youth Drug Awareness and Prevention Program(s).    

 
Council and staff discussed this item.  
 
Mayor Bublak opened public comment.  No one spoke.  Mayor Bublak closed public 
comment.   
 



 DRAFT MINUTES 

  Special City Council Meeting 
 October 18, 2021 
 Page 10 

 

Councilmember Monez requested wording be added to the second motion to identify 
that no staff time would be used. 

 
 
 

Action: Motion by Councilmember Franco, seconded by Councilmember Monez, 
reconsidering concurrence by City Council on September 14, 2021, to 
develop an ad hoc committee consisting of two Councilmembers and City 
staff to research and prepare a staff report on establishing guidelines in 
support of existing Youth Drug Abuse Awareness and Prevention 
Program(s) funded by cannabis derived revenues.  Motion carried 5/0 by 
the following vote: 

 
Councilmember 

Larson 
Councilmember 

Nosrati 
Councilmember 

Franco 
Councilmember 

Monez 
Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 
Motion by Councilmember Franco, seconded by Councilmember Monez, 
authorizing the establishment of an ad hoc committee consisting of 
Councilmembers Larson and Nosrati, without the use of staff time, to 
identify ideas and/or proposals for the use of cannabis derived revenue 
identified in Resolution No. 2020-003 (Attachment 1), for Youth Drug 
Awareness and Prevention Program(s).  Motion carried 5/0 by the following 
vote: 

 
Councilmember 

Larson 
Councilmember 

Nosrati 
Councilmember 

Franco 
Councilmember 

Monez 
Mayor 
Bublak 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 
 
10. CITY MANAGER REPORTS/UPDATES:   

 
 

A. Administrative Services 
1. Administrative Update  

 
Acting City Manager Dan Madden provided an Administrative Update which 
included clarification to a proclamation issued on September 28, 2021 describing 
the retirement of the Development Services Director that should have read 
resignation rather than retirement, Measure A Finance committee, Tully sewer line 
south of Tuolumne Road, AC/Covid filtration systems, Turlock Scavenger rates, 
Christofferson/Zeering crosswalk light adjustments, slurry seals, Columbia Pool, 
and the 42nd Annual Christmas Parade. 
 

2. Business License Tax – CPI Adjustment  
 

Finance Director Isaac Moreno provided an update on the Business License Tax 
– CPI Adjustment.   

 
 



 DRAFT MINUTES 

  Special City Council Meeting 
 October 18, 2021 
 Page 11 

 

11. COUNCIL ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION:  None 
 
 
 
 
12. COUNCILMEMBER QUESTIONS, COMMENTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 

Councilmember Larson provided information regarding the West Turlock Subbasin Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency noting their next meeting is on October 19, 2021 via zoom.  She noted that 
she will report back to Council once their documents are finalized. 
 
Councilmember Franco thanked parks and public safety workers for their efforts of cleaning up 
after the recent storm, noted the retirement of police canine, Kaiser, and thanked Kaiser and 
Officer McMihelk for their service.  Additionally, she welcomed Finance Director Isaac Moreno, 
offered her help for the Christmas Parade, and noted the Fire Ad Hoc Committee will meet 
tomorrow.   
 
Councilmember Monez thanked Katie Quintero for all of her hard work. 
 
Mayor Bublak noted SRWA will be touring the Regional Surface Water Supply Project 
Construction Site.   

 
13. CLOSED SESSION: 
 
Interim City Clerk Kellie Weaver introduced the Closed Session Items. 
 

A. Conference with Labor Negotiators, Cal. Gov’t Code §54957.6(a) 
“Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a legislative body of a local agency may hold 
closed sessions with the local agency's designated representatives regarding the salaries, 
salary schedules, or compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits of its represented and 
unrepresented employees, and, for represented employees, any other matter within the 
statutorily provided scope of representation.” 
Agency Designated Representative:  Acting City Manager Dan Madden 
Employee Organization:  Turlock Associated Police Officers 
Employee Organization:  Turlock City Employees Association 
Employee Organization:  Turlock Firefighters Association-Local 2434 
Employee Organization:  Turlock Management Association-Public Safety 
Unrepresented Employees:  Accountant, Principal, Administrative Analyst, Administrative Services 
Director, Assistant to the City Manager for Economic Development/Community Housing, Chief Building 
Official, City Clerk, Community Housing Program Supervisor, Deputy Director Development 
Services/Planning, Development Services Director, Executive Administrative Assistant/Deputy City 
Clerk, Executive Administrative Assistant/Municipal Services, Executive Administrative 
Assistant/Public Safety, Finance Director, Fire Chief, Human Resources Analyst, Sr., Human 
Resources Manager, Human Resources Technician, Information Technology Manager, Municipal 
Services Deputy Director, Municipal Services Director, Office Assistant I, Parks, Recreation and Public 
Facilities Director, Parks, Recreation and Public Facilities Manager, Parks, Recreation and Public 
Facilities Superintendent, Payroll Coordinator, Police Business Unit Supervisor, Police Chief, Civil 
Engineer, Principal, Roads Program Manager, Transit Manager, Utilities Manager, and Water Quality 
Control Division Manager. 

 



 DRAFT MINUTES 

  Special City Council Meeting 
 October 18, 2021 
 Page 12 

 

B. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation, Cal. Gov’t Code §54956.9(d)(2) 
 “For the purposes of this section, litigation shall be considered pending when any of the 

following circumstances exist...  A point has been reached where, in the opinion of the 
legislative body of the local agency on the advice of its legal counsel, based on existing facts 
and circumstances, there is a significant exposure to litigation against the local agency.” 

 Potential Case(s):  (2 cases) 
C. Liability Claims, Cal. Gov’t Code §54956.95 

“For the purposes of [Section 54956.9], ‘existing facts and circumstances’ shall consist only of 
one of the following: The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Government Claims Act (Division 
3.6 (commencing with Section 810) of Title 1 of the Government Code) or some other written 
communication from a potential plaintiff threatening litigation, which claim or communication 
shall be available for public inspection pursuant to Section 54957.5.” 
Claimant:  Joodel and Juana Buenrostro 
Agency Claimed Against:  City of Turlock 

 
D. Liability Claims, Cal. Gov’t Code §54956.95 

“For the purposes of [Section 54956.9], ‘existing facts and circumstances’ shall consist only of 
one of the following: The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Government Claims Act (Division 
3.6 (commencing with Section 810) of Title 1 of the Government Code) or some other written 
communication from a potential plaintiff threatening litigation, which claim or communication 
shall be available for public inspection pursuant to Section 54957.5.” 
Claimant:  Erin Nussbaumer 
Agency Claimed Against:  City of Turlock 

 
E. Liability Claims, Cal. Gov’t Code §54956.95 

“For the purposes of [Section 54956.9], ‘existing facts and circumstances’ shall consist only of 
one of the following: The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Government Claims Act (Division 
3.6 (commencing with Section 810) of Title 1 of the Government Code) or some other written 
communication from a potential plaintiff threatening litigation, which claim or communication 
shall be available for public inspection pursuant to Section 54957.5.” 
Claimant:  Albert Ahid 
Agency Claimed Against:  City of Turlock 
 
 

14. REPORTS FROM CLOSED SESSION: 
 

Interim City Clerk Kellie Weaver reported that for the Closed Session Items no reportable action 
was taken. 

 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Mayor Bublak adjourned the special meeting at 9:30 p.m.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Kellie E. Weaver, Interim City Clerk  



 
City Council Staff Report 
October 26, 2021 
 
 
 
 

From:   Katie Quintero 
   Deputy Director of Development Services/Planning Manager 
 
Prepared by:  Katie Quintero 

Deputy Director of Development Services/Planning Manager 
 
Agendized by: Dan Madden, Acting City Manager 
 
 
1. ACTION RECOMMENDED: 
 

Motion: Declaring the Intention to Order Annexation No. 32 for the properties 
located at 1137, 1201, and 1233 Fifth Street (Stanislaus County 
Assessor’s Parcels 043-059-001, 043-016-004, 043-016-005) to 
Existing Community Facilities District No. 2 (Services Mitigation) 

 
2. SYNOPSIS: 
 

This action declares the City’s intention to annex the properties located at 1137, 1201, 
and 1233 Fifth Street (Stanislaus County Assessor’s Parcels 043-059-001, 043-016-
004, 043-016-005) into the existing Community Facilities District Number 2 (CFD #2). 

 
3. DISCUSSION OF ISSUE: 
 

The October 2004 Fiscal Impact Analysis of new residential development on General 
Fund supported services (police, fire, park maintenance, planning, etc.) concluded that 
General Fund revenues are inadequate to support both existing as well as General 
Plan levels of services. In response, the City Council adopted a policy (Resolution No. 
2004-189) to require all new residential development not otherwise entitled by existing 
zoning to be included in a Community Facilities or Mello-Roos District as a condition 
of development. At its meeting of October 26, 2004, the City Council formed Turlock 
Community Facilities District No. 2 (CFD #2), to generate additional General Fund 
revenues from an additional tax imposed on new homes.  
 
The existing CFD #2 was phased in over ten (10) years. The current (FY 2021/2022) 
rate for multi-family dwellings subject to CFD #2 is $550 per year and will increase 2% 
annually. A higher rate ($702) is charged on single-family dwelling units.  In 2013, the 
City Council authorized staff to hire Economic Planning Systems, Inc. to evaluate the 
adequacy of the tax under current economic and financial conditions. The evaluation 
found that the current CFD #2 tax rate is adequate to mitigate the public service 
impacts of new residential development.  In conjunction with this evaluation the City  
 

KWeaver
Text Box
6C



Agenda Staff Report 
10/26/2021 

Page 2 
 

Council adopted an ordinance establishing the policies and procedures for annexation 
into CFD #2.  The ordinance established that any residential project that could result 
in the development of one or more residential dwellings in the City limit requiring 
approval of a parcel map, subdivision map, general plan amendment, rezone, planned 
development, area-wide plan, annexation, or discretionary permit pursuant to TMC 
Title 11 (Subdivisions), Chapter 9-5 TMC (Administration), or TMC 9-2-113 (Planned 
developments), shall be subject to mitigating the increased demand on public services, 
including, but not limited to, police, fire and park maintenance by annexing into CFD 
#2. 
 
Annexation No. 32 will annex three parcels totaling 15.86 acres located at 1137, 1201, 
and 1233 Fifth Street, Stanislaus County Assessor’s Parcels 043-059-001, 043-016-
004, 043-016-005, as shown on the attached boundary map (Attachment 1) into CFD 
#2.  Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map 2020-02 was approved at the April 1, 2021 
Planning Commission meeting allowing the subdivision of the three properties into 178 
residential lots.  Annexation into CFD #2 is required as a condition of approval of the 
subdivision map. 
 
In general, the annexation process is very much like the process to form CFD #2 – 
completion of the initial Resolution of Intention (ROI), public hearing notice, and public 
hearing and property owner election not less than 30 days after the Council’s adoption 
of the ROI. Because there are less than 12 registered voters, the election can be held 
immediately following the public hearing. A certification that there are 12 or fewer 
voters in the proposed annexation area has been filed with the City Clerk as required 
by law. The identified services funded by CFD #2, (police, fire, park maintenance, etc.) 
remain the same as identified in the initial formation of CFD #2.  

 

4. BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION: 
 

A. The City Council adoption of the Resolution of Intent is needed to begin the 
annexation of the subject properties into Community Facilities District Number 
2 (CFD #2). 

 
5. FISCAL IMPACT / BUDGET AMENDMENT: 
 
 Fiscal Impact: The approval and application of CFD #2 will increase revenues to 

fund General Fund supported services as the city’s population increases from the 
development of new homes. 

 
6. CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 

Recommend Approval. 
 
7. ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: 
 
 The recommended action does not constitute a project pursuant to the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Section 15378. The proposed action would not 
make any changes in current policy or regulations. 



Agenda Staff Report 
10/26/2021 

Page 3 
 

8. ALTERNATIVES: 
 

A. The Council may choose to not adopt the Resolution of Intention to order the 
annexation of the subject parcels into CFD #2.  Staff does not recommend this 
alternative as this would provide no additional General Fund revenues to mitigate 
the additional service needs generated by the development of these additional 
homes. 



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TURLOCK 
 

IN THE MATTER OF DECLARING THE } RESOLUTION NO. 2021- 

INTENTION TO ORDER ANNEXATION NO. 32 } 

FOR THE PROPERTIES LOCATED 1137, 1201, } 

AND 1233 FIFTH STREET (STANISLAUS } 

COUNTY ASSESSOR’S PARCELS 043-059-001, } 

043-016-004, 043-016-005) TO EXISTING } 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2 } 

(SERVICES MITIGATION) } 

 } 
 

 WHEREAS, this City Council (this “Council”) proposes to annex certain real 
properties more accurately known as 1137, 1201, and 1233 Fifth Street (Stanislaus 
County Assessor’s Parcels 043-059-001, 043-016-004, 043-016-005), (the “Subject 
Properties”) to the existing community facilities district known as “City of Turlock 
Community Facilities District No. 2 (Services Mitigation)” (“CFD No. 2”) as authorized by 
Article 3.5 of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 (the “Act”); and 
 

 WHEREAS, the boundaries of CFD No. 2 are set forth on the boundary map for 
CFD No. 2, recorded on November 10, 2004, in Volume 3 of Maps of Assessment and 
Community Facilities Districts, page 3, official records of the Stanislaus County 
Recorder; and 

 

WHEREAS, the boundaries of the Subject Properties are shown on the map 
titled “Proposed Boundary, Annexation No. 32, Community Facilities District No. 2” 
(Attachment 1), which is on file with the City Clerk (the “Clerk”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Sections 53339.2 and 53339.3 of the Act provides that legal 
proceedings for the annexation of property to a community facilities district pursuant to 
the Act shall be instituted by the adoption of a resolution of this Council declaring its 
intention as provided hereafter in this resolution. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Turlock 
as follows: 

 
1. This Council hereby finds and determines that public convenience and 

necessity require that the Subject Properties be annexed to the existing territory of CFD 
No. 2. 

 
2. The types of services proposed to be provided within the Subject 

Properties are the same as for the existing area of CFD No. 2. 
 
3. The plan for providing authorized services within the existing area and the 

Subject Properties shall be the plan presently in existence, as the same may be revised 
from time to time by the City of Turlock (the “City”) or any agency of the City through 
which the City provides the authorized services. 

 
 



Resolution No. 2021- 

Page 2 

 

 
4. Except where funds are otherwise available, a special tax will be annually 

levied on the Subject Properties.  Upon recordation of a notice of special tax lien 
pursuant to Section 3114.5 of the California Streets and Highways Code, a continuing 
lien to secure each levy of the special tax shall attach to all nonexempt real property 
included in the Subject Properties, and this lien shall continue in force and effect in 
perpetuity or until the levy and collection of the special tax obligation by the City ceases. 
 The rate and method of apportionment of the special tax shall be as previously 
established for CFD No. 2. 

 
5. On the basis of the written consent and waiver forms submitted to and on 

file with the Clerk by the Owners, as the landowners of 100% of the Subject Properties, 
this Council hereby sets this same date, as soon as the matter may be heard following 
adoption of this resolution, in the Council Chambers located at City Hall, 156 South 
Broadway, Turlock, California, as the time and place for the public hearing on the 
proposed annexation.  At the hearing, testimony of all interested persons and taxpayers 
for or against the proposed annexation will be heard and protests will be considered 
from both registered voters, if any, residing within CFD No. 2 and persons owning real 
property within CFD No. 2.  As provided by the Act, written protests by a majority of the 
registered voters, if any, but including a minimum of six registered voters, or by the 
owners of a majority in area of the land within either the existing CFD No. 2 or the 
proposed annexation area will constitute a “majority protest” and will require the 
suspension of proceedings for at least one year.  Written protests must be filed with the 
Clerk at or before the time fixed for the hearing. 

 
6. It is anticipated that the special tax will be billed as a separate line item on 

the regular property tax bill of the County of Stanislaus.  However, this Council reserves 
the right, under Section 53340, to utilize any method of collecting the special tax which 
it shall, from time to time, determine to be in the best interests of the City, including, but 
not limited to, direct billing by the City to the property owners and supplemental billing.  

 
7. On the basis of the information set forth in that certain certificate entitled 

“Certificate re Registered Voters and Landowners,” on file with the Clerk, in the event 
that an election is held in these proceedings, it is the intention of this Council that the 
elector will be the Owner, as the sole landowner within the area of the Subject 
Properties in accordance with Section 53339.7 of the Act. 

 
8. This Council hereby authorizes and directs the publication by the Clerk of 

a notice of hearing, containing the matters specified by Section 53322 of the Act, one 
time in a newspaper in general circulation in the area of CFD No. 2, said publication to 
be completed no later than seven days prior to the date of the public hearing. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Turlock this 26th day of October, 2021, by the following vote: 

 
 AYES:  
 NOES:  
NOT PARTICIPATING:  



Resolution No. 2021- 

Page 3 

 

 
 ABSENT:  

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Kellie E. Weaver, Interim City Clerk 
City of Turlock, County of Stanislaus, 
State of California 

 



NO SCALE

TURLOCK

LN.

L
N

.

C
H

R
IS

Z
IN

A
 D

R
.

RAMSON DR.

DIFANI PL.

LN.

G
O

LD
E
N
  S

TA
TE

   B
LVD

.

P
AU

LS
O

N
    R

D
.

G
O

L
F

 R
D

.

IMPULSE

ST.

S 1ST

PLU
M

-

W
O

O
DC

T.

VIL
LA

 W
O

O
DS D

R.

C
T.

R
AY

DRIV
E

HARTVIC
KSO

N

A
V

E
.

CT.

CT.

FEDERATION

PICARD

DO
N
EG

AL

CT.

LN
.

SER
R
 DR

.

LN.

LN.

KERLEY

LAVON NEW

EUREKA D
R.

RYKER

PICARD

E. LINWOOD       AVE.

M
ILH

O
U
S
 ST.

LN.

J
U

L
E

P
 W

A
Y

WY.

WY.

CT.

CT.

PAYNE

PECAN

LN.

BREDENBERG

WINANS

STONE

CT.

ALEXANDER

E. GLENWOOD AVE.

W
A

R
P

 D
R

.

5
T

H
  
 S

T
.

E
N

G
L
IS

H
  
 A

V
E

.

W
IL

L
E

R
T

  
  
D

R
.

C
R

U
S

H
E

R

A
M

B
E

R
W

O
O

D
 L

N
.

W
AY

PERSIA
NHARTLE

Y

LN
.

LI
TT

LE
 S

T.
S

. 
B

E
R

K
E

L
E

Y
 A

V
E

.

TEAKW
O

O
D
 ST.

AVE.

BIR
CH

W
O

O
D W

Y.

FEARLE
NE

7TH
    S

T.

RO
CKW

O
O

D A
VE.

EN
G

LISH
 AVE.

A
M

B
E
R
W

O
O

D
 LN

.

ZACH
CT.

SILVER

CT.

F
E

R
N

W
O

O
D

 D
R

.

CREEK

W
A

G
N

E
R

 D
R

.

B
A

Y

ELM
W

O
O

D C
T.

L
N

.

DR.

G
R

E
E

N
W

O
O

D

W
IL

L
O

W

W
O

O
D

L
N

.

L
N

.

BO
XW

O
O

D
 W

Y.

BLOSSOM

8TH
     ST.

LA
CY

9TH
   S

T.

CT.

E
X

P
E

D
IT

IO
N

  
 S

T
.

LARCHW
OOD

L
IN

D
E

N
  
 L

N
.

ROSEWOOD   DR.

IRONWOOD   DR.

DR.

E
L
M

C
R

E
S

T
 C

T
.

D
R

.
G

R
E

E
N

H
IL

L
S

HARVEST

D
R

. CT.

SUN

P
E

P
P

E
R

R
ID

G
E PARK

GARDEN

99

CLOVER  DR.B
A

Y
W

O
O

D
  
  
L
N

.

L
A

N
D

E
R

  
  

  
  
  

 A
V

E
.

PIN
EW

O
O

D S
T.F   

   
  S

T.

5TH
            ST.

B
E

T
H

A
N

Y
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 A

V
E

.

AWerner
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 1



 
City Council Staff Report 
October 26, 2021 
 
 
 

 

 
From: Katie Quintero 
 Deputy Director of Development Services / Planning Manager 
 
Prepared by: Anthony R. Orosco, P.E., Principal Civil Engineer 
 
Agendized by: Dan Madden, Acting City Manager 
 
 
1. ACTION RECOMMENDED: 

 
Motion: Accepting the Development Fee Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2018-

2019 as required by State of California Government Code 66006(b) 
 
2. SYNOPSIS: 

 
This action will accept the Development Fee Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2018-
2019. 

 
3. DISCUSSION OF ISSUE: 

 
Development impact fees are one-time charges on new development collected and 
used by jurisdictions (e.g., a City or County) to mitigate the cost of capital facilities 
and infrastructure required to serve new residential, commercial, and industrial 
growth. Impact fees are generally collected upon issuance of a building permit, 
although the City of Turlock allows the payment of certain fees to be deferred to 
close of escrow, certificate of occupancy, or payment over a set period of time with 
City Manager approval.  
 
Fees are established with the adoption of a fee nexus study which are developed 
in accordance with Assembly Bill 1600 legislation as codified by California 
Government Code 66000 et. Seq. This code section sets forth the procedural 
requirements for establishing and collecting development impact fees. These 
procedures require that “a reasonable relationship, or nexus, must exist between a 
governmental exaction and the purpose of the condition.” 
 
The Mitigation Fee Act (California Government Code 66000 et seq.) was enacted 
by the State of California in 1987 to establish requirements for development impact 
fee (DIF) programs.  Section 66006(b) of the Mitigation Fee Act requires local 
agencies to submit an annual report each year detailing the status of their DIF 
programs.  

KWeaver
Text Box
6D



Agenda Staff Report 
10/26/21 

Page 2 

 
 
For each established development impact fee fund, the local agency shall, within 
180 days after the end of each fiscal year, report the following information and 
make it available to the public:  
 
1. A brief description of the type of fee in the fund;  
2. The amount of the fee;  
3. The beginning and ending balance of the fund; 
4. The amount of fees collected and the interest earned; 
5. An identification of each public improvement on which fees were expended and 

the amount of the expenditures on each improvement including the total 
percentage of the cost of the public improvement that was funded with fees;  

6. An identification of an approximate date by which the construction of the public 
improvement will commence if the local agency determines that sufficient funds 
have been collected to complete financing on an incomplete public 
improvement; 

7. A description of each interfund transfer or loan from the fund including the public 
improvement for which the transfer was made, and, in the case of a loan, the 
date on which the loan will be repaid, and the interest rate which the fund will 
receive on the loan; and 

8. The amount of any refunds made or allocated from the fee fund.  
 
The City of Turlock (City) engaged Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) to 
prepare this document, which serves as the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Annual Report for 
several active City DIF programs.  The report is provided as Attachment #1 to this 
staff report. 
 
The information in this report is presented to comply with the aforementioned 
requirements for the following seven City development impact fee programs:  
 

Westside Industrial Specific Plan (WISP) Fee Program 
Northwest Turlock Specific Plan (NWTSP) Fee Program 
Northeast Turlock Master Plan (NETMP) Fee Program 
North Turlock Master Plan (NTMP) Fee Program 
Master Storm (Storm) Fee Program  
Sewer Trunk Capacity (Sewer) Fee Program 
Capital Facilities Fee (CFF) Program 

 
This Report was made available to the public no less than 15 days in advance of 
this meeting as required under Section 66006(b). 



Agenda Staff Report 
10/26/21 

Page 3 

 
 

4. BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION: 

 
A. California Government Code 66006(b) requires local agencies generate, 

review and make available to the public an Annual Report detailing the 
status of their DIF programs. 
 

5. FISCAL IMPACT / BUDGET AMENDMENT: 

 
None. 

 
6. CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 

 
Recommend approval. 

 
7. ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: 

 
N/A 

 
8. ALTERNATIVES: 

 

A. Council could deny the motion to accept this report.  This is not recommended 
as State law required this report be prepared and accepted.  



 

 

Final Report 

Turlock Annual Report 
Fiscal Year 2018–19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared for: 
 
City of Turlock 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 
 
 
 
July 2020 
 
 
 
 
EPS #192147 



 

 

Table of Contents 

1.  INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................... 1 

Overview ............................................................................................................... 1 

Organization of the Report ....................................................................................... 2 

2.  WESTSIDE INDUSTRIAL SPECIFIC PLAN ........................................................................ 3 

Fee Program Overview ............................................................................................. 3 

Current Fee Schedule .............................................................................................. 3 

Fee Fund Activity .................................................................................................... 3 

Remaining Improvements ........................................................................................ 6 

3.  NORTHWEST TRIANGLE SPECIFIC PLAN ........................................................................ 9 

Fee Program Overview ............................................................................................. 9 

Current Fee Schedule .............................................................................................. 9 

Fee Fund Activity .................................................................................................... 9 

Remaining Improvements ...................................................................................... 12 

4.  NORTHEAST TURLOCK MASTER PLAN ......................................................................... 15 

Fee Program Overview ........................................................................................... 15 

Current Fee Schedule ............................................................................................ 15 

Fee Fund Activity .................................................................................................. 15 

Remaining Improvements ...................................................................................... 18 

5.  NORTH TURLOCK MASTER PLAN ............................................................................... 22 

Fee Program Overview ........................................................................................... 22 

Current Fee Schedule ............................................................................................ 22 

Fee Fund Activity .................................................................................................. 22 

Remaining Improvements ...................................................................................... 25 

  



 

 

6.  MASTER STORM FEE PROGRAM ................................................................................ 28 

Fee Program Overview ........................................................................................... 28 

Current Fee Schedule ............................................................................................ 28 

Fee Fund Activity .................................................................................................. 28 

Remaining Improvements ...................................................................................... 31 

7.  SEWER TRUNK CAPACITY FEE PROGRAM ..................................................................... 36 

Fee Program Overview ........................................................................................... 36 

Current Fee Schedule ............................................................................................ 36 

Fee Fund Activity .................................................................................................. 36 

Remaining Improvements ...................................................................................... 36 

8.  CAPITAL FACILITIES FEE PROGRAM ........................................................................... 43 

Fee Program Overview ........................................................................................... 43 

Current Fee Schedule ............................................................................................ 43 

Fee Fund Activity .................................................................................................. 45 

Remaining Improvements ...................................................................................... 47 

 

 

List of Tables 

Table 1  WISP Development Impact Fees ................................................................... 4 

Table 2  WISP Fee Program Fund Summary ............................................................... 5 

Table 3  WISP Fee Program Remaining Costs ............................................................. 7 

Table 4  WISP Fee Program Net Remaining Costs ........................................................ 8 

Table 5  NTWSP Development Impact Fees .............................................................. 10 

Table 6  NWTSP Fee Program Fund Summary ........................................................... 11 

Table 7  NWTSP Fee Program Remaining Costs ......................................................... 13 

Table 8  NWTSP Fee Program Net Remaining Costs ................................................... 14 

Table 9  NETMP Development Impact Fees ............................................................... 16 

Table 10  NETMP Fee Program Summary ................................................................... 17 

Table 11  NETMP Fee Program Remaining Costs ......................................................... 19 

Table 12  NETMP Fee Program Net Remaining Costs .................................................... 20 



 

 

Table 13  NTMP Development Impact Fees ................................................................ 23 

Table 14  NTMP Fee Summary ................................................................................. 24 

Table 15  NTMP Fee Program Remaining Costs ........................................................... 26 

Table 16  NTMP Fee Program Net Remaining Costs ..................................................... 27 

Table 17  Master Storm Development Impact Fees ..................................................... 29 

Table 18  Master Storm Fee Program Fund Summary .................................................. 30 

Table 19  Master Storm Fee Program Remaining Costs (3 pages) .................................. 32 

Table 20  Master Storm Fee Program Net Remaining Costs .......................................... 35 

Table 21  Sewer Trunk Capacity Development Impact Fees .......................................... 37 

Table 22  Sewer Trunk Capacity Fee Program Fund Summary ....................................... 38 

Table 23  Sewer Trunk Capacity Fee Program Remaining Costs (2 pages) ...................... 39 

Table 24  Sewer Trunk Capacity Fee Program Net Remaining Costs ............................... 42 

Table 25  CFF Program Development Impact Fees ...................................................... 44 

Table 26  CFF Program Fund Summary ..................................................................... 46 

Table 27  CFF Program Remaining Costs ................................................................... 48 

Table 28  CFF Project Costs Incurred Detail ............................................................... 49 

Table 29  CFF Program Net Remaining Costs .............................................................. 50 

 



 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 1 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Reports\192147 Annual Report July 2020 FINAL 09-2021.docx 

1. INTRODUCTION 

Overv iew 

The Mitigation Fee Act (California Government Code 66000 et seq.) was enacted by the State of 
California in 1987 to establish requirements for development impact fee (DIF) programs.  Section 
66006(b) of the Mitigation Fee Act requires local agencies to submit an Annual Report each year 
detailing the status of their DIF programs. 

For each established development impact fee fund, the local agency shall, within 180 days after 
the end of each fiscal year, report the following information and make it available to the public: 

1. A brief description of the type of fee in the fund. 

2. The amount of the fee. 

3. The beginning and ending balance of the fund. 

4. The amount of fees collected and the interest earned. 

5. An identification of each public improvement on which fees were expended and the amount 
of the expenditures on each improvement, including the total percentage of the cost of the 
public improvement that was funded with fees. 

6. An identification of an approximate date by which the construction of the public improvement 
will commence if the local agency determines that sufficient funds have been collected to 
complete financing on an incomplete public improvement. 

7. A description of each interfund transfer or loan from the fund, including the public 
improvement for which the transfer was made, and, in the case of a loan, the date on which 
the loan will be repaid, and the interest rate which the fund will receive on the loan. 

8. The amount of any refunds made or allocated from the fee fund. 

The City of Turlock (City) engaged Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) to prepare this 
document, which serves as the Fiscal Year 2018–19 Annual Report for several active City fee 
programs.  Specifically, the information in this report is presented to comply with the 
aforementioned requirements for the following seven City development impact fee programs: 

 Westside Industrial Specific Plan (WISP) Fee Program 
 Northwest Turlock Specific Plan (NWTSP) Fee Program 
 Northeast Turlock Master Plan (NETMP) Fee Program 
 North Turlock Master Plan (NTMP) Fee Program 
 Master Storm (Storm) Fee Program 
 Sewer Trunk Capacity (Sewer) Fee Program 
 Capital Facilities Fee (CFF) Program 



Turlock Annual Report—Fiscal Year 2018–19 
Final Report  July 2020 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 2 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Reports\192147 Annual Report July 2020 FINAL 09-2021.docx 

The first four fee programs listed above are fee programs for specific plan or master plan areas, 
and the remaining three programs are citywide fee programs.  The information needed for the 
required reporting for each fee program was obtained from the City. For each fee program, the 
City provided the reports and data listed below: 

 Most recent Development Impact Fee Nexus Study (or Update). 
 Fund balances, revenue, and expenses for fiscal years 2018–19. 
 Remaining improvements to be constructed and estimated construction costs. 
 Current fee schedule. 

 

Organ i za t ion  o f  the  Repor t  

Following this introduction, each chapter of this report focuses on one fee program, providing the 
Mitigation Fee Act required annual reporting for Fiscal Year 2018–19.  The report is organized as 
follows: 

 Chapter 1: Introduction 
 Chapter 2: Westside Industrial Specific Pan Fee Program 
 Chapter 3: Northwest Triangle Specific Plan Fee Program 
 Chapter 4: Northeast Turlock Master Plan Fee Program 
 Chapter 5: North Turlock Master Plan Fee Program 
 Chapter 6: Master Storm Fee Program 
 Chapter 7: Sewer Trunk Capacity Development Fee Program 
 Chapter 8: Capital Facilities Fee Program 

 

 



Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 3 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Reports\192147 Annual Report July 2020 FINAL 09-2021.docx 

2. WESTSIDE INDUSTRIAL SPECIFIC PLAN

Fee  P rogram Overv iew 

The WISP Area includes land zoned for commercial, office, and industrial uses.  The WISP Fee 
Program was established to charge development impact fees to new development for specific 
plan infrastructure needed to serve the WISP Area.  The WISP fees originally funded 
transportation, storm drainage, recycled water, sanitary sewer, and potable water improvements 
needed to serve the WISP Area.  In 2013, a WISP Fee Nexus Study Update was prepared in 
which the transportation and storm drainage improvements were removed from the WISP Fee 
Program and added to the citywide fee programs for such facilities.  The projects and any 
existing funds for these former WISP Fee Program components were moved to the citywide fee 
programs.  In addition, the WISP Fee Program recycled water component was combined with the 
water component, and all projects and funding were moved from the recycled water component 
to the water component. 

The components of the updated WISP Fee Program are summarized below: 

 Sanitary Sewer: Funds sewer system infrastructure, including sewer lines and a pump
station.

 Water: Funds water system infrastructure, including water lines and a water well.

 Administration: Funds administration of the WISP Fee Program.

Cur ren t  Fee  Schedu le  

Table 1 shows the current fee schedule for the WISP Fee Program.  These fees are effective 
from April 1, 2020, through June 30, 2020. 

Fee  Fu nd  Ac t i v i t y  

Table 2 shows the WISP Fee Program Fund activity for Fiscal Year 2018–19.  It summarizes the 
beginning balance, revenues, expenses, and ending balance for each of the three components.  
During the fiscal year, the only source of revenue was facility fees collected.  There were no 
expenses incurred, no interfund transfers or loans, and no refunds made or allocated from the 
WISP Fund. 



Table 1
Turlock Annual Report
WISP Development Impact Fees (effective April 1, 2020)

Land Use Sanitary Sewer Water Admin. Total

Business Park $ 2,427.83 $ 969.16 $ 102.34 $ 3,499.33
Community Commercial $ 2,427.83 $ 969.16 $ 102.34 $ 3,499.33
Highway Commercial $ 2,427.83 $ 969.16 $ 102.34 $ 3,499.33
Industrial $ 6,843.30 $ 4,262.57 $ 332.92 $ 11,438.79
Office $ 2,427.83 $ 969.16 $ 102.34 $ 3,499.33

wisp fees

Source: City of Turlock

Fee Per Acre (effective April 1, 2020)

per acre

Prepared by EPS  7/14/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

4



Table 2
Turlock Annual Report
WISP Fee Program Fund Summary (FY 2018-19)

Item Sanitary Sewer Water Administration Total

Beginning Balance $ 280,319 $ 263,263 ($ 238,574) $ 305,008

Revenue
Interest Income $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Development Fees $ 41,987 $ 73,321 $ 3,459 $ 118,767
Total Revenue $ 41,987 $ 73,321 $ 3,459 $ 118,767

Less Expenses $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0

Ending Balance $ 322,306 $ 336,584 ($ 235,115) $ 423,775

wisp

Source: City of Turlock

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

5



Turlock Annual Report—Fiscal Year 2018–19 
Final Report  July 2020 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 6 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Reports\192147 Annual Report July 2020 FINAL 09-2021.docx 

Remain ing  Improvements  

Table 3 details the remaining WISP Fee Program improvement and fee administration costs.  All 
improvement costs will be funded by the WISP Fee Program fees.  The costs are based on the 
remaining costs detailed in the 2013 WISP Fee Nexus Study Update.  Portions of both a sewer 
main and a water main have been completed since 2013, and the associated estimated costs 
have been deducted from the original improvement costs.  These improvements were 
constructed by developers who received WISP fee credits to reimburse them for the construction. 
In addition, the 2013 remaining costs have been updated to 2020 dollars using the change in the 
Engineering News-Record Construction Cost Index (CCI) for San Francisco from September 2013 
through March 2020.  In total, approximately $10.3 million in improvements remain to be 
constructed. 

Table 4 summarizes the remaining net costs in 2020 dollars by fee component after accounting 
for the existing fund balance. At this time, sufficient funds have not been collected to fund all 
remaining improvements. For each fee component, additional funding in the amount of the 
estimated remaining net costs is needed to fully fund all remaining improvements and fee 
administration.  In total, approximately $9.9 million in additional funding is needed to fully 
finance the remaining fee program costs, as summarized by component below: 

Amount and Timing of Remaining Funding 

WISP Fee Program revenue will provide the financing needed to fully fund the remaining 
improvements and fee administration costs summarized above. The timing and amount of the 
fee revenue will depend on the rate and amount of development.  Fee revenue will be collected 
at the issuance of building permits for development in the WISP.  The remaining improvements 
will be constructed as sufficient fee revenue becomes available.  The improvements will be 
completed in an order to be established by the City. 

Estimated Net Remaining Costs

Sewer $ 3,408,000
Water $ 5,962,000
Administration $ 536,000
Total $ 9,906,000



Table 3
Turlock Annual Report
WISP Fee Program Remaining Costs

Project
Total
Cost

Less 
Completed

Remaining
Cost

Cost
(2020 $)

Cost Adjustment
San Francisco CCI - Sep. 2013 [1] 820.85
San Francisco CCI - March 2020 [1] 1,012.13
Cost Increase Factor 1.23

WISP-Funded Percentage of Costs 100%

Sanitary Sewer
5 15' Gravity in Clinton from W. Main  2100' to north $ 334,698 $ 0 $ 334,698 $ 412,692

13 10" Gravity in Washington from W. Main  1400' to south $ 171,640 $ 0 $ 171,640 $ 211,637
19 12" Gravity in Washington from Linwood  2800' to north $ 377,608 $ 0 $ 377,608 $ 465,601
20 12" Force Main in Washington from Linwood to W. Main $ 662,040 $ 0 $ 662,040 $ 816,313
21 12' Gravity in future road from Linwood  2800' to north $ 377,608 $ 0 $ 377,608 $ 465,601
22 10" Gravity in Tegner from Linwood  732' to north $ 122,600 $ 0 $ 122,600 $ 151,169
23 10" Gravity in Kilroy from Linwood  2000' to north [1] $ 245,200 ($ 36,780) $ 208,420 $ 256,987
24 15' Gravity in Linwood from Washington 2600' East $ 414,388 $ 0 $ 414,388 $ 510,951
P5 Proposed Pump Station at Washington and Linwood $ 356,500 $ 0 $ 356,500 $ 439,574

Subtotal $ 3,062,282 ($ 36,780) $ 3,025,502 $ 3,730,525

Water
8 12" Water Line in Canal from Washington  2600 east $ 318,760 $ 0 $ 318,760 $ 393,040
9 12" Water Line in Canal from Fransil to Diane $ 318,760 $ 0 $ 318,760 $ 393,040

10 12" Water Line in Canal from  Diane to Walnut $ 159,380 $ 0 $ 159,380 $ 196,520
15 12" Water Line in Washington from  W. Main to Ruble $ 331,020 $ 0 $ 331,020 $ 408,157
17 12" Water in Ruble from Washington to Tegner $ 662,040 $ 0 $ 662,040 $ 816,313
19 12" Water Line in Washington from  Ruble to Linwood $ 331,020 $ 0 $ 331,020 $ 408,157
21 12" Water in Tegner from Linwood 1300 feet north $ 331,020 $ 0 $ 331,020 $ 408,157
22 12" Water in Kilroy from Linwood  2000' to North [2] $ 245,200 ($ 32,857) $ 212,343 $ 261,825
23 12" Water in Linwood from Washington to Tegner $ 662,040 $ 0 $ 662,040 $ 816,313
25 12" Water in Linwood from Tegner to Kilroy $ 331,020 $ 0 $ 331,020 $ 408,157
26 12" Water in Linwood from Kilroy to Walnut $ 331,020 $ 0 $ 331,020 $ 408,157
W5 New Potable Well Near Linwood and Washington $ 1,119,500 $ 0 $ 1,119,500 $ 1,380,373

Subtotal $ 5,140,780 ($ 32,857) $ 5,107,923 $ 6,298,209

Subtotal Improvement Cost $ 8,203,062 ($ 69,637) $ 8,133,425 $ 10,028,734

Administration - 3% of Other Costs $ 300,862

Total WISP Fee Program Remaining Costs $ 10,329,596

wisp cost

Source: City of Turlock

[1] 300 of 10" Sewer Main (2,000' total) placed by Super Store 2017 reimbursed through fee credits on building permit No. 18-0348
[2] 268' of 12" Water Main (2,000' total) placed by Super Store 2017 reimbursed through fee credits on building permit No. 18-0348.

Costs (2013 $)

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

7



Table 4
Turlock Annual Report
WISP Fee Program Net Remaining Costs (2020 $)

Item Source Sanitary Sewer Water Admin. Total

Remaining Costs Table 3 $ 3,730,525 $ 6,298,209 $ 300,862 $ 10,329,596

Less Fund Balance Table 2 ($ 322,306) ($ 336,584) $ 235,115 ($ 423,775)

Net Remaining Costs $ 3,408,219 $ 5,961,625 $ 535,977 $ 9,905,821

Sufficient Funds Available to Complete Improvements No No No No
Percent of Total  Improvements Funded by Fee Program 100% 100% 100% 100%

wisp net cost

Cost (2020 $)

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

8



Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 9 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Reports\192147 Annual Report July 2020 FINAL 09-2021.docx 

3. NORTHWEST TRIANGLE SPECIFIC PLAN

Fee  P rogram Overv iew 

The NWTSP Area includes land zoned for residential and commercial uses.  The NWTSP Fee 
Program was established to charge development impact fees to new development for specific 
plan infrastructure needed to serve the NWTSP Area.  The NWTSP fees originally funded 
transportation, storm drainage, and sanitary sewer improvements needed to serve the NWTSP 
Area.  In 2013, a NWTSP Fee Nexus Study Update was prepared in which the transportation and 
storm drainage were removed from the NWTSP Fee Program and added to the citywide fee 
programs for such facilities.  The projects and any existing funds for these former NWTSP Fee 
Program components were moved to the citywide fee programs. In addition, water 
improvements specific to the NWTSP were added to the NWTSP Fee Program. 

The components of the updated NWTSP Fee Program are summarized below: 

 Sanitary Sewer: Funds sewer system lines.
 Water: Funds water system lines.
 Administration: Funds administration of the NWTSP Fee Program.

Cur ren t  Fee  Schedu le  

Table 5 shows the current fee schedule for the NWTSP Fee Program.  These fees are effective 
from April 1, 2020, through June 30, 2020. 

Fee  Fu nd  Ac t i v i t y  

Table 6 shows the NWTSP Fee Program Fund activity for Fiscal Year 2018–19.  It summarizes 
the beginning balance, revenues, expenses, and ending balance for each of the three 
components. 

During the fiscal year, revenue was derived from interest income and NWTSP Area development 
impact fees, and the following expenses were incurred: 

 Bank charges.

 Transfer from the Administration component to the City Engineering Services fund to fund
engineering administration costs.

There were no loans and no refunds made or allocated from the NWTSP Fee Program. 



Table 5
Turlock Annual Report
NTWSP Development Impact Fees (effective April 1, 2020)

Land Use Sanitary Sewer Water Admin. Total

Residential
Low Density $ 28.36 $ 1,260.15 $ 38.23 $ 1,326.74
Low-Medium Density $ 22.43 $ 787.90 $ 24.66 $ 834.99
Medium Density $ 19.73 $ 572.12 $ 17.27 $ 609.12
High Density $ 19.73 $ 827.36 $ 25.89 $ 872.98

Nonresidential
Community Commercial $ 91.24 $ 3,012.28 $ 93.72 $ 3,197.24
Highway Commercial $ 91.24 $ 3,012.28 $ 93.72 $ 3,197.24
Heavy Commercial $ 91.24 $ 3,012.28 $ 93.72 $ 3,197.24

nwtsp fees

Source: City of Turlock

Fee (effective April 1, 2020)

per dwelling unit

per developable acre

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

10



Table 6
Turlock Annual Report
NWTSP Fee Program Fund Summary (FY 2018-19)

Item Sanitary Sewer Water Administration Total

Beginning Balance $ 211,128 $ 111,955 $ 2,088 $ 325,171

Revenue
Interest Income $ 3,118 $ 1,659 $ 0 $ 4,778
Development Fees $ 1,424 $ 61,632 $ 1,892 $ 64,948
Total $ 4,542 $ 63,292 $ 1,892 $ 69,725

Expenses 
Bank Charges ($ 61) $ 0 $ 0 ($ 61)
Transfers Out To Fd 502 Engineering Admin $ 0 $ 0 ($ 150) ($ 150)
Total ($ 61) $ 0 ($ 150) ($ 211)

Ending Balance $ 215,610 $ 175,247 $ 3,829 $ 394,686

nw tri

Source: City of Turlock

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

11



Turlock Annual Report—Fiscal Year 2018–19 
Final Report  July 2020 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 12 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Reports\192147 Annual Report July 2020 FINAL 09-2021.docx 

Remain ing  Improvements  

Table 7 details the remaining NWTSP Fee Program improvement and fee administration costs.  
All improvement costs will be funded by the NWTSP Fee Program fees.  The costs are based on 
the remaining costs detailed in the 2013 NWTSP Fee Nexus Study Update.  A 12-inch water line 
was completed since 2013, as shown in the table. Another 12-inch water line and bore casing 
have been combined into one improvement, and a new cost estimate was provided for this item. 
In addition, the 2013 remaining costs have been updated to 2020 dollars using the change in the 
Engineering News-Record CCI for San Francisco from September 2013 through March 2020. 

Table 8 summarizes the remaining net costs in 2020 dollars by fee component after accounting 
for the existing fund balance. At this time, sufficient funds have not been collected to fund all 
remaining improvements. For each fee component, additional funding in the amount of the 
estimated remaining net costs is needed to fully fund all remaining improvements and fee 
administration.  In total, approximately $840,000 in additional funding is needed to fully finance 
the remaining fee program costs, as summarized by component below: 

Amount and Timing of Remaining Funding 

Future NWTSP Fee Program revenue will provide the financing needed to fully fund the remaining 
improvements and fee administration costs summarized above. The timing and amount of the 
fee revenue will depend on the rate and amount of development.  Fee revenue will be collected 
at the issuance of building permits for development in the NWTSP. The remaining improvements 
will be constructed as sufficient fee revenue becomes available.  The improvements will be 
completed in an order to be established by the City. 

Estimated Net Remaining Costs

Sanitary Sewer $ 306,000
Water $ 502,000
Administration $ 32,000
Total $ 840,000



Table 7
Turlock Annual Report
NWTSP Fee Program Remaining Costs

Project
Total
Cost Less Completed

Remaining
Cost

Cost
(2020 $)

Cost Adjustment
San Francisco CCI - Sep. 2013 [1] 820.85
San Francisco CCI - March 2020 [1] 1,012.13
Cost Increase Factor 1.23

NWTSP-Funded Percentage of Costs 100%

Sanitary Sewer
1 10" Sewer Line in Golden State Blvd from Tuolumne 1800 feet North $ 220,680 $ 0 $ 220,680 $ 272,104
2 12" Sewer Line in Golden State Blvd from Tuolumne 1800 feet South $ 202,290 $ 0 $ 202,290 $ 249,429

Subtotal $ 422,970 $ 0 $ 422,970 $ 521,533

Water
1 12" Water line in Golden State from Taylor 400' South $ 49,040 $ 0 $ 49,040 $ 60,468
2 12" Water Line in Taylor Rd from Golden State to Tegner $ 171,640 $ 0 $ 171,640 $ 211,637
3 Bore 24" Casing under TID at Tegner $ 36,780 $ 0 $ 36,780 $ 45,351
4 12" Water Line in Tuolumne from Tegner to Countryside $ 9,185 ($ 9,185) $ 0 $ 0
5 Bore 24" Casing / Install 12" Line Under SR99 at Tuolumne $ 405,060 ($ 113,515) $ 291,545 $ 359,483

Subtotal $ 671,705 ($ 122,700) $ 549,005 $ 676,938

Subtotal Improvement Cost $ 1,094,675 ($ 122,700) $ 971,975 $ 1,198,471

Administration - 3% of Other Costs $ 35,954

Total NWTSP Area Fee Program Remaining Costs $ 1,234,425

tri cost

Source: City of Turlock

Costs (2013 $)

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

13



Table 8
Turlock Annual Report
NWTSP Fee Program Net Remaining Costs (2020 $)

Item Source Sanitary Sewer Water Admin. Total

Remaining Costs Table 7 $ 521,533 $ 676,938 $ 35,954 $ 1,234,425

Less Fund Balance Table 6 ($ 215,610) ($ 175,247) ($ 3,829) ($ 394,686)

Net Remaining Costs $ 305,923 $ 501,691 $ 32,125 $ 839,739

Sufficient Funds Available to Complete Improvements No No No No
Percent of Total  Improvements Funded by Fee Program 100% 100% 100% 100%

tri net cost

Cost (2020 $)

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

14



 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 15 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Reports\192147 Annual Report July 2020 FINAL 09-2021.docx 

4. NORTHEAST TURLOCK MASTER PLAN 

Fee  P rogram Overv iew 

The developable land in the NETMP Area consists of residential uses only.  The NETMP Fee 
Program was established to charge development impact fees to new development for specific 
plan infrastructure needed to serve the NETMP Area.  The components of the NETMP Fee 
Program are summarized below: 

 Sanitary Sewer: Funds sewer system infrastructure, including sewer line and lift station 
improvements.  All sewer system infrastructure has been completed and funded. 

 Storm Drainage: Funds storm drainage lines. 

 Transportation: Funds street, traffic signal, and bike and pedestrian paths improvements. 

 Water: Funds water infrastructure, including water lines and 50 percent of a non-potable 
purple water pipe.  The remaining 50 percent is funded by a City contribution. 

 Administration: Funds administration of the NETMP Fee Program. 

Cur ren t  Fee  Schedu le  

Table 9 shows the current fee schedule for the NETMP Fee Program.  These fees are effective 
from April 1, 2020, through June 30, 2020.  It also shows the Adjusted NETMP fees of $3,000 
per dwelling unit that were approved by the Turlock City Council in April and that are to be 
implemented by individual development agreements with the City.  For all developers who enter 
into these agreements, the NETMP fees will be reduced to $3,000 per unit. 

Fee  Fu nd  Ac t i v i t y  

Table 10 shows the NETMP Fee Program Fund activity for Fiscal Year 2018–19.  It summarizes 
the beginning balance, revenues, expenses, and ending balance for each of the five components. 

During the fiscal year, revenue was derived from interest income and NETMP Area development 
impact fees, and the following expenses were incurred: 

 Bank charges. 

 Contractual services expenses for special legal counsel and financial services related to the 
NETMP Fee Program and a development impact fee nexus study update. 

 Road construction expense for the widening of Monte Vista Avenue from North Olive Avenue 
to Berkeley Avenue. 

  



Table 9
Turlock Annual Report
NETMP Development Impact Fees (effective April 1, 2020) [1]

Land Use Sanitary Sewer Storm Drainage Transportation Water Admin. Total

Residential
Very Low Density $ 1,686.22 $ 20,060.02 $ 24,644.02 $ 4,225.76 $ 1,518.48 $ 52,134.50
Low Density $ 1,686.22 $ 11,799.40 $ 24,644.02 $ 4,225.76 $ 1,270.67 $ 43,626.07
Medium Density $ 1,686.22 $ 5,309.72 $ 24,644.02 $ 4,225.76 $ 1,075.97 $ 36,941.69

Residential
Very Low Density $ 3,000.00
Low Density $ 3,000.00
Medium Density $ 3,000.00

net fees

Source: City of Turlock

Fee Per Dwelling Unit 

Fee Per Dwelling Unit (effective April 1, 2020)

Adjusted Fee Per Dwelling Unit to be Implemented by Individual Developer Agreements
(Approved by Turlock City Council - April 2020)

Prepared by EPS  7/14/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

16



Table 10
Turlock Annual Report
NETMP Fee Program Summary (FY 2018-19)

Item Sanitary Sewer Storm Drainage Transportation Water Administration Total

Transportation - Division 455

Beginning Balance $ 182,131 $ 1,226,547 $ 2,073,991 $ 519,973 $ 107,809 $ 4,110,452

Revenue
Interest Income $ 4,078 $ 27,478 $ 46,444 $ 11,631 $ 1,128 $ 90,759
Development Fees $ 3,047 $ 21,325 $ 44,539 $ 7,637 $ 2,296 $ 78,844
Total $ 7,126 $ 48,802 $ 90,982 $ 19,268 $ 3,424 $ 169,603

Less Expenses

Bank Charges $ 0 $ 0 ($ 644) $ 0 $ 0 ($ 644)

Contractual Services
Special Legal Counsel $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 ($ 901) ($ 901)
Fee Nexus Study $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 ($ 4,405) ($ 4,405)
Subtotal $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 ($ 5,305) ($ 5,305)

Capital Outlay
Monte Vista Avenue - North Olive Avenue to Berkeley Avenue $ 0 $ 0 ($ 725,904) $ 0 $ 0 ($ 725,904)

Transfers Out
Transfers Out To Fd 215 MV & Colorado P0763 $ 0 $ 0 ($ 22,000) $ 0 $ 0 ($ 22,000)
Transfers Out To Fd 502 Engineering Admin $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 ($ 25,000) ($ 25,000)
Subtotal $ 0 $ 0 ($ 22,000) $ 0 ($ 25,000) ($ 47,000)

Total Expenses $ 0 $ 0 ($ 748,548) $ 0 ($ 30,305) ($ 778,854)

Ending Balance $ 189,257 $ 1,275,350 $ 1,416,425 $ 539,241 $ 80,928 $ 3,501,202

net

Source: City of Turlock

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

17



Turlock Annual Report—Fiscal Year 2018–19 
Final Report  July 2020 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 18 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Reports\192147 Annual Report July 2020 FINAL 09-2021.docx 

 Transfer from the transportation component to the City Streets—Grant Projects Fund to be
used for Monte Vista and Colorado intersection improvements.

 Transfer from the administration component to the City Engineering Services fund to fund
engineering administration costs.

There were no loans and no refunds made or allocated from the NETMP Fee Program. 

Remain ing  Improvements  

Table 11 details the remaining improvement and fee administration costs.  All improvement 
costs will be funded by the NETMP Fee Program revenues. The costs are based on the remaining 
improvement costs detailed in the 2004 NETMP Fee Nexus Study.  Because the majority of the 
improvements have now been completed (including all of the sewer improvements), in 2018, the 
City prepared an updated list of remaining improvements and also updated the remaining costs 
to reflect then current dollars. The 2018 remaining costs have been updated to 2020 dollars 
using the change in the Engineering News-Record CCI for San Francisco from December 2018 
through March 2020. 

In addition to improvement costs, the costs in Table 11 include amounts owed from the 
Transportation fund component to the other fund components because of interfund transfers that 
were made.  The interfund transfers owed were not updated to 2020 dollars, as the amounts will 
remain constant until paid back. After accounting for the amounts owed to various fund 
components, two of the components (Water and Administration) have remaining costs that are 
less than zero. 

Table 12 summarizes the remaining net costs in 2020 dollars by fee component after accounting 
for the fee fund balances.  All NETMP fee fund components except for the Transportation 
component have net remaining costs that are less than zero, indicating that, at this time, 
sufficient funds have been collected to fund remaining all improvements. In total, the NETMP fee 
fund currently has an estimated $2.0 million of surplus funds, as summarized by component 
below: 

Estimated Net Remaining Costs

Sanitary Sewer ($ 246,000)
Storm Drainage ($ 1,254,000)
Transportation $ 307,000
Water ($ 760,000)
Administration ($ 87,000)
Total ($ 2,040,000)



Table 11
Turlock Annual Report
NETMP Fee Program Remaining Costs

Project
Total
Cost

Less
Completed

Remaining
Cost

Cost Adjustment
San Francisco CCI - Dec. 2018 [1] 957.19
San Francisco CCI - March 2020 [1] 1,012.13
Cost Increase Factor 1.06

NETMP-Funded Percentage of Costs 100%

Sanitary Sewer
Interfund Transfer (Owed from Transportation) ($57,138) $0 ($57,138) ($ 57,138)

Storm Drainage
Line in 1st Road south of Christoffersen off Berkeley Road $ 123,760 $ 0 $123,760 $ 130,863
Interfund Transfer (Owed from Transportation) ($ 109,537) $ 0 ($109,537) ($ 109,537)
Subtotal $ 14,223 $ 0 $ 14,223 $ 21,326

Transportation
Signal at Taylor Road/Berkeley Avenue $ 675,000 $ 0 $ 675,000 $ 713,743
Christoffersen Parkway - North Olive Avenue to Berkeley Avenue $ 46,127 $ 0 $ 46,127 $ 48,775
Christoffersen Parkway - North Olive Avenue to Berkeley Avenue (Sound Wall) $ 119,625 $ 0 $ 119,625 $ 126,491
Monte Vista Avenue - North Olive Avenue to Berkeley Avenue $ 818,876 ($ 818,876) $ 0 $ 0
Colorado Avenue - North of Monte Vista Avenue to Project Line $ 72,086 $ 0 $ 72,086 $ 76,224
Berkeley Avenue Landscape Setback Area Value $ 23,416 $ 0 $ 23,416 $ 24,760
Interior Pedestrian Connection Paths $ 17,448 $ 0 $ 17,448 $ 18,450
Interfund Transfer (Owed to other fee components) $ 715,225 $ 0 $ 715,225 $ 715,225
Subtotal $ 2,487,804 ($ 818,876) $ 1,668,929 $ 1,723,668

Water
East/West Line in 2nd Road South of Christoffersen Parkway, Colorado to Greenbelt $ 173,400 $ 0 $ 173,400 $ 183,353
Purple Pipe $ 180,880 $ 0 $ 180,880 $ 191,262
City Contribution to Purple Pipe ($ 90,440) $ 0 ($ 90,440) ($ 95,631)
Interfund Transfer (Owed from Transportation) ($ 500,234) $ 0 ($ 500,234) ($ 500,234)
Subtotal ($ 236,394) $ 0 ($ 236,394) ($ 221,251)

Administration
Interfund Transfer (Owed from Transportation) ($ 48,315) $ 0 ($ 48,315) ($ 48,315)

Subtotal Improvement Cost $ 2,160,179 ($ 818,876) $ 1,341,303 $ 1,418,290

Administration - 3% of Other Costs $ 42,549

Total NETMP Fee Program Remaining Costs $ 1,460,839

net cost

Source: City of Turlock

Costs (2019 $)
Cost

(2020 $)

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

19



Table 12
Turlock Annual Report
NETMP Fee Program Net Remaining Costs (2020 $)

Item Source
Sanitary
Sewer

Storm
Drainage Transportation Water Admin. Total

Remaining Costs Table 11 ($ 57,138) $ 21,326 $ 1,723,668 ($ 221,251) ($ 5,766) $ 1,460,839

Less Fund Balance Table 10 ($ 189,257) ($ 1,275,350) ($ 1,416,425) ($ 539,241) ($ 80,928) ($ 3,501,202)

Net Remaining Costs ($ 246,396) ($ 1,254,024) $ 307,243 ($ 760,492) ($ 86,694) ($ 2,040,363)

Sufficient Funds Available to Complete Improvements Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes
Percent of Total  Improvements Funded by Fee Program 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

net net cost

Cost (2020 $)

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

20



Turlock Annual Report—Fiscal Year 2018–19 
Final Report  July 2020 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 21 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Reports\192147 Annual Report July 2020 FINAL 09-2021.docx 

Amount and Timing of Remaining Funding 

No remaining funding is necessary, as the City has collected enough NETMP fee revenue to fund 
the remaining infrastructure costs.  In addition to the estimated $2.0 million in current surplus 
NETMP funds summarized above, future NETMP fees, if collected, would result in a greater 
surplus. As discussed previously, future NETMP fees have been reduced from approximately 
$37,000 to $52,000 per dwelling unit (depending on the unit type) to $3,000 per dwelling unit 
for all dwelling units, and therefore, the amount of potential additional surplus funds would be 
minimal. NETMP fees are collected at the issuance of building permits for development in the 
NETMP. 

The remaining improvements are to be located on undeveloped land that is privately owned by 
individual developers. The developers will construct the improvements and be reimbursed 
through the NETMP Fee Program.  The timing of construction will depend on the rate of the 
remaining future residential development and will be determined by the developers who will 
construct the improvements. 

 



 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 22 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Reports\192147 Annual Report July 2020 FINAL 09-2021.docx 

5. NORTH TURLOCK MASTER PLAN 

Fee  P rogram Overv iew 

The developable land in the NTMP Area consists of residential, office, and public school uses.  
The NTMP Fee Program was established to charge development impact fees to new development 
for specific plan infrastructure needed to serve the NTMP Area.  Most of the improvements have 
already been completed.  The components of the NTMP Fee Program are summarized below: 

 Sanitary Sewer: Funds sewer system infrastructure, including sewer line and lift station 
improvements. 

 Storm Drainage: Funds storm drainage improvements, including storm line, lift station, and 
storm water storage improvements. 

 Transportation:  Funds street, traffic signal, and bike and pedestrian paths improvements. 

 Administration: Funds administration of the NTMP Fee Program. 

Cur ren t  Fee  Schedu le  

Table 13 shows the current fee schedule for the NTMP Fee Program.  These fees are effective 
from April 1, 2020, through June 30, 2020. 

Fee  Fu nd  Ac t i v i t y  

Table 14 shows the NTMP Fee Program Fund activity for Fiscal Year 2018–19.  It summarizes 
the beginning balance, revenues, expenses, and ending balance for each of the four components. 

During the fiscal year, revenue was derived from interest income only.  There is no remaining 
development in the NTMP, so there was no fee revenue.  The following expenses were incurred: 

 Bank charges. 

 Transfer from the transportation component to the City Streets—Grant Projects Fund to be 
used for signalization at the Taylor Road and Walnut Road intersection. 

There were no loans and no refunds made or allocated from the NTMP Fee Program. 

  



Table 13
Turlock Annual Report
NTMP Development Impact Fees (effective April 1, 2020)

Land Use Sanitary Sewer Storm Drainage Transportation Admin. Total

Residential
Low Density $ 2,469.68 $ 3,186.19 $ 7,904.07 $ 406.80 $ 13,966.74
Medium Density $ 2,469.68 $ 2,006.64 $ 7,904.07 $ 371.40 $ 12,751.79
High Density $ 2,469.68 $ 1,497.50 $ 7,904.07 $ 356.14 $ 12,227.39

Nonresidential
Elementary School $ 7,062.72 $ 2,311.94 $ 44,418.13 $ 1,613.80 $ 55,406.59
Office $ 14,077.76 $ 32,873.15 $ 166,765.20 $ 6,411.48 $ 220,127.59

NT fees

Source: City of Turlock

Fee (effective April 1, 2020)

per dwelling unit

per acre

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

23



Table 14
Turlock Annual Report
NTMP Fee Summary (FY 2018-19)

Item Sanitary Sewer Storm Drainage Transportation Administration Total

Beginning Balance $ 831,368 $ 425,128 $ 929,791 ($ 5,047) $ 2,181,240

Revenue
Interest Income $ 11,306 $ 28,935 $ 12,567 $ 0 $ 52,808
Total $ 11,306 $ 28,935 $ 12,567 $ 0 $ 52,808

Expenses
Bank Charges $ 0 $ 0 ($ 392) $ 0 ($ 392)
Transfers Out To Fd 215 Taylor/Walnut Signal 1427 $ 0 $ 0 ($ 50,000) $ 0 ($ 50,000)
Total $ 0 $ 0 ($ 50,392) $ 0 ($ 50,392)

Ending Balance $ 842,674 $ 454,063 $ 891,966 ($ 5,047) $ 2,183,656

nt

Source: City of Turlock

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

24



Turlock Annual Report—Fiscal Year 2018–19 
Final Report  July 2020 

 
 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 25 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Reports\192147 Annual Report July 2020 FINAL 09-2021.docx 

Remain ing  Improvements  

Table 15 details the remaining improvement and fee administration costs.  All improvement 
costs will be funded by the NTMP Fee Program revenues. The costs are based on the remaining 
improvement costs detailed in the 2001 NTMP Fee Nexus Study.  Because the majority of the 
improvements have now been completed, the City recently prepared an updated list of remaining 
improvements.  The 2001 remaining costs have been updated to 2020 dollars using the change 
in the Engineering News-Record CCI for San Francisco from September 2001 through 
March 2020. 

Table 16 summarizes the remaining net costs in 2020 dollars by fee component after accounting 
for the fee fund balances.  All NTMP fee fund components except for the Administration 
component have net remaining costs that are less than zero, indicating that, at this time, 
sufficient funds have been collected to fund remaining all improvements. In total, the NTMP fee 
fund currently has an estimated $1.8 million of surplus funds, as summarized by component 
below: 

 

 

Amount and Timing of Remaining Funding 

There is no projected remaining development in the NTMP Area, so there is no future fee 
revenue to be collected. There is more than sufficient NTMP program revenue available to 
construct all remaining improvements, so the improvements should be constructed as soon as it 
is feasible. 

  

Estimated Net Remaining Costs

Sewer ($ 633,000)
Storm Drainage ($ 259,000)
Transportation ($ 892,000)
Administration $ 17,000
Total ($ 1,767,000)



Table 15
Turlock Annual Report
NTMP Fee Program Remaining Costs

Project
Total
Cost

Less
Completed

Remaining
Cost

Cost
(2020 $)

Cost Adjustment
San Francisco CCI - Sep. 2001 [1] 584.81
San Francisco CCI - March 2020 [1] 1,012.13
Cost Increase Factor 1.73

NTMP-Funded Percentage of Total 100%

Sanitary Sewer
Mt View Systems - Payback for Pitman HS Pump Station $ 58,500 $ 0 $ 58,500 $ 101,246
Kilroy/Walnut Systems - Payback for Pitman HS Pump Station $ 62,400 $ 0 $ 62,400 $ 107,996
Subtotal $ 120,900 $ 0 $ 120,900 $ 209,241

Storm Drainage
1st St. N/O Christoffersen Off Mid Storm Line $ 67,500 $ 0 $ 67,500 $ 116,822
2nd St. N/O Christoffersen Off Mid Storm Line $ 45,000 $ 0 $ 45,000 $ 77,881
Subtotal $ 112,500 $ 0 $ 112,500 $ 194,704

Subtotal Improvement Cost $ 233,400 $ 0 $ 233,400 $ 403,945

Administration - 3% of Other Costs $ 7,002 $ 12,118

Total NWTSP Area Fee Program Remaining Costs $ 240,402 $ 416,063

nt cost

Source: City of Turlock

 Remaining Costs (2001 $)

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

26



Table 16
Turlock Annual Report
NTMP Fee Program Net Remaining Costs (2020 $)

Item Source
Sanitary
Sewer

Storm
Drainage Transportation Administration Total

Remaining Costs Table 15 $ 209,241 $ 194,704 $ 0 $ 12,118 $ 416,063

Less Fund Balance Table 14 ($ 842,674) ($ 454,063) ($ 891,966) $ 5,047 ($ 2,183,656)

Net Remaining Costs ($ 633,432) ($ 259,359) ($ 891,966) $ 17,165 ($ 1,767,592)

Sufficient Funds Available to Complete Improvements Yes Yes Yes No Yes
Percent of Total  Improvements Funded by Fee Program 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

nt net cost

Cost (2020 $)

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

27



Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 28 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Reports\192147 Annual Report July 2020 FINAL 09-2021.docx 

6. MASTER STORM FEE PROGRAM

Fee  P rogram Overv iew 

The Maser Storm Fee Program is a citywide fee program that provides funding for storm 
drainage facilities need to serve development in all areas of the City.  As growth in the City 
occurs and more users are added to the system, the increased level of service will result in 
capacity deficiencies. The Master Storm Fee Program was established to provide funding for 
upgrades to existing storm drainage facilities to correct future deficiencies, as well as for 
construction of new storm drainage system facilities.  These facilities include master storm drains 
and master detention basins. In 2015, the Master Storm Drainage Development Impact Fee 
Nexus Study was prepared to update the Master Storm Fees based on new land use and growth 
projections as well as estimated storm drainage facility needs and costs.  In addition to other 
updates, it should be noted that the updated improvements included improvements that had 
been transferred from the WISP and NWTSP Fee Programs to close the storm drainage 
components in those two fee programs. 

The components of the Master Storm Fee Program are summarized below: 

 Storm Drainage: Funds master storm drains and master detention basins.
 Administration: Funds administration of the Master Storm Fee Program.

Cur ren t  Fee  Schedu le  

Table 17 shows the current fee schedule for the Master Storm Fee Program.  These fees are 
effective from April 1, 2020, through June 30, 2020.  Note that while it is not specified in the City 
fee schedule, 3 percent of each fee is designated for fee administration, and the remaining 
amount is designated for capital expenses. 

Fee  Fu nd  Ac t i v i t y  

Table 18 shows the Master Storm Fee Program Fund activity for Fiscal Year 2018–19.  It 
summarizes the beginning balance, revenues, expenses, and ending balance. 

During the fiscal year, revenue was derived from interest income and Master Storm development 
impact fees.  The only expenses incurred were bank charges.  There were no loans and no 
refunds made or allocated from the Master Storm Fee Program. 



Table 17
Turlock Annual Report
Master Storm Development Impact Fees (effective April 1, 2020)

Land Use

Fee per Gross
Developable Acre

(effective April 1, 2020)

Residential
Low Density Residential $ 7,391.20
Medium Density Residential $ 12,945.54
High Density Residential $ 12,945.54

Nonresidential
Commercial $ 18,517.40
Office $ 18,517.40
Industrial $ 18,517.40

storm fees

Source: City of Turlock

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

29



Table 18
Turlock Annual Report
Master Storm Fee Program Fund Summary (FY 2018-19)

Item Amount

Beginning Balance $ 2,303,910

Revenue
Interest Income $ 58,019
Development Fees - Storm Drainage 192,673
Development Fees - Administration $ 7,634
Total $ 258,326

Expenses
Bank Charges ($ 436)

Ending Balance $ 2,561,800

sd

City of Turlock

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

30



Turlock Annual Report—Fiscal Year 2018–19 
Final Report  July 2020 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 31 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Reports\192147 Annual Report July 2020 FINAL 09-2021.docx 

Remain ing  Improvements  

Table 19 details the total and remaining improvement and fee administration costs to be funded 
by the Master Storm Fee Program, which comprise approximately 53 percent of the total 
improvement costs. The costs are based on the remaining costs detailed in the 2015 Master 
Storm Drainage Development Impact Fee Nexus Study.  Table 19 shows deductions for the 
costs of several portions of storm lines that have been completed since 2015.  The 2015 
remaining costs have been updated to 2020 dollars using the change in the Engineering 
News-Record CCI using the change in the Engineering News-Record CCI for San Francisco from 
June 2015 through March 2020. 

Table 20 summarizes the remaining net costs in 2020 dollars after accounting for the fee fund 
balance. At this time, sufficient funds have not been collected to fund all remaining 
improvements. Additional funding in the amount of the estimated remaining net costs is needed 
to fully fund all remaining improvements and fee administration.  In total, approximately 
$48.2 million in additional funding is needed to fully finance the remaining storm drainage 
improvements. 

Amount and Timing of Remaining Funding 

Future Master Storm Fee Program revenue will provide the financing needed to fully fund the 
remaining improvements and administration costs discussed above. The timing and amount of 
the fee revenue will depend on the rate and amount of development.  Fee revenue will be 
collected at the issuance of final maps for development in the City. The remaining improvements 
will be constructed as sufficient fee revenue becomes available. The improvements will be 
completed in an order to be established by the City. 



Page 1 of 3

Table 19
Turlock Annual Report
Master Storm Fee Program Remaining Costs

Item Type Description/Street Description/Limits
Total

Cost [1]
Less

Completed
Remaining

Cost
Remaining

Cost (2020 $)

Cost Adjustment
San Francisco CCI - June 2015 881.32
San Francisco CCI - March 2020 1,012.13
Cost Increase Factor 1.15

Total Improvements Cost (from 2015 Nexus Study) $ 83,828,000
Total Master Storm Fee-Funded Cost (from 2015 Nexus Study) $ 44,468,500
Master Storm Fee-Funded Percentage of Total 53%

Existing Service Area MASTER CIP
Pipelines
ESD-2 Pipe Christoffersen Pkwy Pump Station No. 31 Wet Well to Walnut Rd (Walnut Pump Station #1 Wet Well) $ 336,400 $ 0 $ 336,400 $ 386,330
ESD-3 Pipe Monte Vista Dr Four Seasons Dr to Walnut Rd $ 95,000 $ 0 $ 95,000 $ 109,100
ESD-4 Pipe Countryside Dr West side of Staples/Walmart Shopping Center, parallel to Countryside Dr $ 10,600 $ 0 $ 10,600 $ 12,173
ESD-6 Pipe Colorado Ave Waldorf Dr to Tuolumne Rd $ 8,100 $ 0 $ 8,100 $ 9,302
ESD-8 Pipe Castleview Dr Quincy Rd to west of Palace Ct $ 62,650 $ 0 $ 62,650 $ 71,949
ESD-9 Pipe Johnson Rd Tuolumne Rd to north of Castleview Dr $ 13,950 $ 0 $ 13,950 $ 16,021
ESD-14 Pipe Almond Ave Almond Ave and Golden State Blvd $ 23,400 $ 0 $ 23,400 $ 26,873
ESD-23 Pipe Montana Ave East of Hwy 99 to West Ave South $ 30,900 $ 0 $ 30,900 $ 35,486
ESD-29 Pipe Kilroy Rd Parallel Pipe from Industrial Rowe to Spengler Way $ 24,900 $ 0 $ 24,900 $ 28,596
ESD-45 Pipe Quincy Rd Canal Dr to East Ave $ 256,950 $ 0 $ 256,950 $ 295,088
ESD-46 Pipe East Ave Quincy Rd to Southeast 2 Area Pump Station (ESD-PS-6) $ 179,550 $ 0 $ 179,550 $ 206,200
Pump Stations/Basins
ESD-PS-6 Pump Station East Ave East of Daubenberger Rd $ 740,000 $ 0 $ 740,000 $ 849,835
ESD-FM-1 Force Main East Ave Dual Force Mains to Northern East Linear Basin $ 634,000 $ 0 $ 634,000 $ 728,102
ESD-BN-1 Basin Northern East Linear Basin Northern East Linear Basin $ 460,400 $ 0 $ 460,400 $ 528,735

Land Acquisition Northern East Linear Basin Northern East Linear Basin $ 560,000 $ 0 $ 560,000 $ 643,118

Buildout System Improvements 
Pipelines
FSD-1 Pipe Monte Vista Dr Summer Creek Dr to Four Seasons Dr $ 77,600 $ 0 $ 77,600 $ 89,118
FSD-3 Pipe Tully Rd Branding Iron Dr to Fulkerth Rd $ 18,300 $ 0 $ 18,300 $ 21,016
FSD-4 Pipe Oxford Ave, Pedras Rd Jacquelinelee Dr to Northeast of Divanian Dr $ 114,000 $ 0 $ 114,000 $ 130,920
FSD-5 Pipe Kilroy Rd Parallel Pipe from Castor St to Industrial Rowe $ 23,450 $ 0 $ 23,450 $ 26,931
FSD-6 Pipe Syracuse Ave Palm St to Geer Rd $ 79,950 $ 0 $ 79,950 $ 91,817
FSD-7 Pipe Golden State Blvd Monroe Ave to Geer Rd $ 18,750 $ 0 $ 18,750 $ 21,533
FSD-8 [2] Pipe Washington Rd, Canal Dr Fulkerth Rd to Fransil Ln $ 1,432,000 ($ 1,183,000) $ 249,000 $ 285,958
FSD-9 Pipe Unnamed Rd Fulkerth Rd to Canal Dr $ 444,000 $ 0 $ 444,000 $ 509,901
FSD-10 Pipe Canal Dr Dianne Dr to Fransil Ln $ 66,500 $ 0 $ 66,500 $ 76,370
FSD-11 Pipe Tegner Rd South of Fulkerth Rd to Canal Dr $ 270,000 $ 0 $ 270,000 $ 310,075
FSD-12 Pipe Tegner Rd North of West Main St to Canal Dr $ 309,000 $ 0 $ 309,000 $ 354,863
FSD-13 Pipe Fransil Ln Fulkerth Rd to Canal Dr $ 76,600 $ 0 $ 76,600 $ 87,969
FSD-14 Pipe Fransil Ln Canal Dr to West Main St, to FSD-PS-2 Wet Well $ 96,700 $ 0 $ 96,700 $ 111,053

Total Master Storm Fee-Funded Cost (2015 $)

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

32



Page 2 of 3

Table 19
Turlock Annual Report
Master Storm Fee Program Remaining Costs

Item Type Description/Street Description/Limits
Total

Cost [1]
Less

Completed
Remaining

Cost
Remaining

Cost (2020 $)

Total Master Storm Fee-Funded Cost (2015 $)

FSD-18 Pipe West Main St, Clinton Rd, Fransil Ln Near intersection of West Main St and Clinton Rd, and along Fransil Ln $ 522,000 $ 0 $ 522,000 $ 599,478
FSD-19 [3] Pipe West Main St Clinton Rd to Fransil Ln $ 583,000 ($239,000) $ 344,000 $ 395,058
FSD-20 Pipe West Main St Dianne Dr to Kilroy Rd $ 222,000 $ 0 $ 222,000 $ 254,950
FSD-21 Pipe Tegner Rd West Main St to Liberty Square Pkwy $ 537,000 $ 0 $ 537,000 $ 616,704
FSD-22 Pipe Tegner Rd Linwood Ave to south of Humphrey Ct $ 287,000 $ 0 $ 287,000 $ 329,598
FSD-23 Pipe Washington Rd, Ruble Rd Clayton Rd to FSD-PS-2 Wet Well $ 687,000 $ 0 $ 687,000 $ 788,968
FSD-24 Pipe Linwood Ave, Unnamed Rd Linwood Ave and along Unnamed Rd, to FSD-PS-2 Wet Well $ 927,000 $ 0 $ 927,000 $ 1,064,590
FSD-25 Pipe Ruble Rd Tegner Rd to Unnamed Rd $ 69,300 $ 0 $ 69,300 $ 79,586
FSD-26 Pipe Linwood Ave Glenwood Ave to Kilroy Rd $ 1,243,000 $ 0 $ 1,243,000 $ 1,427,492
FSD-27 [4] Pipe Kilroy Rd Linwood Ave to Spengler Way $ 729,000 ($ 101,000) $ 628,000 $ 721,211
FSD-28 Pipe Soderquist Rd South Ave to Jordan Ave $ 389,000 $ 0 $ 389,000 $ 446,737
FSD-29 Pipe/Casing(1) Highway 99 West of Soderquist Rd to the east side of Highway 99, north of Venture Ln $ 327,000 $ 0 $ 327,000 $ 375,535
FSD-30 Pipe North of Venture Ln, Walnut Rd Soderquist Rd to Walnut Rd, Linwood Ave to Venture Ln $ 702,000 $ 0 $ 702,000 $ 806,194
FSD-31 Pipe Unnamed Dr South of Hawkeye Ave to north of Canal Dr $ 604,000 $ 0 $ 604,000 $ 693,649
FSD-32 Pipe Unnamed Dr South of Canal Dr to East Ave $ 635,000 $ 0 $ 635,000 $ 729,250
FSD-33 Pipe West of Verduga Rd Connection pipeline from Northern to Southern East Linear Basin $ 73,600 $ 0 $ 73,600 $ 84,524
FSD-34 Pipe Johnson Rd South of East Ave to Unnamed Rd $ 190,000 $ 0 $ 190,000 $ 218,201
FSD-35 Pipe Johnson Rd Unnamed Rd to Brier Rd $ 592,000 $ 0 $ 592,000 $ 679,868
FSD-36 Pipe Johnson Rd Brier Rd to Linwood Ave $ 1,157,000 $ 0 $ 1,157,000 $ 1,328,728
FSD-37 Pipe Unnamed Rd, Brier Rd Daubenberger Rd to Johnson Rd $ 1,404,000 $ 0 $ 1,404,000 $ 1,612,389
FSD-38 Pipe South of Brier Rd FSD-BN-5 (Future Basin) to Johnson Rd $ 929,000 $ 0 $ 929,000 $ 1,066,887
FSD-39 Pipe Linwood Ave West of Verduga Rd to Johnson Rd $ 889,000 $ 0 $ 889,000 $ 1,020,950
FSD-40 Pipe Paulson Rd Center St to Linwood Ave at Future Pump Station (FSD-PS-3) Wet Well $ 1,236,000 $ 0 $ 1,236,000 $ 1,419,453
FSD-41 Pipe Linwood Ave Johnson Rd to 5th St $ 863,000 $ 0 $ 863,000 $ 991,091
FSD-42A Pipe Unnamed Rd, parallel to Hwy 99 Morgan Ranch $ 97,000 $ 0 $ 97,000 $ 111,397
FSD-42B Pipe Unnamed Rd, parallel to Hwy 99 Morgan Ranch $ 579,000 $ 0 $ 579,000 $ 664,938
FSD-42C Pipe Unnamed Rd, parallel to Hwy 99 Morgan Ranch $ 148,000 $ 0 $ 148,000 $ 169,967
FSD-42D Pipe Unnamed Rd, parallel to Hwy 99 Morgan Ranch $ 77,000 $ 0 $ 77,000 $ 88,429
FSD-42E Pipe Unnamed Rd, parallel to Hwy 99 Morgan Ranch $ 252,000 $ 0 $ 252,000 $ 289,403
FSD-42F Pipe Unnamed Rd, parallel to Hwy 99 Morgan Ranch $ 600,000 $ 0 $ 600,000 $ 689,055
FSD-42G Pipe Unnamed Rd, parallel to Hwy 99 Morgan Ranch $ 53,000 $ 0 $ 53,000 $ 60,867
FSD-42H Pipe Unnamed Rd, parallel to Hwy 99 Morgan Ranch $ 318,000 $ 0 $ 318,000 $ 365,199
FSD-42I Pipe Unnamed Rd, parallel to Hwy 99 Morgan Ranch $ 99,000 $ 0 $ 99,000 $ 113,694
FSD-42J Pipe Unnamed Rd, parallel to Hwy 99 Morgan Ranch $ 134,000 $ 0 $ 134,000 $ 153,889
FSD-42K Pipe Unnamed Rd, parallel to Hwy 99 Morgan Ranch $ 127,000 $ 0 $ 127,000 $ 145,850
FSD-42L Pipe Unnamed Rd, parallel to Hwy 99 Morgan Ranch $ 148,000 $ 0 $ 148,000 $ 169,967
FSD-42M Pipe Unnamed Rd, parallel to Hwy 99 Morgan Ranch $ 135,000 $ 0 $ 135,000 $ 155,037
FSD-42N Pipe Unnamed Rd, parallel to Hwy 99 Morgan Ranch $ 113,000 $ 0 $ 113,000 $ 129,772
FSD-42O Pipe Unnamed Rd, parallel to Hwy 99 Morgan Ranch $ 49,000 $ 0 $ 49,000 $ 56,273
FSD-42P Pipe Unnamed Rd, parallel to Hwy 99 Morgan Ranch $ 140,000 $ 0 $ 140,000 $ 160,780
FSD-42Q Pipe Unnamed Rd, parallel to Hwy 99 Morgan Ranch $ 67,000 $ 0 $ 67,000 $ 76,944
FSD-43 Pipe Lander Ave Southeast 1 Area (FSD-PS-4) to Lander Ave $ 942,000 $ 0 $ 942,000 $ 1,081,816
FSD-44 Pipe Linwood Ave 5th St to Lander Ave $ 1,880,000 $ 0 $ 1,880,000 $ 2,159,039
FSD-45 Pipe Linwood Ave West Linwood Ave Basin to Harding Drain Outfall $ 2,359,350 $ 0 $ 2,359,350 $ 2,709,537

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

33



Page 3 of 3

Table 19
Turlock Annual Report
Master Storm Fee Program Remaining Costs

Item Type Description/Street Description/Limits
Total

Cost [1]
Less

Completed
Remaining

Cost
Remaining

Cost (2020 $)

Total Master Storm Fee-Funded Cost (2015 $)

Pump Stations/Basins
FSD-PS-1 Pump Station Fransil Ln & West Main St At Fransil Ln and West Main St, Future Pump Station $ 74,600 $ 0 $ 74,600 $ 85,673
FSD-PS-2 Pump Station Ruble Rd At Ruble Rd and Unnamed Rd, Future Pump Station $ 248,000 $ 0 $ 248,000 $ 284,809
FSD-PS-3 Pump Station Linwood Ave At Johnson Rd $ 1,585,000 $ 0 $ 1,585,000 $ 1,820,254
FSD-FM-1 Force Main Linwood Ave Johnson Rd to Verduga Rd (Dual Force Mains) $ 3,749,000 $ 0 $ 3,749,000 $ 4,305,446
FSD-PS-4 Pump Station Unnamed Rd Southeast 1 Area Future Pump station $ 604,000 $ 0 $ 604,000 $ 693,649
FSD-BN-1 Basin Fransil Ln & West Main St At Fransil Ln and West Main St, Future Retention Basin $ 89,200 $ 0 $ 89,200 $ 102,440

Land Acquisition Fransil Ln & West Main St At Fransil Ln and West Main St, Future Retention Basin $ 100,000 $ 0 $ 100,000 $ 114,843
FSD-BN-2 Basin Ruble Rd At Ruble Rd and Unnamed Rd, Future Detention Basin $ 356,800 $ 0 $ 356,800 $ 409,758

Land Acquisition Ruble Rd At Ruble Rd and Unnamed Rd, Future Detention Basin $ 400,000 $ 0 $ 400,000 $ 459,370
FSD-BN-3 Basin Southern East Linear Basin Southern East Linear Basin $ 1,524,000 $ 0 $ 1,524,000 $ 1,750,200

Land Acquisition Southern East Linear Basin Southern East Linear Basin $ 2,025,000 $ 0 $ 2,025,000 $ 2,325,561
FSD-BN-4 Basin Highway 99 Basin Southeast 1 Area, Highway 99 new basin $ 623,000 $ 0 $ 623,000 $ 715,469

Land Acquisition Highway 99 Basin Southeast 1 Area, Highway 99 new basin $ 620,000 $ 0 $ 620,000 $ 712,024
FSD-BN-5 Basin Unnamed Rd Southeast of Daubenberger Rd and Brier Rd $ 892,000 $ 0 $ 892,000 $ 1,024,395

Land Acquisition Unnamed Rd Southeast of Daubenberger Rd and Brier Rd $ 1,000,000 $ 0 $ 1,000,000 $ 1,148,425
Total Remaining Improvement Costs $ 44,468,500 ($ 1,523,000) $ 42,945,500 $ 49,319,690
Fee Administration Cost (3%) $ 1,334,055 ($ 45,690) $ 1,288,365 $ 1,479,591
Total Remaining Cost $ 45,802,555 ($ 1,568,690) $ 44,233,865 $ 50,799,280

sd cost

Source: City of Turlock and EPS

[1] From Storm Master Storm Drainage Development Impact Fee Nexus Study dated September 18, 2015.
[2] Portion constructed by developers and reimbursed through fee credits: $234,416 to US Cold Storage, $225,657.60 to Blue Diamond, and $261,422.42 to Hilmar Cheese.
[3] 1,083 of 2,640 constructed by City; remaining cost reduced proportionately by 41% (1,083/2640)
[4] Portion constructed by Super Store and reimbursed through $95,013.33 in fee credits

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

34



Table 20
Turlock Annual Report
Master Storm Fee Program Net Remaining Costs (2020 $)

Item Source
Total

Remaining Cost

Remaining Costs Table 19 $ 50,799,280

Less Fund Balance Table 18 ($ 2,561,800)

Net Remaining Costs $ 48,237,481

Sufficient Funds Available to Complete Improvements No
Percent of Total  Improvements Funded by Fee Program 53%

sd net cost

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

35



Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 36 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Reports\192147 Annual Report July 2020 FINAL 09-2021.docx 

7. SEWER TRUNK CAPACITY FEE PROGRAM

Fee  P rogram Overv iew 

The Sewer Trunk Capacity (Sewer) Fee Program is a citywide fee program that provides funding 
for sanitary sewer facilities need to serve development in all areas of the City.  The Sewer Fee 
Program was established to provide funding for the construction of citywide sewer trunk lines or 
the oversizing of normal-sized sewer lines to be used as sewer trunk lines. In 2015, the Sewer 
Trunk Capacity Development Impact Fee Nexus Study was prepared to update the Sewer Fees 
based on new land use and growth projections as well as estimated sewer trunk facility needs 
and costs. 

The components of the Sewer Fee Program are summarized below: 

 Sanitary Sewer: Funds construction of sewer trunk lines.
 Administration: Funds administration of the Sewer Fee Program.

Cur ren t  Fee  Schedu le  

Table 21 shows the current fee schedule for the Sewer Fee Program.  These fees are effective 
from April 1, 2020 through June 30, 2020.  Note that while it is not specified in the City fee 
schedule, 3 percent of each fee is designated for fee administration, and the remaining amount is 
designated for capital expenses. 

Fee  Fu nd  Ac t i v i t y  

Table 22 shows the Sewer Fee Program Fund activity for Fiscal Year 2018–19.  It summarizes 
the beginning balance, revenues, expenses, and ending balance. 

During the fiscal year, revenue was derived from interest income and Sewer development impact 
fees.  The only expenses incurred were bank charges.  There were no loans and no refunds made 
or allocated from the Sewer Fee Program. 

Remain ing  Improvements  

Table 23 details the improvement and fee administration costs to be funded by the Sewer Fee 
Program, which comprise approximately 74 percent of the total costs. The costs are based on the 
remaining costs detailed in the 2015 Sewer Trunk Capacity Development Impact Fee Nexus 
Study.  No construction has occurred since 2015, so the remaining improvements to be 
completed have not changed.  The 2015 remaining costs, however, have been updated to 2020 
dollars using the change in the Engineering News-Record CCI for San Francisco from June 2015 
through March 2020. 



Table 21
Turlock Annual Report
Sewer Trunk Capacity Development Impact Fees (effective April 1, 2020)

Land Use
Fee

(effective April 1, 2020)

Residential per dwelling unit

Very Low Density Residential $ 2,592.81
Low Density Residential $ 2,592.81
Low-Medium Density Residential $ 2,592.81
Medium Density Residential $ 2,052.25
High Density Residential $ 1,728.15
Subtotal Residential

Nonresidential and Mixed Use per acre

Downtown $ 216.46
Neighborhood Center $ 744.39
Office $ 540.56
Community Commercial/Office $ 648.20
Community Commercial $ 755.84
Highway Commercial $ 540.56
Heavy Commercial $ 540.56
Business Park $ 540.56
Industrial $ 1,404.04

sewer fees

Source: City of Turlock

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

37



Table 22
Turlock Annual Report
Sewer Trunk Capacity Fee Program Fund Summary (FY 2018-19)

Item Amount

Beginning Balance $ 461,448

Revenue
Interest Income $ 8,016
Development Fees - Sewer $ 9,859
Development Fees - Administration $ 249,892
Total $ 267,767

Expenses
Bank Charges ($ 100)

Ending Balance $ 729,115

st

City of Turlock

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

38



Page 1 of 2
Table 23
Turlock Annual Report
Sewer Trunk Capacity Fee Program Remaining Costs

Item Type Description/Street Description/Limits 2015 $ 2020 $
[1]

Cost Adjustment
San Francisco CCI - June 2015 881.32
San Francisco CCI - March 2020 1,012.13
Cost Increase Factor 1.15

Total Improvements Cost (from 2015 Nexus Study) $ 48,304,500
Total Master Storm Fee-Funded Cost (from 2015 Nexus Study) $ 35,805,720
Master Storm Fee-Funded Percentage of Total 74%

Existing System Improvements
Pipelines
ESS-1 Pipe W. Main St./N. Soderquist Rd. Julian St. to S. Tully Rd. $ 33,609 $ 38,598
ESS-2 Pipe Wayside Dr. N. Denair Ave, to Geer Rd. $ 6,311 $ 7,248
ESS-3 Pipe Colorado Ave. North of Escondido Ave. to south of Escondido Ave. $ 0 $ 0

Projects to Remove Direct Connections to Sewer System(4)
ESD-11 Pipe Johnson Rd Marshall St to Canal Dr $ 104,700 $ 120,240
ESD-17 Pipe D St 6th to Lander Ave $ 175,050 $ 201,032
ESD-19 Pipe West South Ave Columbia St to High St $ 36,600 $ 42,032
ESD-20 Pipe West South Ave High St to Vermont Ave $ 67,200 $ 77,174
ESD-21 Pipe West South Ave Vermont Ave to South Ave $ 90,600 $ 104,047
ESD-22 Pipe West Ave South South Ave to Linwood Ave $ 351,500 $ 403,671
ESD-24 Pipe South Ave Corner of West Ave South, remove outfall to existing infrastructure $ 0 $ 0
ESD-25 Pipe Montana Ave Gabriel St to West Ave South $ 94,050 $ 108,009
ESD-26 Pipe Lander Ave E St to Linwood Ave, Adjust inverts to match proposed Linwood trunk line $ 295,200 $ 339,015
ESD-27 Pipe Lander Ave At F St, influent pipe to Pump Station No. 2 Wet Well $ 0 $ 0
ESD-43 Pipe Canal Drive Johnson Rd and Canal Dr, provides connection to canal trunk line $ 3,200 $ 3,675
ESD-47 Pipe Marshall St Berkeley Ave to Johnson Rd $ 268,000 $ 307,778
ESD-48 Pipe Rose St Merritt St to Canal Dr $ 234,500 $ 269,306
ESD-50 Pipe Olive Ave, Golden State Blvd Thor St to southeast of Minerva St $ 652,000 $ 748,773
ESD-51 Pipe/Casing(1) Golden State Blvd, 1st Street Pipe & Casing under Train Tracks, east of Golden State Blvd $ 152,000 $ 174,561
ESD-52 Pipe D St 1st St to 6th St $ 513,500 $ 589,716
ESD-53 Pipe F St 8th St to Lander Ave $ 127,000 $ 145,850
ESD-54 Pipe F St Southwest of 8th St, Remove connection to sewer $ 0 $ 0
ESD-55 Pipe Lander Ave D St to E St $ 177,600 $ 203,960
ESD-56 Pipe Lander Ave Linwood Ave to Glenwood Ave $ 0 $ 0
ESD-57 Pipe Linwood Ave Lander Ave to West Linwood Ave Basin $ 1,500,300 $ 1,722,982
ESD-58 Pipe Columbia St Locust St to West Ave South $ 213,000 $ 244,615
ESD-59 Pipe Castor St, Laurel St Locust St to High St $ 65,000 $ 74,648
ESD-60 Pipe High St Laurel St to West Ave South $ 238,000 $ 273,325
ESD-61 Pipe Vermont Ave Orange St to West Ave South $ 192,000 $ 220,498
ESD-62 Pipe Martinez St, Williams Ave Parnell Ave to West Ave South $ 83,000 $ 95,319
ESD-63 Pipe Orange St South Ave to Montana Ave $ 246,500 $ 283,087
ESD-64 Pipe Lewis St Maple St to Orange St $ 46,500 $ 53,402
ESD-65 Pipe Montana Ave Orange St to west of Gabriel St $ 140,000 $ 160,780
ESD-66 Pipe/Casing(1) Linwood Ave, under Highway 99 Boring under Highway 99, under Linwood Ave $ 235,500 $ 270,454
ESD-BN-2 Basin Linwood Ave West Linwood Ave Basin $ 1,359,800 $ 1,561,628

Total Remaining Cost

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

39



Page 2 of 2
Table 23
Turlock Annual Report
Sewer Trunk Capacity Fee Program Remaining Costs

Item Type Description/Street Description/Limits 2015 $ 2020 $
[1]

Total Remaining Cost

Buildout System Improvements
Pipelines
FSS-1A Pipe E. Linwood Ave. Golf Rd. to east of 5th St. $ 149,000 $ 171,115
FSS-1B Pipe E. Linwood Ave. S. Johnson Rd. to Golf Rd. $ 260,000 $ 298,591
FSS-2 Pipe S. Johnson Rd. Briar Rd. to E. Linwood Ave. $ 465,000 $ 534,018
FSS-3 Pipe S. Johnson Rd. South of East Ave. to Brier Rd. $ 154,000 $ 176,857
FSS-4 Pipe E. Linwood Ave. S. Quincy Rd. to S. Johnson Rd. $ 190,000 $ 218,201
FSS-5 Pipe E. Linwood Ave. East of S. Quincy Rd. to S. Quincy Rd. $ 152,000 $ 174,561
FSS-6 Pipe Brier Rd. S. Quincy Rd. to S. Johnson Rd. $ 188,000 $ 215,904
FSS-7 Pipe Brier Rd. S. Daubenberger Rd. to S. Quincy Rd. $ 156,000 $ 179,154
FSS-8 Pipe Alley north of East Ave. N. Berkeley Avenue to Bell St. $ 327,000 $ 375,535
FSS-9 Pipe East Ave. N. Quincy Rd. to N. Berkeley Ave. $ 535,000 $ 614,407
FSS-10 Pipe East Ave. West of N. Verduga Rd. to N. Quincy Rd. $ 470,000 $ 539,760
FSS-11 Pipe West of N. Verduga Rd. Canal Dr. to East Ave. $ 388,000 $ 445,589
FSS-12 Pipe West of N. Verduga Rd. South of Hawkeye to Canal Dr. $ 148,000 $ 169,967
FSS-13 Pipe E. Glenwood Ave. 5th St. to Golf Rd. $ 170,000 $ 195,232
FSS-14 Pipe Golf Rd. South of E. Glenwood Ave to E. Glenwood Ave. $ 157,000 $ 180,303
FSS-15 Pipe W. Glenwood Ave. West of Lander Avenue to east of S. Walnut Rd. $ 340,000 $ 390,465
FSS-16 Pipe W. Glenwood Ave. West of Lander Avenue to south of Linwood Ave. $ 231,000 $ 265,286
FSS-24 Pipe East of S. Washington Rd. South of West Main St. to West Main St. $ 158,000 $ 181,451
FSS-28 Pipe Christoffersen Pkwy./N. Waring Rd. Redirect Denair flows to 24-inch sewer on Christoffersen $ 1,528,000 $ 1,754,794
FSS-29 Pipe Golf Road Glenwood Ave. to E. Linwood Ave. $ 252,000 $ 289,403
Lift Stations
LS-MR Lift Station Morgan Ranch Assumed 2 pumps $ 813,000 $ 933,670
LS-4 Lift Station Kilroy Road Assumed 3 pumps $ 1,759,000 $ 2,020,080
LS-50 Lift Station Tegner Road Assumed 3 pumps $ 6,670,000 $ 7,659,995

Force Main N. Walnut Rd. Extend existing 18-inch force main $ 496,000 $ 569,619
LS-57 Lift Station Piccadilly Lane Assumed 2 pumps $ 2,843,000 $ 3,264,973
LS-63 Lift Station Fulkerth/Tegner Assumed 2 pumps $ 2,419,000 $ 2,778,040
LS-67 Lift Station Humphrey Ct. Assumed 2 pumps $ 881,000 $ 1,011,763
LS-GS Lift Station Golden State Blvd. Assumed 3 pumps (current capacity unknown) $ 1,493,000 $ 1,714,599
LS-Main Lift Station Main St. Near Clinton Rd. Assumed 3 pumps (current capacity unknown) $ 2,238,000 $ 2,570,175
LS-Ind Lift Station New Industrial Lift Station Assumed 2 pumps $ 1,428,000 $ 1,639,951

Force Main S. Washington Rd. W. Linwood Ave. to W. Main St. $ 951,000 $ 1,092,152
Land Acquisition Corner of S. Washington Rd. and W. Linwood Ave. Land Acquisition assumed 0.25 acres $ 19,000 $ 21,820
Less Lift Station in WISP [1] ($ 324,500) ($ 372,664)

Total Remaining Improvement Costs $ 35,805,720 $ 41,120,188
Fee Administration Cost (3%) $ 1,074,172 $ 1,233,606
Total Remaining Cost $ 36,879,892 $ 42,353,793

st cost

Source: City of Turlock

[1] From Sewer Trunk Capacity Development Impact Fee Nexus Study dated October 20, 2015.
Costs adjusted to exclude lift station that is also in the WISP Fee Program

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

40



Turlock Annual Report—Fiscal Year 2018–19 
Final Report  July 2020 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 41 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Reports\192147 Annual Report July 2020 FINAL 09-2021.docx 

Table 24 summarizes the remaining net costs in 2020 dollars after accounting for the fee fund 
balance. At this time, sufficient funds have not been collected to fund all remaining 
improvements. Additional funding in the amount of the estimated remaining net costs is needed 
to fully fund all remaining improvements and fee administration.  In total, approximately 
$41.6 million in additional funding is needed to fully finance the remaining sewer improvements. 

Amount and Timing of Remaining Funding 

Future Sewer Fee Program revenue will provide the financing needed to fully fund the remaining 
improvements and administration costs discussed above. The timing and amount of the fee 
revenue will depend on the rate and amount of development.  Fee revenue will be collected at 
the issuance of building permits for development in the City. The remaining improvements will be 
constructed as sufficient fee revenue becomes available.  The improvements will be completed in 
an order to be established by the City. 



Table 24
Turlock Annual Report
Sewer Trunk Capacity Fee Program Net Remaining Costs (2020 $)

Item Source
Total

Remaining Cost

Remaining Costs Table 23 $ 42,353,793

Less Fund Balance Table 22 ($ 729,115)

Net Remaining Costs $ 41,624,678

Sufficient Funds Available to Complete Improvements No
Percent of Total  Improvements Funded by Fee Program 74%

st net cost

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

42



Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 43 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Reports\192147 Annual Report July 2020 FINAL 09-2021.docx 

8. CAPITAL FACILITIES FEE PROGRAM

Fee  P rogram Overv iew 

The CFF Program is a citywide fee program that funds new and expanded infrastructure and 
facilities needed to serve new development in the City. The CFF Program provides funding for 
transportation, general government, fire, and police facilities.  In 2013, the CFF Nexus Study was 
prepared to update the CFF fees based on new land use and growth projections as well as 
updated facility needs and costs. 

The components of the CFF Program are summarized below: 

 Roadways: Funds new and expanded roadways, interchanges, freeway and railroad
overcrossings, and other projects such as intersection signalizations, multimodal facilities,
and planning studies. In addition to other identified citywide improvements, the 2013 CFF
Nexus Study includes improvements that were transferred from the WISP and NWTSP Fee
Programs to close the transportation components in those two fee programs.

 General Government: Funds City building construction and expansion, downtown parking
facilities, land acquisition for the corporation yard expansion, and General Plan
implementation studies.  This fee component is also referred to as Administration Projects.

 Police: Funds public safety facility expansion, animal services facility expansion, and police
vehicles and equipment.

 Fire: Funds a new fire training facility and fire station (including land acquisition), fire
vehicles, and equipment.

 Contingency: This component, previously referred to as a surcharge component, was
established by the City in 1987 to ensure that a positive cash flow was achieved in the CFF
Fund.  A surcharge was collected on new development through 1991 to provide the additional
needed funding.  The surcharge is no longer collected, but the remaining surcharge funds
that were not expended are accounted for in the Contingency Component and could be used
to provide funding for any of the CFF Program facilities as needed.

 Administration: Funds administration of the CFF Program.

Cur ren t  Fee  Schedu le  

Table 25 shows the current fee schedule for the CFF Program. As shown in Table 25, the CFF 
has a different set of fees for each of three City zones.   These fees are effective from 
April 1, 2020, through June 30, 2020.  Note that while it is not specified in the City fee schedule, 
the total fees collected for a particular land use in a particular City zone are distributed to the 
CFF components outlined above, with the distribution based on the 2013 CFF Nexus Study 
percentage distribution of the total fee rate among the fee components. 



Table 25
Turlock Annual Report
CFF Program Development Impact Fees (effective April 1, 2020)

Land Use Fee Basis
City
Infill

Downtown
PPA

Master Plan
Areas

Residential
Single Family per dwelling unit $ 13,850.81 $ 12,698.91 $ 15,495.48
Multifamily per dwelling unit $ 9,941.70 $ 9,137.78 $ 11,173.61
Senior Assisted Living per bed $ 3,947.21 $ 3,624.63 $ 4,431.09
2nd Unit/Accessory Unit per dwelling unit $ 7,759.81 $ 7,056.22 $ 8,547.22
Mobile Home per dwelling unit $ 7,331.81 $ 6,728.55 $ 8,217.01

Nonresidential and Mixed Use
Retail (< 100,000 sq. ft.) per 1,000 sq. ft. $ 15,128.45 $ 13,675.55 $ 16,481.02
Retail (>=100,000 sq. ft.) per 1,000 sq. ft. $ 15,071.30 $ 13,618.40 $ 16,404.82
Gas Station per VFP [1] $ 9,245.73 $ 8,374.50 $ 10,114.42
Hotel/Motel per room $ 4,945.45 $ 4,478.08 $ 5,405.19
Office per 1,000 sq. ft. $ 7,861.41 $ 7,165.44 $ 8,708.51
Medical Office per 1,000 sq. ft. $ 12,945.29 $ 11,728.61 $ 14,165.78
Hospital per 1,000 sq. ft. $ 5,132.14 $ 4,686.36 $ 5,704.92
Institutional/Assembly per 1,000 sq. ft. $ 3,430.32 $ 3,122.97 $ 3,791.00
Industrial (<25,000 sq. ft.) per 1,000 sq. ft. $ 2,490.50 $ 2,287.30 $ 2,800.39
Industrial (>=25,000 sq. ft.) per 1,000 sq. ft. $ 1,949.48 $ 1,780.56 $ 2,170.46
Warehouse per 1,000 sq. ft. $ 1,823.75 $ 1,659.91 $ 2,012.98

cff fees

Source: City of Turlock

[1] Vehicle fueling position.

Fee (effective April 1, 2020)

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

44



Turlock Annual Report—Fiscal Year 2018–19 
Final Report  July 2020 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 45 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Reports\192147 Annual Report July 2020 FINAL 09-2021.docx 

This section presents the findings required by the Mitigation Fee Act to be reported every 
5 years. 

Fee  Fu nd  Ac t i v i t y  

Table 26 details the CFF Program Fund activity for Fiscal Year 2018–19.  It summarizes the 
beginning balance, revenues, expenses, and ending balance for each of the five components. 

During the fiscal year, revenue was derived from interest earnings, CFF Program development 
impact fees, and transfers from other City funds.  The transfers are summarized below: 

 Transfer to the CFF General Government fund component from the City Water Quality and
Water Enterprise Funds for rent payments for space in a City building that was funded by the
CFF Program.

 Transfer from the Special Public Safety—Fire Fund to the CFF Fire fund component for
construction of the fire training facility.

Expenses were incurred for the following items. 

 Bank charges.

 State Route 99/Fulkerth Road Interchange improvements.

 Golf Road/Berkeley Avenue/Golden State Boulevard Intersection improvements.

 Fire Training Facility improvements.

 Transfers from the Roadways component to the City Streets—Grant Projects Fund for
construction of the following transportation improvements:

— Signalization at the Fulkerth Road/Golden State Boulevard intersection.

— Signalization at the Lander Avenue/F Street intersection.

— Signalization at the Wayside Drive/Olive Avenue intersection.

— Signalization at the Tegner Road/Main Street intersection.

— Signalization at the Tegner Road/Main Street intersection.

 Transfer from the General Government component to the Roadways component for State
Route 99/Fulkerth Road Interchange improvements. This transfer is an interfund loan to be
paid back from the Roadways component.

 Transfers from the Administration component to other funds, as summarized below:

— Transfer to the City Engineering Services Fund for engineering administration costs.

— Transfer to the City General Fund for administration and accounting services costs.



Table 26
Turlock Annual Report
CFF Program Fund Summary (FY 2018-19)

Item Roadways Police

General
Government/

Administration Fire
Contingency

Reserve Administration Total

Beginning Balance $ 5,315,584 ($ 708,214) $ 4,153,088 $ 1,507,366 $ 207,531 $ 967,282 $ 11,442,637

Revenue
Interest Income $ 108,118 $ 0 $ 84,857 $ 30,676 $ 4,239 $ 0 $ 227,890
Development Fees $ 1,608,192 $ 69,419 $ 69,218 $ 39,875 $ 0 $ 147,617 $ 1,934,322
Transfers In SR-99/Fulkerth Road Interchange $ 4,948,369 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 4,948,369
Transfers In From Fd 410&420BCH Rent-Coll&Bill $ 0 $ 0 $ 15,800 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 15,800
Transfers In Fire Ventilation Prop $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 12,500 $ 0 $ 0 $ 12,500
Total Revenue $ 6,664,678 $ 69,419 $ 169,875 $ 83,051 $ 4,239 $ 147,617 $ 7,138,880

Less Expenses

Bank Charges ($ 1,260) $ 0 ($ 1,209) ($ 352) ($ 44) $ 0 ($ 2,865)

Capital Outlay
Contributed Capital Expense ($ 879,069) $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 ($ 879,069)
Contributed Capital-Contra Expense $ 879,069 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 879,069
SR 99/Fulkerth Rd Interchange ($ 1,434,581) $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 ($ 1,434,581)
Golf/Berkeley/GSB Intersection ($ 1,812) $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 ($ 1,812)
Fire Capital Ventilation Training Prop $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 ($ 57,138) $ 0 $ 0 ($ 57,138)
Subtotal ($ 1,436,393) $ 0 $ 0 ($ 57,138) $ 0 $ 0 ($ 1,493,531)

Transfers Out
Transfers Out To Fd215 Fulkerth/GSB Signal 1428 ($ 507,873) $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 ($ 507,873)
Transfers Out Lander/F St Signal ($ 50,000) $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 ($ 50,000)
Transfers Out To Fd215 Wayside/Olive Signal1365 ($ 580,000) $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 ($ 580,000)
Transfers Out To Tegner & Main Signal P1444 ($ 20,000) $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 ($ 20,000)
Transfers Out SR-99/Fulkerth Road Interchange $ 0 $ 0 ($ 3,513,788) $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 ($ 3,513,788)
Transfers Out To Fd 502 Engineering Admin $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 ($ 50,000) ($ 50,000)
Transfers Out To Fd 110 Admin & Acctg Service $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 ($ 20,000) ($ 20,000)
Subtotal ($ 1,157,873) $ 0 ($ 3,513,788) $ 0 $ 0 ($ 70,000) ($ 4,741,661)

Total Expenses ($ 2,595,526) $ 0 ($ 3,514,997) ($ 57,491) ($ 44) ($ 70,000) ($ 6,238,058)

Ending Balance $ 9,384,736 ($ 638,795) $ 807,967 $ 1,532,926 $ 211,726 $ 1,044,899 $ 12,343,459

cff

Source: City of Turlock

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

46



Turlock Annual Report—Fiscal Year 2018–19 
Final Report  July 2020 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 47 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Reports\192147 Annual Report July 2020 FINAL 09-2021.docx 

Remain ing  Improvements  

Table 27 details the remaining improvement and fee administration costs to be funded by the 
CFF Program.  The CFF Program will fund approximately 44 percent of the total identified 
improvement costs.  The costs are based on the remaining costs detailed in the 2013 CFF Nexus 
Study.  For each fee component, the costs of items completed since 2013 are deducted from the 
CFF Nexus Study costs, resulting in the current remaining costs in 2013 dollars. Table 28 
provides backup detail for the costs of completed improvements.  The 2013 remaining costs have 
been updated to 2020 dollars using the change in the Engineering News-Record CCI for 
San Francisco from September 2013 through March 2020. 

Table 29 summarizes the remaining net costs in 2020 dollars by fee component after accounting 
for the fee fund balances. At this time, sufficient funds have not been collected to fund all 
remaining improvements. Additional funding in the amount of the estimated remaining net costs 
is needed to fully fund all remaining improvements and fee administration.  In total, 
approximately $232.8 million in additional funding is needed to fully finance the remaining fee 
program costs, as summarized by component below: 

Amount and Timing of Remaining Funding 

Future CFF Program revenue will provide the financing needed to fully fund the remaining 
improvements and fee administration costs summarized above. The timing and amount of the 
fee revenue will depend on the rate and amount of development.  Fee revenue will be collected 
at the issuance of building permits. The remaining improvements will be constructed as sufficient 
fee revenue becomes available.  The improvements will be completed in an order to be 
established by the City. 

Estimated Net Remaining Costs

Transportation $ 193,516,000
General Government $ 18,852,000
Police $ 7,605,000
Fire $ 6,986,000
Contingency ($ 212,000)
Administration $ 6,096,000
Total $ 232,843,000



Table 27
Turlock Annual Report
CFF Program Remaining Costs

Project Assumption Transportation
General

Government Police Fire Total Notes

Cost Adjustment
San Francisco CCI - Sep. 2013 [1] 820.85
San Francisco CCI - March 2020 [1] 1,012.13
Cost Increase Factor 1.23

Total Improvements Cost (from 2013 Nexus Study) $ 420,655,870 $ 16,582,589 $ 6,823,050 $ 13,750,538 $ 457,812,047
Total CFF-Funded Cost (from 2013 Nexus Study) [2] $ 170,640,022 $ 15,403,930 $ 6,823,050 $ 7,262,086 $ 200,129,088
CFF-Funded Percentage of Total 41% 93% 100% 53% 44%

Total CFF-Funded Improvement Cost (from 2013 Nexus Study) [2] $ 170,640,022 $ 15,403,930 $ 6,823,050 $ 7,262,086 $ 200,129,088

Less Completed Projects [3]
440' of 1,840 Fulkerth RD Median Landscaping ($ 54,674) ($ 54,674) partially complete
Washington / W Main Intersection ($ 44,693) ($ 44,693) partially complete
Golden State Blvd / Hawkeye Ave. Traffic Signal and Turn Lanes ($ 500,000) ($ 500,000) complete
Fulkerth Rd/ Diane Traffic Signal and Intersection Realignment ($ 1,400,000) ($ 1,400,000) complete
Washington Rd / W Main St Traffic Signal ($ 220,000) ($ 220,000) complete
SR 99/Fulkerth Rd Interchange ($ 3,846,942) ($ 3,846,942) partially complete
Golf/Berkeley/GSB Intersection ($ 18,765) ($ 18,765) partially complete
Downtown Parking Study ($ 69,808) ($ 69,808) complete
Downtown Parking - 129 S. Broadway ($ 455,564) ($ 455,564) partially complete
General Plan Update ($ 13,685) ($ 13,685) partially complete
Recreation Facilities Prioritization & Feasibility Study ($ 75,000) ($ 75,000) complete
Project: 1673 - City Hall Renovation ($ 18,922) ($ 18,922) partially complete
Fire Training Facility ($ 353,480) ($ 353,480) partially complete
Total ($ 6,085,074) ($ 632,980) $ 0 ($ 353,480) ($ 7,071,533)

Remaining CFF-Funded Improvement Cost (2013 $) A $ 164,554,948 $ 14,770,950 $ 6,823,050 $ 6,908,606 $ 193,057,555

Remaining CFF-Funded Improvement Cost (2020 $) A * 1.23 $ 202,900,651 $ 18,212,977 $ 8,413,003 $ 8,518,497 $ 238,045,127

Administration 3% $ 6,087,020 $ 546,389 $ 252,390 $ 255,555 $ 7,141,354

Total Remaining CFF-Funded Cost (2020 $) $ 208,987,670 $ 18,759,366 $ 8,665,393 $ 8,774,051 $ 245,186,481

cff cost

Source: City of Turlock

[1] ENR CCI with 1967 base year; converted by City from the monthly reported ENR CCIs with 1913 base.
[2] Transportation amount adjusted to account for $5.5 million in overcrossing projects that are not CFF Funded ($176,163,804-$5,523,782)
[3] See Table 28.

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

48



Table 28
Turlock Annual Report
CFF Project Costs Incurred Detail

Project Transportation
General

Government Police Fire Total

440' of 1,840 Fulkerth RD Median Landscaping (partially complete 9/24/13) [1] $ 54,674 $ 54,674

Washington / W Main Intersection (partially complete 1/22/13) $ 44,693 $ 44,693

Golden State Blvd / Hawkeye Ave. Traffic Signal and Turn Lanes (complete 5/22/18) $ 500,000 $ 500,000

Fulkerth Rd/ Diane Traffic Signal and Intersection Realignment (complete 7/14/15) $ 1,400,000 $ 1,400,000

Washington Rd / W Main St Traffic Signal (complete 1/22/13) $ 220,000 $ 220,000

SR 99/Fulkerth Rd Interchange (partially complete)
FY 2013-14 $ 396,468 $ 396,468
FY 2014-15 $ 1,220,250 $ 1,220,250
FY 2015-16 $ 106,288 $ 106,288
FY 2016-17 $ 29,363 $ 29,363
FY 2017-18 $ 659,992 $ 659,992
FY 2018-19 $ 1,434,581 $ 1,434,581
Total SR 99/Fulkerth Rd Interchange $ 3,846,942 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 3,846,942

Golf/Berkeley/GSB Intersection (partially complete)
FY 2014-15 $ 2,249 $ 2,249
FY 2015-16 $ 7,961 $ 7,961
FY 2016-17 $ 5,638 $ 5,638
FY 2017-18 $ 1,104 $ 1,104
FY 2018-19 $ 1,812 $ 1,812
Total Golf/Berkeley/GSB Intersection $ 18,765 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 18,765

Downtown Parking Study (complete)
FY 2015-16 $ 65,208 $ 65,208
FY 2016-17 $ 4,600 $ 4,600
Total Downtown Parking Study $ 0 $ 69,808 $ 0 $ 0 $ 69,808

Downtown Parking - 129 S. Broadway (partially complete)
FY 2015-16 $ 40,024 $ 40,024
FY 2016-17 $ 384,325 $ 384,325
FY 2017-18 $ 31,215 $ 31,215
Total Downtown Parking - 129 S. Broadway $ 0 $ 455,564 $ 0 $ 0 $ 455,564

General Plan Update: FY 2013-14 (partially complete) $ 0 $ 13,685 $ 0 $ 0 $ 13,685

Recreation Facilities Prioritization & Feasibility Study (complete FY 16-17) $ 0 $ 75,000 $ 0 $ 0 $ 75,000

Project: 1673 - City Hall Renovation (partially complete)
FY 2016-17 $ 17,935 $ 17,935
FY 2017-18 $ 987 $ 987
Total Project: 1673 - City Hall Renovation $ 0 $ 18,922 $ 0 $ 0 $ 18,922

Fire Training Facility (partially complete)
FY 2016-17 210,265 $ 210,265
FY 2017-18 86,076 $ 86,076
FY 2018-19 $ 57,138 $ 57,138
Total Fire Training Facility $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 353,480 $ 353,480

Total $ 6,085,074 $ 632,980 $ 0 $ 353,480 $ 7,071,533

cost det

Source: City of Turlock

[1] 440' of 1840' median completed; cost incurred estimated as 440/1840 * $228,637 (total cost).

Prepared by EPS  7/13/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

49



Table 29
Turlock Annual Report
CFF Program Net Remaining Costs (2020 $)

Item Source Transportation
General

Government Police Fire Contingency Administration Total

Remaining CFF-Funded Cost (2020 $) [1] Table 27 $ 202,900,651 $ 18,212,977 $ 8,413,003 $ 8,518,497 $ 0 $ 7,141,354 $ 245,186,481

Less Fund Balance Table 26 ($ 9,384,736) $ 638,795 ($ 807,967) ($ 1,532,926) ($ 211,726) ($ 1,044,899) ($ 12,343,459)

Net Remaining Costs $ 193,515,915 $ 18,851,772 $ 7,605,037 $ 6,985,571 ($ 211,726) $ 6,096,455 $ 232,843,022

Sufficient Funds Available to Complete Improvements No No No No N/A No No
Percent of Total  Improvements Funded by Fee Program Table 27 41% 93% 100% 53% N/A 100% 44%

cff net cost

[1] Costs funded by the CFF Program only. Total capital facilities costs and percentages funded by CFF Program are shown on Table 27.

Cost (2020 $)

Prepared by EPS  7/14/2020 Z:\Shared\Projects\SAC\192000\192147 Turlock Annual Reports\Models\192147 m5.xlsx

50



 
City Council Staff Report 
October 26, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 
From: Katie Quintero, 
 Deputy Director of Development Services / Planning Manager 
 
Prepared by: Wayne York, Transit Manager 
 
Agendized by: Dan Madden, Acting City Manager 
 
 
1. ACTION RECOMMENDED: 
 

Motion: Authorizing the City of Turlock to join transit agencies in San Joaquin 
County and Stanislaus County to participate in the regional 
deployment of the Vamos Mobility app, a regional Mobility-as-a-
Service (MaaS) platform, and related EZHub payment system, 
provided by Masabi, and authorizing the City Manager to execute all 
documents associated with implementing the proposed action 

 
2. SYNOPSIS: 
 

The proposed action authorizes the City Manager to execute documents associated 
with the City of Turlock joining transit agencies in San Joaquin County and 
Stanislaus County in the regional deployment of the Vamos Mobility app and 
integrated EZHub payment platform, provided by Masabi. 

 
3. DISCUSSION OF ISSUE: 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
In Fiscal Year 2018-19 the San Joaquin Council of Governments (SJCOG) utilized 
California Transportation Department (Caltrans) Sustainable Communities Planning 
funds to study the feasibility of integrated ticketing among San Joaquin County’s 
seven (7) transit providers to enhance public transit efficiency and experience in San 
Joaquin County. SJCOG and local transit agencies met six (6) times over the course 
of one (1) year, and discussed challenges, opportunities, and goals for their transit 
agencies. 
 
In October 2019, SJCOG and its transit partners released a Request for Proposals 
(RFP) to obtain services from a single vendor. The requested services were the 
implementation of a mobile ticketing app for San Joaquin County’s six (6) bus 
agencies and one (1) rail agency, and the integration of payment data into the Air 
Resources Board (ARB) funded Vamos trip planning application. Vendors were 



Agenda Staff Report 
10/26/21 

Page 2 

 

scored based on thoroughness of the written proposal and meeting the RFP 
objectives, comprehension of project, qualification and experience of team, project 
budget, and delivery time. 
 
In January 2020, SJCOG entered into an agreement with Masabi (Exhibit A) to 
develop one mobile ticketing application for all six (6) bus agencies and the Rail 
Commission. Masabi offers a variety of passes through their application and passes 
may even be used without cellular service at the time of boarding. Masabi also offers 
a thorough plan for staff training, ensuring the transit professionals have a clear 
understanding of the technology.  Masabi also offers robust marketing campaigns, 
which could be coordinated regionally to reduce costs and improve effectiveness. 
Other agencies Masabi serves are Denver RTD and Los Angeles Metrolink. 
 
Expansion to Stanislaus County 
 
SJCOG and their project partners have been engaging with representatives from the 
Stanislaus Council of Governments (StanCOG) and Stanislaus County transit 
agencies regarding adoption of the Vamos app and EZHub payment system for 
several years.  Representatives have discussed advantages, disadvantages, and 
challenges associated with the integrated platform and have improved upon both 
the functionality and capabilities of the system over time. 
 
SJCOG is offering (Exhibit B) the City of Turlock the opportunity to join transit 
agencies in both San Joaquin County and Stanislaus County in participating with the 
regional deployment of both the Vamos Mobility app and the integrated EZHub 
payment system, allowing customers to use a single app for both trip planning and 
purchase of passes, even when the trip spans multiple agencies.  Representatives 
from the Stanislaus Regional Transit Authority (StanRTA) are preparing to 
participate as well.  As a MaaS service, it also allows users to access other 
transportation services, such as the Volunteers on the Go (VOGO) program in 
Riverbank, as well as plans for integration of a variety other modes of transportation 
in the future. 
 
All one-time setup and monthly fees will be paid by SJCOG through December 2024. 
The transit agency (City of Turlock) would be responsible for paying the 5% 
transaction fee for each transaction completed by a user, which is less than the 10% 
fee currently paid for users purchasing passes through Token Transit.  The proposed 
solution reduces barriers to regional mobility, simplifies the trip planning process, 
and saves money by reducing the costs associated with transaction fees. 
 
City staff plans to coordinate with StanRTA staff in the coming months regarding 
Token Transit, since it’s a mobile ticketing service currently provided by both 
agencies.  In the likely event there is concurrence to transition away from Token 
Transit completely, the two agencies will coordinate those transition efforts to 
minimize disruptions and confusion for passengers. 



Agenda Staff Report 
10/26/21 

Page 3 

 

 
All transit agencies electing to participate have been asked to sign a Schedule I 
(Exhibit C), which would be completed and submitted to SJCOG in order to 
piggyback off of the previously executed agreement. 

 
4. BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION: 
 

A. The proposed solution reduces barriers to transit by providing a single app 
that integrates trip planning, fare purchases, and multiple modes of travel. 
 

B. The proposed solution is the result of a competitive process undertaken by 
SJCOG, which allows for piggybacking by other public agencies. 
 

C. The upfront costs would be paid in full by SJCOG and the ongoing transaction 
costs (5%) would be less than the current rate (10%) paid with Token Transit. 

 
D. The Vamos app and EZHub platform has been adopted by all transit agencies 

in San Joaquin County, which are recommending its adoption to others, 
reducing the risks that sometimes accompany adoption of new technology. 

 
E. The solution has potential for future growth and expansion, providing support 

for future transportation services that may be provided by the City, such as a 
micro transit solution. 

 
F. Participation does not require exclusivity, which allows the City (and the 

StanRTA) time to develop a joint transition plan away from Token Transit 
while minimizing the impacts to current Token Transit users. 

 
5. FISCAL IMPACT / BUDGET AMENDMENT: 
 

Since SJCOG has agreed to pay for all one-time and ongoing monthly fees through 
December 2024 the only costs attributable to the City are the 5% transaction fees 
associated with each transaction by users.  Since the City currently pays a 10% flat 
fee to Token Transit for their services, this change would result in a cost savings 
with no upfront capital required. 
 
In terms of long-term financial impacts, starting in January 2025 there will be ongoing 
monthly costs associated with continuing to support the platform.  While no firm 
decisions have been made, given the regional benefit this platform provides there is 
strong support for the SJCOG and StanCOG to fund these fees as part of a regional 
project.  If that does not occur, then the estimated $9,700 per month costs would be 
divided in an equitable way between transit agencies and the City could allocate 
transit grant revenues towards those expenses. 
 
There is no impact to the General Fund. 



Agenda Staff Report 
10/26/21 

Page 4 

 

 
6. CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS 
 

Recommend approval. 
 
7. ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: 
 

This action is not subject to the provisions of the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) in accordance with Section 15378 (Project) of the CEQA guidelines.  
This action consists of “organizational or administrative activities of governments 
that will not result in direct or indirect physical changes in the environment” and 
therefore is not considered a project. 

 
8. ALTERNATIVES: 
 

A. Reject the proposed motion and direct staff to maintain existing services with 
Token Transit.  City staff does not recommend this approach as it costs the 
City more money (10% vs. 5%), does not incorporate trip planning and fare 
payment in an integrated platform, misses an opportunity for regional 
cooperation, and misses an opportunity to be supported with regional 
marketing support. 











































1 

SAN JOAQUIN  
COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
MOBILE TICKETING VENDOR 
Request for Proposal 

ATTACHMENT A



San Joaquin Council of Governments - Mobile Ticketing Vendor 

2 
 

TRANSMITTAL LETTER 
Masabi is proud to be the mobile ticketing provider for ACE Rail and is excited by the opportunity to deliver its 
mobile fare payments platform, Justride, to the riders of San Joaquin Council of Governments (SJCOG) agencies 
beyond those that currently use the Justride platform to ride on ACE Rail. Masabi LLC (Masabi) is convinced that 
Justride is the ideal solution for SJCOG as it seeks to offer a more seamless combined passenger experience and 
is confident that SJCOG will conclude similarly. 

As a global leader in mobile fare collection, Masabi has spent more than a decade developing the Justride 
platform to be the most sophisticated, mobile-centric, account-based fare collection platform in the industry. 
Justride processes over $1 billion annually and 10 million journeys per month. The platform has been deployed 
to serve the needs of over 70 agencies across the globe; agencies of all sizes and transit modes. 

Masabi’s experience is unsurpassed and will be essential to the success of a complex multi-agency deployment 
with multiple key stakeholders. Masabi has extensive experience managing multi-agency deployments. Earlier 
this year in Ohio and Kentucky, Masabi launched EZfare, a regional multi-agency mobile ticketing deployment 
across 13 agencies. That deployment has universally been lauded as a huge success and Masabi is confident 
SJCOG will be the same. 

For SJCOG, Masabi is proposing an innovative approach that will accomplish 6 important and unique outcomes 
for the agency: 

1) Allow for seamless direct customer management utilizing the industry-leading Justride back-office Hub 
2) Enable ticketing within Vamos while preserving the operations and the pricing for its existing customer, 

ACE Rail 
3) Leverages a secure Software Development Kit instead of APIs, which has a number of benefits to the 

agencies 
4) Enables offline ticketing activations - an essential component for a successful mobile ticketing 

deployment 
5) Best-in-class and highly secure visual validation so that SFCOG don’t have to manage colors and words 

of the day across multiple agencies 
6) Utilizes a consistent “universal ticketing” ticket screen regardless of the frontend application to reduce 

the operational burden on the agencies 

Masabi is proposing to integrate the Justride SDK within the Vamos app so that riders can plan a journey and 
pay for that journey from within the same application. Masabi has engaged with Kyyti in order to accomplish 
this for SJCOG. Masabi views the SDK as an incredible tool for a transit agency in that it both achieves true 
MaaS right now, and because it expands an agency’s sales channels.  

In addition to deploying within the Vamos App, SJCOG can optionally utilize Masabi’s strong partnership with 
North America’s leading consumer journey planning application, Transit App, to deploy Justride natively within 
Transit.  By embedding the SDK in multiple third-party applications, these offerings will encourage wider use of 
public transit, while helping SJCOG maintain and increase its ridership. 

Finally, the Justride platform is unique in that it is not just a mobile ticketing solution. It is a fare payment 
platform that enables agencies to deploy mobile ticketing, install electronic validation, and then expand the 
platform to offer Tap & Ride Account Based Ticketing, accepting smart cards, student IDs and ultimately 
contactless bank cards (cEMV). It is essential for agencies to view mobile ticketing with an eye towards the 
future, and Masabi is the right partner for the SJCOG agencies to begin this journey.  

 



San Joaquin Council of Governments - Mobile Ticketing Vendor 

3 
 

In summary, Masabi is the ideal choice for SJCOG for the following reasons:  

1. Masabi’s team has unmatched experience deploying mobile ticketing in the transit industry including 
direct experience with a project similar to this one for EZfare in Ohio. 

2. The proposed solution will not interfere with existing operations of ACE Rail and will be seamless and 
easy to use for agencies and their operators. 

3. The agencies will benefit from a best-in-class back-office management tool so that they can use this 
solution to engage with their customers. 

4. The Justride platform has been designed to support agency interoperability, having proven this 
functionality for the MTA in New York City with functionality like joint ticketing, multi-agency customer 
service and reporting, and much more. 

5. The Justride platform has been engineered to be integrable within an integrated mobility platform 
through the Software Development Kit, currently leveraged by Transit App, Uber, Jorudan, etc. 
worldwide.  Masabi looks forward to bringing this same functionality to the Vamos App. 

6. The Justride platform can serve SJCOG mobile ticketing needs at the present time as well as its 
potential needs for a full system-wide regional AFC solution in the future (including, but not limited to, 
validated mobile, smartcards, cash digitization and cEMV (2021)). 

7. SJCOG can deploy in phases, first mobile ticketing and then if it chooses, SJCOG can scale into the full 
capabilities of the platform.  

With the Justride platform, SJCOG and the regional agencies will be deploying mobile ticketing as a first step 
towards innovating their service with a fully integrated, mobile-centric fare payments platform. 

This proposal is a firm offer valid for ninety days from December 2nd, 2019, and the contact details of the 
individuals with authority to negotiate and contractually bind Masabi can be found at the PS of this letter. 

Thank you in advance for your consideration. 

 
Jeff Nullmeyer 
Masabi Sr. Business Development Manager, North America 
 
 

Individuals with authority to negotiate and contractually bind Masabi:

 Individual 1 Individual 2 Individual 3 

Name Jeff Nullmeyer Zach Ascher Vicente Simon 

Title Sr. Business Development 
Manager, North America

VP Business Development, 
North America

Head of Bids 

Address 205 E 42nd Street, Suite 
14003 
New York, NY 10017 

205 E 42nd Street, Suite 
14003 
New York, NY 10017 

37 Bevenden Street 
London, N1 6BH 
United Kingdom 

Phone +1 949-973-3982 +1 860-800-3188 + 44 747 888 0396 

Email jeff.nullmeyer@masabi.com zach.ascher@masabi.com vicente.simon@masabi.com



San Joaquin Council of Governments - Mobile Ticketing Vendor 

4 
 

TABLE OF 
CONTENTS 
Transmittal Letter ........................................................................................................................................................................................ 2 

Overview .......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Project Purpose ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Proposed Approach ................................................................................................................................................................................. 5 

Requirements Compliance Matrix .................................................................................................................................................. 11 

Justride Platform Description ........................................................................................................................................................... 13 

Platform Architecture, Security and Privacy ................................................................................................................................ 26 

Project Organization ............................................................................................................................................................................ 30 

Detailed Work Plan ................................................................................................................................................................................... 32 

Tasks Description .................................................................................................................................................................................. 32 

Deliverables ............................................................................................................................................................................................ 35 

Quality Assurance ................................................................................................................................................................................. 38 

Schedule...................................................................................................................................................................................................42

Training .................................................................................................................................................................................................... 43 

Customer Care and Support Services ............................................................................................................................................ 45 

Qualifications ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 51 

Budget and Cost Breakdown ................................................................................................................................................................. 59 

Cost Breakdown ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 59 

Rate Card ................................................................................................................................................................................................. 59 

Pricing Notes & Assumptions .......................................................................................................................................................... 59 

Annex A - Key Personnel Resumés ..................................................................................................................................................... 62 

Annex B - Project Schedule ................................................................................................................................................................... 70 

Annex C - Transit App Features ............................................................................................................................................................ 72 

 

 



San Joaquin Council of Governments - Mobile Ticketing Vendor 

5 
 

OVERVIEW 
PROJECT PURPOSE 
The purpose of this project is to implement a new fare payments technology for the SJCOG and its partners the 
cities of Escalon, Lodi, Tracy, Ripon, Manteca, the San Joaquin Regional Transit District, and the San Joaquin 
Regional Rail Commission, and to integrate its payment data and application program interface (API) into the 
Vamos Mobility-as-a-Service (MaaS) trip planning application (available on the App Store & Google Play Store). 

The overall objectives for this project are: 
1. Offer a “one-stop shop” for San Joaquin residents to easily plan trips and purchase necessary transit 

passes. 
2. Encourage more transit ridership by developing a regionally focused and user-friendly experience. 

In order to reach the overall objectives, the selected vendor should achieve the following intermittent goals: 
1.  Support the development a scalable MaaS platform in which other agencies may wish to opt into in the 

future. 
2.  Provide accurate and timely ridership and revenue data that can support detailed analysis and reports 

of transit trends among riders. 
3. Reduce onboard fare processing time to make the boarding process easier for operators and customers. 

PROPOSED APPROACH 
Masabi’s approach to accomplish the goals of SJCOG and its partners is to deploy its Justride fare payments 
technology in the following manner: 

Masabi is proposing to integrate the SDK within the Vamos app so that riders can plan a journey and 
pay for that journey from within the same application. 
Masabi is proposing the option for SJCOG to also deploy within the Transit App in addition to the Vamos 
app. Transit, the leading real-time journey planning application in North America, is Masabi's strategic 
partner who was the first to integrate the Justride SDK. 

This proposed approach is very similar to the one that EZfare, a consortium of 13 transit systems – Laketran, 
MCPT, METRO RTA, PARTA, SARTA, TARTA, WRTA, Lancaster-Fairfield Public Transit, BCRTA, METRO, Sandusky 
Transit, TANK and Cincinnati Bell Connector - has launched. (A case study of this initiative can be found below). 

Masabi has already engaged in discussions with Kyyti to make the approach described here possible and has 
their commitment to support the proposed SDK integration. 

This approach has the following key benefits: 

Sophisticated Customer Engagement and Ticketing Management 
The Justride Hub, detailed further in this proposal, is an industry-leading and best-in-class back-office portal 
that will enable all of the SJCOG agencies to seamlessly manage their customers (such as setting specific 
customer accounts as entitled to access discount rider types like senior and student riders) and gain important 
analytical and report-driven insights. 

Extension of Existing Operations 
The proposed approach, leveraging Masabi’s SDK will not interfere with ACE Rail’s existing application nor ACE 
Rail’s existing back-office operational management tool. All tickets sold through the SDK will seamlessly flow 
through into ACE’s existing back-office.  



San Joaquin Council of Governments - Mobile Ticketing Vendor 

6 
 

Masabi is proposing to sell ACE Rail tickets through the apps proposed here under the same existing  
commercial terms that are in place for its current mobile ticketing app provided by Masabi, as this agreement 
provides advantageous commercial terms for the San Joaquin Regional Rail Commission who benefits from the 
higher minimum and average ticket prices in comparison to the rest of the agencies in the consortium, in 
comparison to the rest of the consortium members (see table below). 

Agency Minimum Ticket Price Maximum Ticket Price 

Tracy Tracer $0.50 $12.50 

ACE Rail $4.75 (9.5 times bigger) $386.00 (30.9 times bigger) 

SDK vs. APIs 
Masabi has opted for proposing the Justride SDK instead of the suggested API route to integrate with the 
Vamos app for the following reasons: 

The SDK allows third party applications to request fare types, make payments, and deliver secure visual 
and barcode tickets to users through an encrypted digital wallet, without a third party needing to 
manage tickets. Security, lifecycle, validation and display are all handled by Masabi out of the box. 
The SDK provides secure, tamper-proof ticketing to prevent fraud as tickets are locked to a single 
device, encrypted on disk and include security measures to prevent casual sharing via screenshot and 
video recording. Electronically validated payloads are asymmetrically encrypted by the retail server and 
are dynamically extended with additional device information. 
The SDK handles the full ticket lifecycle, the management of ticket validity periods, activations and 
ensures the integrity of the tickets. An API-only approach leaves security and lifecycle management 
exclusively in the hands of the integrated mobility app, which may not have experience or expertise in 
delivering secure ticketing. While this approach may be suitable for very simple ticketing needs, 
supporting more complex products and preventing fraud becomes much harder. 
The SDK is optimized for rapid boarding in a mass-transit environment. Purchased tickets can be 
activated offline: essential for remote areas with limited cell coverage or busy terminals with severe 
network congestion. Offline tickets provide a better experience for visiting or low-income passengers 
that may not have a data plan.  
The Justride SDK makes mobile tickets available as both a visual digital ticket, which can be inspected 
by a driver or ticket inspector, and a dynamic and encrypted barcode, which is scanned by an inspector 
app, or a validation unit. 
The visual appearance of tickets is managed by the SDK and synchronized from the back-office to 
ensure consistency across all sales channels. Validity of a ticket for a given service, time, or rider can be 
rapidly checked using the same symbols, visuals and training from existing paper tickets, minimizing 
impact on revenue staff. 
The SDK can handle payments and account creation and authentication, although it can also fit into 
systems where an existing customer payments and accounts service exist today offering a much bigger 
flexibility in comparison to an API integration, and allows minimizing the integration effort and 
allowing the integration party, in this case Vamos app, to focus in their area of expertise without having 
to handle payments, etc.

Offline Ticketing 
One of the key differentiators of the Justride platform is that it allows ticket activation offline to ensure that 
riders can still travel and access their purchased tickets immediately even when a network connection is 
unavailable, guaranteeing high speed throughput – critical in a transit scenario, where the user is often in a 
poor coverage area or a busy area with significant contention for signal. 



San Joaquin Council of Governments - Mobile Ticketing Vendor 

7 
 

Masabi has engineered the Justride platform to be secure and to protect against fraudulent activity while still 
being functional in a transit environment. 

Ticket Wallet Security 
As described above, cellular signal strength on transit networks is not consistently reliable enough to enforce a 
mandatory connection back to the server before a pre-purchased ticket can be used, and trying to do so would 
result in significant customer problems. 

However, offline tickets present a potential vector for fraud. In order to protect against this, Justride implements 
a sophisticated multi-layer security approach to eliminate the main avenues for fraud: distributing tickets to 
multiple devices, manipulating the ticket data to change validity, and preventing ticket activation notifications 
from reaching the server. 

First, Justride incorporates a custom secure ticket vault, that locks tickets to a specific mobile handset in a 
tamper proof encrypted store.  A number of cryptographic layers to render ticket data unreadable by any other 
device, alongside digital signatures that prevent users modifying tickets. 

Second, Justride provides robust security against various attacks that can be attempted against offline ticket 
usage.  The server limits the number of times tickets can be moved between devices - or restored onto the 
same device after an application is reinstalled.  On iOS, persistent storage is also used to ensure that even after 
a reinstall on the same device all offline activation records are processed and sent to the server; Android does 
not have similar built-in functionality but makes best effort to achieve the same protections. 

In short, this means that agencies benefit from offline functionality and protect against common forms of fraud. 

Visual Validation 

 

Masabi’s approach to validation without on-vehicle hardware is unique in the industry. It is highly secure, easy 
to use, and does not require agencies to distribute colors or words of the day. 



San Joaquin Council of Governments - Mobile Ticketing Vendor 

8 
 

The primary mechanism for validating a ticket is the three color visual validation bar shown along the top of 
the ticket. Masabi tickets incorporate a visual watermark of animated elements following a cryptographically 
derived unpredictable sequence of colors, which can be used by staff to gain confidence in the authenticity of 
tickets without the need to resort to barcode scanning. 

The fundamental tri-color bar mechanism displays the same three colors across all active tickets at any given 
point in time, but over time the colors will change at different speeds - from every 10 minutes on the right to 
every 12 hours on the left. colors blend from one to the next over time so that two phones with clocks 30 
seconds apart look very similar, when 5 minutes apart are similar but visibly distinct, and when an hour or more 
apart are very different. 

This technology was designed for an inspector or driver to quickly validate tickets of multiple people boarding 
at once reducing dwell times and without requiring agency staff to circulate daily words or images across their 
system. Because all active tickets have the same three colors displayed at any given point in time, an inspector 
or driver can quickly validate tickets referentially against others the driver is validating. 

In addition, the colors pulse up and down visibly, and over the top of them, the app displays the current date 
and time, scrolling back and forth. These additional security measures ensure that users cannot use screen 
grabs or recording of the app for travel. 

Finally, interactive elements are placed on the ticket so that an inspector or driver, suspicious a ticket might be 
a pre-recorded or screens-shared video, can request that the user taps on the interactive elements, which then 
dynamically change to prove the ticket is a real application that the user is interacting with. 

Consistent and Simplified Ticket Screens 

 

Tickets are potentially complex screens, but Justride simplifies the ticketing screen, supporting a standard 
flexible design which is consistent across all sales channels (Vamos, Transit, and ACE Rail).  

Justride mobile tickets contain a section of the screen that emulates paper tickets, including custom symbols 
based on ticket type. Key editable components of tickets that are supported are: 



San Joaquin Council of Governments - Mobile Ticketing Vendor 

9 
 

A rectangular section of screen supports configurable elements that can bring in design cues from the 
paper tickets, including custom symbols based on ticket type, thereby supporting customer and staff 
adoption. 
A choice of information to display from what is contained within the ticket. 
Text color, style and sizing for ticket information. 

This means that there can be distinct and separate images per agency with custom branding, but that there will 
be a consistent experience for operators no matter what sales channel a passenger purchases a ticket through. 

EZfare Business Case 
Earlier this year in Ohio and Kentucky, Masabi and a consortium of 
13 transit agencies in the region launched EZfare, a regional multi-
agency cashless mobile ticketing initiative, making riding transit 
easier than ever before for passengers. This initiative has rapidly 
grown, eclipsing virtually everyone’s initial expectations. 

EZfare tickets are also available within Transit, North America’s 
leading real-time journey planning app. Transit is integrating the 
EZfare platform via Masabi’s Justride SDK, enabling ticketing from 
within Transit’s existing application. This ground-breaking 
innovation will help open up ticketing across the region, giving 
people the freedom and flexibility to open a single app to plan a 
trip, get real-time information, and purchase a ticket in just a few 
taps. EZFare has been developed with the goal of making a one-
stop shop for fare purchasing across the region. 

The agencies that have deployed EZFare chose Masabi because of 
Masabi’s unparalleled experience and because they could expand 
the Justride platform beyond mobile ticketing to be their future 
Automatic Fare Collection solution. 

The first step in that journey was launching mobile ticketing with Justride and enabling Transit App as an 
additional digital sales channel. 

The next step in this journey will be launching electronic validation using the Masabi Justride JRV validator in 
all the fleet of the participating EZfare agencies during 2020, enabling them to launch a regional pass and 
accept paper tickets, what ultimately would be used to extend this initiative to the unbanked population.

This journey is a clear example of the full capabilities of the Justride platform and why the Justride platform is 
the most innovative fare payments platform in the market. It enables agencies to deploy mobile ticketing, 
install electronic validation, and then expand the platform to offer Tap & Ride Account Based Ticketing, 
accepting smart cards, student IDs and ultimately contactless bank cards (cEMV). 

Transit 
Masabi has decided to partner with Transit and offer ticketing integrated within Transit as an option for SJCOG 
to deploy an additional mobile ticketing solution beyond the Vamos application as requested by SJCOG. This is 
offered to SJCOG as a solution in case funding for the Vamos app runs out. This section is a brief introduction to 
Transit as a company and its product, the Transit App. 

 



San Joaquin Council of Governments - Mobile Ticketing Vendor 

10 
 

Transit’s goal is to help people get from A to B without their own car. With public transportation firmly at the 
center of this vision, this aligns Transit’s objectives with the many agencies we have partnered with. By 
partnering with Transit, the SJCOG can provide its agencies’ riders with the best user experience in the most 
popular public transportation planning app in North America immediately. Transit’s mobile ticketing integration 
and multimodal capabilities ensure that public transit is at the center of all its riders’ journeys. And because 
Transit maintains one product that is customized - but not white labeled or built from scratch for each agency - 
SJCOG and its constituent agencies will benefit from new features and integrations over the coming years as 
Transit ensures the city’s digital mobility platform remains on the cutting edge of the fast-evolving industry.  

A proven local solution, Transit is already serves a growing user base of over 6,000 monthly active users in 
SJCOG agencies’ service area, including over 2000 users who rely on the app daily. On a given weekday, our 
users open Transit to access information for SJRTD and ACE between 4,000 and 6,000 times. These users have 
discovered Transit by word of mouth, through the App Store or Play Store, or from other agencies’ marketing--
naturally, an endorsement of Transit by SJCOG combined with a local marketing campaign supported by Transit 
would increase this user base substantially.  

With a growing team of over 60 employees, Transit has remained focused on maintaining and improving a 
single service – our app – for the past seven years. Founded in 2012, Transit now has millions of active users 
across 200 cities worldwide and has become the most-used public transit app in North America. Transit is also 
the third-highest-ranking navigation app in the App Store, trailing only Google Maps and Waze. The app has 
received Apple’s coveted Editor’s Choice tag in the App Store, and has an App Store rating of 4.7 stars. 

Right on launch, Transit shows users all nearby transport options and departure times in big text and bright 
colors that reflect agencies’ branding. Users can easily navigate public transit with accurate real-time 
predictions, simple multimodal trip planning, offline trip planning, step-by-step navigation, and fare payment. 

Available on iOS and Android, Transit has been selected as the officially endorsed trip planning app by close to 
50 transit agencies in North America, including large ones like the MBTA (Boston, MA), STM (Montreal, QC), 
Metro (St. Louis, MO), MDOT MTA (Baltimore, MD), UTA (Salt Lake City, Utah) and VTA (Silicon Valley, CA), as 
well as smaller ones such as the RTA (Dayton, OH),  PSTA (Pinellas County, FL), the multi-agency NEORide 
consortium (Ohio) and many more. These agencies recognize that partnering with an established consumer-first 
app is preferable to procuring or building their own multimodal app. Some of Transit’s partner agencies, 
including Montreal’s STM and St. Louis Metro, have even discontinued their branded app in favor of a 
partnership with Transit.  

The native integration of Masabi’s Justride SDK allows Transit to offer a truly all-in-one mobility-as-a-service 
app, including multimodal trip planning and electronic payment. 

Transit’s ticketing integration was launched just over six months ago after careful preparation with its ticketing 
partners, including Masabi. It has proven very popular with transportation agencies. After a successful 
deployment in April 2019 with Masabi in the Canadian city of Saint Catharines, Ontario, Transit has since 
deployed integrated ticketing for the NEORide consortium in Ohio (including Cincinnati and Dayton), Denver, 
and most recently in Santa Monica for Big Blue Bus. Transit will continue to expand its ticketing coverage, with 
several signed contracts with other major North American transit agencies.

Please refer to Annex C to find more detailed information on the Transit App features. 

 



San Joaquin Council of Governments - Mobile Ticketing Vendor 

11 
 

REQUIREMENTS COMPLIANCE MATRIX 
Applicable answers for each requirement are: 

E = Vendor exceeds the requirement. 
FC = Fully Compliant: Vendor complies with the requirement in its entirety. 
PC = Partially Comply: Vendor complies with part of the requirement. Information to be added in the 
Comments section. 
A = Alternative: Vendor has an alternative functionality that would meet the needs of the agency. 
Information to be added in the Comments section. 
NC = Non-Compliant: The vendor does not comply with the requirement in its entirety. 

Item Requirement Response Comments 

A 
Develop One Mobile Ticketing Application for All Six Bus 
Agencies and The Rail Commission. 

FC  

 
Institute a robust and flexible platform to support single 
and multi-agency fare 
transactions (ticket types, prices, validity and expiration) 

FC  

 
Support existing and future pass products and single trip 
payments 

FC  

 
Use centralized server/account-based fare payment 
processing that allows mobile tickets to be purchased and 
stored in a “mobile wallet” that is available offline 

FC  

 
Allow users to purchase fares via credit card, debit card, 
cash, and third-party options such as Google Pay and 
Apple Pay 

FC  

 
Offer users the ability to conveniently acquire fares, view, 
and print purchase history, and pay for the reload value 
on a mobile device 

FC  

 
Safeguard all customer information from unauthorized 
access through the use of 
strong encryption or similar technology 

FC  

 Develop a solution that operates without any physical 
equipment needed onboard bus or rail fleets 

FC  

B 

Support a “One-Stop Shop” for San Joaquin Residents by 
Integrating with the Vamos Trip Planning Application 

E 

Masabi has engaged and validated with Kyyti to that 
they would integrate the Justride SDK (a superior 
approach to an API integration) within the Vamos 
Trip Planning application in case of Masabi being 
the selected vendor. 

 
Integrate back end API’s into the Vamos Trip Planning 
Application to develop a “one-stop shop” mobile app for 
mobile ticketing and trip planning 

E 

Masabi has engaged and validated with Kyyti to that 
they would integrate the Justride SDK (a superior 
approach to an API integration) within the Vamos 
Trip Planning application in case of Masabi being 
the selected vendor. 

 
Provide accurate and timely ridership and revenue data 
that can support detailed analysis and report of transit 
trends among riders, and fees collected data 

FC  

C Outline Remittance Schedule and Stand-Alone Agreements 

 Identify the way your company will recover fees, for 
example: 

  

 $X upfront development fee with Y% of weekly fare 
revenue (including credit card processing fees) 

FC  

 
X% of weekly fare revenue (including processing fees), 
with no upfront development fee, 2-year minimum 
contract. 

FC  

 Identify fare revenue remittance schedule and the process 
in which remittance is delivered to the respective transit 

FC  



San Joaquin Council of Governments - Mobile Ticketing Vendor 

12 
 

agencies identified in Exhibits 1 -7. Note, weekly 
remittance is the maximum that would be acceptable for 
the Rail Commission. 

D Train Staff from All Transit Agencies to Operate Any Software Needed to Maintain the App and Collect the Necessary Data 

 Train local transit agency staff on using the mobile app to 
allow them to support users 

FC  

E Launch Mobile Application FC  
F Conduct Mobile App Marketing, Upkeep, and Maintenance 

 
Develop and implement a marketing and public outreach 
plan to promote the new mobile ticketing app, and new 
mobile ticketing features within Vamos 

FC  

 
Identify and implement a process in which upkeep or 
maintenance will take place 

FC  

 
Provide continuous updates to all agencies, in advance, of 
any maintenance or application update delays or 
inconveniences 

FC  

 
 



San Joaquin Council of Governments - Mobile Ticketing Vendor 

13 

JUSTRIDE PLATFORM DESCRIPTION 

Masabi’s Justride is the leading Fare Payments platform for public transport, having spent the last 10 years 
building the Justride platform to be a world-class, sophisticated end-to-end ticketing solution that is rapidly 
deployable and designed specifically for public transit agencies. Transit agencies and operators can sign up to 
mobile ticketing services, enable Mobility as a Service (MaaS) and deploy an account-based system allowing 
passengers to simply tap a contactless bank card, mobile device and smart card to travel, without needing to 
buy a ticket or understand fares. 

Justride is made up of three primary platform components as described below: 

Retail: Enabling passengers to bring their own ticket, Justride Retail allows agencies to 
choose how they would like riders to access tickets and passes, through white label app, 
mobile ticketing SDK integration, web portal, Vendor Ticketing APIs, paper barcode tickets, 
smart cards or contactless bank cards. 

Hub: the secure and scalable cloud-based back office enables staff to manage tariffs, 
provision passenger entitlements (senior, student, child, veteran, etc.), check ticket sales 
data, access revenue and usage reports, analyze key operational trends, manage customer 
service requests, monitor validation assets and much more. 

Inspect: the Inspect Validation Suite combines optimal user experience with a fast, 
multi-format and future-proof design to validate tickets across all modes of public 
transit and attractions. The suite is made up of the customizable five core products 
depending on customer requirements: Justride Handheld App, Justride Validator, Inspect 
SDK, Inspect for VAL100, Inspect Gateline Integration Kit. 



San Joaquin Council of Governments - Mobile Ticketing Vendor 

14 
 

Justride Retail SDK 

 

The Justride platform includes a deployment-proven Software Development Kit (SDK), a tool that enables third-
party developers like Kyyti to integrate the Justride platform within their applications to provide genuine 
Mobility-as-a-Service experiences. The SDK extends the reach of the Justride ticketing platform, allowing SJCOG 
to open new digital sales channels that can be leveraged allowing passengers to purchase tickets or use riders’ 
stored value accounts from their preferred front-end application, in this case Vamos and Transit app. 

Masabi developed the SDK to facilitate integrations instead of utilizing APIs because an SDK is able to securely 
package the sophisticated security features within the Justride platform without exposing these encrypted 
elements of the platform, and thereby without compromising its security. Examples of this include the 
encrypted visual validation mechanism and the dynamic barcode. This also allows offline ticket lifecycle 
management for additional customer satisfaction while maintaining fraud protection. 

Masabi’s vision for the SDK ultimately is three-fold. The first is to increase the number of sales channels 
through which a passenger can purchase their fares to ride, without dictating to passengers the specific 
experience to purchase transit tickets. The second is to leverage the unique expertise of Masabi's partners, who 
are exclusively focused on building out multimodal journey planning and Mobility as a Service applications, 
allowing Masabi to stay exclusively focused on building the best mobile account-based fare payments platform. 
Lastly, it is to achieve practical MaaS – embedding the SDK in mobility applications to begin to tie public 
transit together with new and emerging modes of mobility like rideshare, bikeshare, and others. 

This speaks to the way that Masabi views the changing transit landscape. Masabi’s vision is a world where 
transit agencies are no longer going to be exclusively responsible for providing transit services on their assets 
or within their own borders. Instead, transit agencies are going to be responsible for managing the increasingly 
complex ecosystem of multi-modal transit.


	Agenda.pdf (p.1-7)
	3.1.pdf (p.8)
	6A.pdf (p.9-48)
	6A DEMAND RESO.pdf (p.1)
	6A AP DEMANDS_Payment Register_10-01-21 - 10-07-21 - REVISED.pdf (p.2-18)
	6A AP DEMANDS_Payment Register_10-08-21 - 10-14-21.pdf (p.19-33)
	6A EFT_07-01-2021 - 07-31-2021.pdf (p.34-40)

	6B.pdf (p.49-63)
	6B M101221.kw DRAFT.pdf (p.1-3)
	6B M101821.kw.pdf (p.4-15)

	6C.pdf (p.64-70)
	6C CFD #2 Annexation 32 Staff Report.D1.pdf (p.1-3)
	6C CFD #2 Annexation 32 Resolution.D2.pdf (p.4-6)
	6C CFD #2 Annexation 32 Boundary Map.D3.pdf (p.7)

	6D.pdf (p.71-127)
	6D Annual Report FY 18-19. Staff Report.D1.pdf (p.1-3)
	6D Annual Report FY 18-19.D2.pdf (p.4-57)


